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the largest global providers

of innovative mechanical

solutions technology and

services for the drilling and

production sectors of the oil

and gas industry We operate

in over 100 countries and

employ over 55000 people

worldwide

We are committed to balancing

good business with sound

socially responsible engagement

This commitment includes

applying efficient resource

management methods and prac

ticing sustainable development

in the communities where our

employees operate and live

We also pursue the highest

standards of excellence in all

our business processes and

partnerships This includes

complying with all applicable

laws and regulations in the

areas where we do business

promoting safe work practices

and minimizing risk to our

employees our communities

and the environment and

implementing programs

training and controls necessary

to achieve our goals





Financial Highlights

In thousands except per share data 2010 2009 2008

Revenues 10220797 8833005 9600564

Operating Income 781453 687864 1955168

Net Income from Continuing Operations 107925 170141 1259424
Attributable to Weatherford

Diluted Earnings Per Share from Continuing 0.15 0.24 1.80

Operations Attributable to Weatherford

Diluted Weighted Average Shares 743125 723449 698178

Balance Sheet Data

Total Assets 19131654 18696690 16470187

Total Debt 6765390 6716839 5820202

Shareholders Equity 9464847 94383fl 8128593

Depreciation and Amortization 1047334 908897 731808



Letter to Shareholders

2010 was year of organic growth for Weatherford We built on momentum

within the Company and the market as the global economic recovery progressed

Achievements included

Reaching $10.2 billion in revenues our highest ever with U.S land

markets Canada and Russia solidly ahead of expectations

Growing revenues every quarter ending with the strongest fourth-quarter

revenues in our history $2.9 billion The 15.5 percent growth

rate from the third to fourth quarter set new record

Continuing our international expansion with 59 percent of

revenues generated from the Middle East/North Africa

Asia Pacific Europe/Sub-Sahara Africa Russia and Latin

America We have been strategically and methodically aligning

Weatherford in the direction of our clients spending patterns

purposefully going where they are going Our performance in

2010 reflects this

Overall our progress in 2010 was constructive despite the market

fallout from fears of global double-dip recession the tragedy of

Macondo in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and slower than

expected recovery in the international market from the economic

aftershocks of 2008 2009

Internationally Russia and Brazil were our most aggressive growth

markets Our strategic buildup of INK BRs oilfield services division

which we acquired in 2009 accelerated revenues and margins with

Russia now accounting for roughly 10 percent of our business While we acquired

TNK BPs OFS division primarily for the bases and infrastructure in region

where organic growth is difficult we are increasing efficiency for clients by

upgrading the rig fleet with Weatherford technology Early efforts to pull through

additional products and services such as drilling motors and cased-hole comple

tion have gone better than expected and continued pull-through is the next

evolutionary step in Russia

Our growth in Brazil is function of mainly being more present and introducing

more product and service lines that previously were not available These range

from directional drilling to surface logging and wireline services to technologies

especially suited for deepwater environments An example is our innovative drill-

pipe riser system Designed for Brazils offshore drilling environment it enabled

our client to achieve the deepest subsea installation in Brazil to date We also saw

traction with other deepwater technologies and techniques including managed

pressure drilling MPD which helps to mitigate drilling hazards and variety of

well construction products such as liner hangers

Dr Bernard Duroc Danner

Chairman President and

Chiet Executive Othcer



We are one of the largest multinational oilfield services providers in the emerging

market of Iraq the last major untapped oil region We were the earliest one back

We began putting our infrastructure in place in 2005 and built major facilities

in Basra Erbil and Baghdad In 2110 we construrtd our fourth facility in the

massive Rumaila oil field in the southern part of the country To date we have

managed several projects in Iraq completing work ahead of schedule to help

clients contain rig time and associated costs and revitalize production

We also are beginning to see tangible progress with integrated project

mobilizations in Algeria Bangladesh Colombia Iraq Oman and

Turkmenistan Integrated projects as we define them are not just

standard bundle of discrete and disparate products and services Our

ability to synchronize methods of conveyance land rigs with our

drilling completion production and intervention toolbox as well as

plan optimize and streamline design and engineering logistics is

unique in the industry This approach and the combination of

conveyance products services people and processes also allow us

to improve our clients operational efficiencies Ultimately we hope

to shift down our clients development and exploitations curve

In Oman for instance we helped our client complete six wells with

zero non-productive time We also installed and commissioned rig

mechanization technologies on two of our Oman rigs making them

the first series of rigs to run without stabber and derrick man This

achievement not only increases efficiency it also improves safety

In North America move to oily/liquids drilling and continued in

crease in horizontal drilling drove growth With robust U.S land rig

count we saw dramatic shift to 50/50 oil and gas mix favoring

Weatherfords strong market share in shale oil and heavy oil plays

North America really is three different markets shales heavy oil and deepwater

reflecting the regions maturity Shale plays represent the fastest growing

market segment in the U.S and we are integrating our offerings in directional

drilling zonal isolation stimulation formation evaluation and other technologies

to meet the geological challenge through the life cycle of these plays

We also have moved geochemical analysis of shale drilling cuttings out of the

lab and onto the wellsite and integrated this critical function with surface log

ging gas analysis Combining these two evaluation capabilities during the well

construction phase is differentiator for us For our clients this near real-time

specialized formation evaluation data leads to better faster decisions and opti

mizes rig time Early applications in the DJ basin in Colorado and the Marcellus

shale in Pennsylvania have shown that wellsite geochemical analysis can pro

vide high-quality information about potential productive shales

Conversely Gulf of Mexico activity particularly deepwater drilling was all but

non existent post-Macondo and weighed negatively on regional results The

industry likely faces more stringent level of oversight and scrutiny in the

The SeaLancerM system extends the

we//bore construction advantages ot

the dr////ng with casing system to the

phy ica/ and econom/c extremes ot

subsea operahons



deepwater Gulf of Mexico as well as potentially other parts of the world where

deepwater drilling is conducted On balance this will tend to reduce the rate of

market improvements

The upside is that Weatherford is ready for it We recognize our responsibility to

deliver products and services with the utmost attention to product quality safety

service quality and regulatory compliance We believe catastrophic well-control

incidents are avoidable and progressed in 2010 both our technologies and

technical expertise to assess and mitigate risks in well planning and execution

prime example is our MPD technique market where we have been the

leader since 2001 MPD detects kicks losses and other well-control

events through technologies such as our MicrofluxTM closed loop

systems which detect kicks in real time The M/crof/ox system had

very high utilization throughout the year with especially strong uptake

in Asia Pacific and offshore applications where safety is paramount

Similarly we have been leader in rotating control devices RODs the

heart of closed-loop systems for more than 40 years In 2010 we received

the first API certification for an ROD and we deployed the industrys

first below tension ring subsea ROD in Southeast Asia enabling

closed loop drilling from floating rig in remote deepwater location

We also globally launched technologies in 2010 that are pioneering

new age of deepwater drilling safety and efficiency These include the

SeaLanceTM system the worlds first subsea drilling-with casing DwOTM

system which we jointly developed with client and RipTide1M RFID

the product of our collaboration with another client RipTide technology

is the worlds first electronically controlled drilling reamer with full bore

ID Both developments are good examples of our ability to partner with

our clients they give us access to specific technology and expertise and

we provide them with faster development and commercialization

Additional 2010 Global Growth Initiatives

Our technical and regional operational achievements were complemented by

several global initiatives designed to improve efficiencies and execution To

further solidify our multinational status we listed our shares on the NYSE

Euronext in 2009 and on the SIX Swiss Exchange Ltd in 2010 following redomi

ciliation to Switzerland in 2009 These steps are bringing us closer to clients and

investors in the Eastern Hemisphere and broadening our investment base as well

as enabling us to more effectively execute the Oompanys global strategy

We also deepened our global business perspective by electing three new and

distinguished members to our board of directors in 2010 The addition of Dr

Samuel Bodman Ill of the U.S Dr Guillermo Ortiz of Mexico and Sir Emyr

Jones Parry of the U.K expanded Weatherfords board for the first time since

2004 Our new board members each have extensive business experience indus

try knowledge and public service records at the highest levels Your 10-member

board is eminently qualified to guide the Oompany

The successful installation of an API

certified submerged RCD in riser

and in ten.oon is an industr5 first for

this technology
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During 2010 we took steps to improve our capital structure and liquidity We

further bolstered our liquidity with new three-year revolving credit facility We

recognize that our capital intensity has been too high in recent years but it was

necessary We made significant investments to build out our infrastructure and

acquire technology and these investments further bolstered our healthy growth

platform The emphasis on more efficient use of capital whether working capi

tal or capital expenditures will continue with the same drive in 2011 We have

as an internal target to end the year 2011 at net debt-to-net-capitalization ratio

at or below 35 percent

Improving our supply chain and manufacturing functions was another efficiency

push in 2010 We streamlined this area to evolve our global capacity and to im

prove our agility and flexibility in response to changing market demands without

compromising quality and safety standards In this way we can better lower reaction

time across the company and capitalize on sourcing in cost effective countries

In the area of compliance Weatherford wants to be the best and to strive for

impeccable performance Our culture should be one in which ethics and

compliance are as intuitive and heartfelt for employees as quality health

safety security and the environment Over the last three years we have created

what believe are the best global compliance organization policies and

practices in the industry and in 2010 we ensured their further inculcation

We are empowering employees and third parties with whom we work all over

the world to meet our high standards for compliance with all applicable laws

and regulations while remaining competitive in the marketplace These goals

are not mutually exclusive In fact we believe compliance facilitates business

rather than hampers it Our compliance professionals work to understand and

comply with the laws and customs in each country where we operate believe

that this is the right thing to do the right culture for us to develop the right

way for us to continue building Weatherford

2002
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On March 2011 we announced that we had identified material weakness

in our internal control over financial reporting for income taxes We also deter

mined we had errors in our accounting for income taxes that affected our results

for 2010 and prior years and as result restated our financial results for 2008

and 2009 This was deeply unhappy event and one your management would

never have thought possible We are committed to remediating this material

weakness immediately We have developed plan to remediate the material

weakness through improvements to our processes and organization and have

initiated action in furtherance of that plan

2011 Outlook We Are Ready to Harvest

We believe the outlook for our businesses is favorable over the longer

term both from geological and an economic standpoint Geologically

the reservoirs will be what they will be age-related declining ease of

exploitation and increasing complexity More and more capability in

terms of infrastructure technology and know-how is required to ef

ficiently produce barrel of oil That is where we come in and that is

where we are uniquely positioned in the marketplace Our more than-

decade-long technology investment and development have emulated

our clients three most critical areas how to produce more hydrocar

bons from mature reservoirs unconventional plays such as shale and

heavy oil and extreme environments

For mature reservoirs we have assimilated one of the broadest

portfolios of techniques and technologies that help clients maximize

recovery and optimize production This portfolio ranges from evaluation

capabilities that provide data for better decision-making well service

management to treatment and stimulation production facilities and

water management

For unconventional plays such as shale we have created one of the

industrys strongest and most comprehensive service offerings We have

formation evaluation capabilities that combining five different product

lines allow us to integrate data sources to understand the reservoir in

real time We have improved drilling and completion techniques such as rotary

steerable systems downhole motors and completion systems that achieve the

longer horizontals and multilaterals required in many shale applications For

the final phase of shale development we improved stimulation through better

water management and reuse faster stimulation and better fracture mapping

with microseismic

For extreme environments we have number of differentiated drilling and well

construction techniques products and processesranging from drilling hazard

mitigation to rig mechanization to rotary-steerable systems that overcome

many of the limitations of conventional drilling We also provide completion

technologies such as cased hole completion and sand control that ensure low

Weatherford Laboratories provides

integrated data measurement

and interpretahon to enhance

development planning and reduce

reservoir uncertainty



risk installation and life of field reliability production systems such as optimized

lift systems and pipeline services that provide flow assurance and optimized

production and re-entry abandonment and decommissioning services to ensure

the efficient reuse of wellbores/slots and effective decommissioning

In 2011 and beyond we expect healthy growth driven by our ability to further

penetrate existing markets with many of these younger and unique technologies

and combinations thereof as well as successful introduction of these into new

markets Our ability to continuously demonstrate high level of opera

tional efficacy for our clients will remain critical

Economically we see 2011 following historical pattern Going back

10 years and longer oil and gas cycles have mirrored the world economy

We believe the current cycle will be the same It has followed the familiar

pattern with North America recovering first in 2010 International markets

historically move more slowly Improvements by country in the fourth

quarter were the most widespread we have seen since late in 2008 sug

gesting the very beginnings of reawakening in the Eastern Hemisphere

Starting in the second half of 2011 we expect strong growth in Russia

North Sea Brazil and other parts of Latin America The Middle East should

also see higher activity with the caveat that prognosis depends greatly on

whether political disturbances prove to be temporary or longer lasting

The Eastern Hemisphere should blossom in 2012 2013 and we will be

prepared We have put great deal of infrastructure in place in the Eastern

Hemisphere to handle far greater level of business than we have had

Throughout the international markets we begin the growth phase We

expect the harvest to start in 2011 and continue with solid incremental

growth for Weatherford and our investors through 2015

In North America we expect to grow above the market rate given our

young technologies that are just gaining traction and the focus on secular

trends Land activity in the U.S is expected to flatten out with no signifi

cant volume gains but no significant weakness either We expect to see

subdued offshore drilling in the U.S for the near term Unconventionals will

continue to be our drivers in the U.S in 2011 and we expect high performance

from our product and service lines that directly apply to them lift stimulation

directional drilling surface logging core analysis and completion Our share

positioning and operating efficiency should yield better probability of returns

than market forces alone

Canada has distinctly positive outlook We expect catch up activity in heavy

oil which represents large percentage of the overall market in Canada Vol

umes are expected to strengthen in 2011 and even more in 2012 We are

world leader in the development of heavy oil reservoirs with the broadest arti

ficial lift and production optimization portfolio in the industry Canadian shale

plays will be very important but likely not until 2012

Weather fords integrated well

construction combines broad

portfolio of products and services

infrastructure and know how with

disciplined project management

methodology and flexibility to

support our clients application

challenges



Additionally our largest product line in North America artificial lift is pure

oil play that represents 25 percent of our North American revenues Moving

forward we are extremely well positioned for changing trends in the U.S shale

and Canadian heavy oil plays

The international outlook for 2012 is squarely positive The quantum of market

growth carries high degree of certainty The market should strengthen as 2011

progresses as result of healthy oil prices and the likely emergence of concerns

over global spare production capacity From 2012 thereon we could experience

period reminiscent of 2004 through 2007

Weatherford is in an excellent position to improve our market penetration in the

growth markets of the Eastern Hemisphere and Latin America One reason is

cyclical We expect all rriarkets to move in eonstruutive ways following the wide

spread decline 2009 into 2010 It is classic recovery phenomenon second

reason is the structural factor of aging-reservoir exploitation with declining

productivity With few exceptions the Eastern Hemisphere and Latin American

reservoirs are experiencing accelerating decline rates Thirdly we have developed

the infrastructure product lines and technology that should allow us to capitalize

on these main drivers We made the decision to protect and preserve these

investments in 2008 through 2010 We believe this was the right thing to do

and now we are poised to reap the benefits of this decision

The Eastern Hemisphere is slow-moving but powerful market with good

margins and returns once it gets moving Russia should have double digit

outlook in 2011 combining both volume and price Activity gains should be

related to sidetracking and production as well as development drilling and

further exploration drilling

The North Sea and East Africa should show strength this year Central Asia

particularly India Bangladesh and Turkmenistan is particularly constructive

We expect slow process of strengthening in the Middle East/North Africa

region leading to powerful upsurge in 2012 This ultimately will be subject

to the impact of political disruptions and duration thereof We already have

contractual commitments and have initiated start-ups in Algeria Bangladesh

Iraq Kuwait Oman and Turkmenistan In Iraq we are steadily growing business

volumes through tender wins and direct contracts but doing so in manner

that gives weight to the risks and difficulties of this rapidly emerging market

With robust growth in Brazil Colombia Argentina and Peru the outlook for

Latin America in 2011 is positive and even more so in 2012 Brazil will again

lead the way with the pre-salt developments yet to come Colombia should

follow similar trajectory centered around its heavy oil potential We expect it

to be year of healing in Mexico Longer term growth in Latin America will be

driven by our infrastructure integrated-project-management legitimacy young

technologies gaining market share new technologies for challenging drilling

developments and heavy oil capabilities



When the market in Mexico revives as we expect it will in 2012 and beyond we

are well positioned to benefit We have lived through severe volatility in Mexico

and have gained certain muscular flexibility in handling it We are in Mexico

for the long run

Second Quarter Century Our Next Dimension of Growth

Over the past 10 years including the severe recession in 2008 through 2010

that slowed our growth rate your Company grew its top line and operating income

both at 19 percent compounded annual growth rate We had the fastest revenue

growth rate in our peer group in part due to our relative youth as company

We know growth We have grown from just two people and no business to speak

of in 1987 to 55000 employees in more than 100 countries earning revenues

exceeding $10 billion

Along with our reach breadth and depth our culture also has evolved

Weatherfords DNA now is many companies unified into one single organization

pluribus unum We want to be entrepreneurial flexible and creative but also

disciplined and organized We have invested in strong technology and our global

infrastructure We are earning reputation for listening to clients hearing the

real problem and focusing on the right applications We are innovative and

collaborative These attributes will help us achieve greater penetration in markets

that are growing We will hold on to these aspects of our growth culture

In 12 months we will embark on our second quarter century We focus already

on the next dimension to spur growth The challenge is one that believe your

Company is completely capable of meeting It is to extend gold standard of

quality across still-growing organization to achieve consistent excellence in any

phase of our growth whether at the drill bit or in the organizational structure and

process that support our business We want to be the most reliable We want

quality to be in our clients and investors minds synonymous with Weatherford

This must become our genetic makeup and the direction of Weatherford

As always our employees our clients and our shareholders ultimately are the

ones responsible for the transformation Weatherford has undergone during the

last 10 years Without them we would not be where we are today They deserve

all the thanks and the credit and are as critical to our future as they have been

to our past Moving forward we are committed to creating value for all of them

We enter 2011 in strong position to accomplish this

Respectfully

Dr Bernard Duroc Danner

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer
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.jntegrated Well Construction We work collaboratively with clients to best achieve optimal outcomes and operating

broad product and service portfolio unique capabilities local structure and disciplined project rhanagement met

bear on challenges Our application-based project executioIrensures that Weatherford will see the project through ii

job is done

year of work on our 20 year integrated project contract for P00 Oman South AMAL we put two rigs and broad scope of

proc and services to the test with outstanding results As project manager Weatherford drilled 43 wells ran 89 cementing jobs and

installed artificial lift systems We installed Rotaflek units and steam bypass system cdt
drilling

time from 14 days to 5.5 days per well

and daplc ed technology for performance improvement Our client recognized Weatherford with its 2010 Team of the Year Award for opera-

7d

together we agreed on ambitious targets for 2011
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Country Profile

Brazil

Brazil offers rich growth poten

tial tor Weatherford We have

the opportunity to grow well

above the market because we

anticipated client needs in Brazil

developed long-range strategic

plans and took well-considered

risks to meet those needs all

with nationalistic approach

Our objective in Brazil is to

increase our clients productivity

and efficiency After gaining

foothold in 1995 we steadily

acquired technologies and

in-country manufacturing

capabilities built our infrastruc

ture and expanded our services

and capabilities

We continue to expand our

technological reach across all

product and service lines to

match Brazils challenges with

focus on deepwater operations

Weatherford pioneered the

development of unique deep-

water drillpipe riser system in

Brazil that has been applied

extensively in the Santos Campos

and Espiritu Santo basins

Most recently we added surface

logging systems integrated

laboratory services wireline

services and integrated well

construction drawing on our

full range of competencies

We are building differentiating

capabilities on existing technol

ogy platforms such as managed

pressure drilling and drilling

services Additionally we are

introducing younger technolo

gies including the CC TRACER

12



surface gas detector and the

SeaLanceTM subsea drilling with

casing DwCTM system the

worlds first DwC system

designed explicitly to optimize

drilling in deepwater environments

With Petrobras alone set to

spend more than $108 billion on

EF in Brazil through 2014 and

offshore exploration shifting to

development drilling Weatherford

is well prepared Our product and

service portfolio in Brazil spans

the life cycle of the well We have

1850 employees in Brazil four

service bases three manufactur

ing facilities and one laboratory

facility for samples analysis and

core storage

All of our manufacturing plants

and three service bases have

ISO 90012008 certified qual

ity management systems Our

Caxias do Sul plant and our larg

est service base in Macae are

certified to OHSAS 180012007

and Caxias do Sul is also certi

fled to ISO 140012004 In

2010 we commissioned new

very large artificial lift manufac

turing facility just outside

Rio de Janeiro with Brazil as

its primary market focus

Brazil will remain major hub of

exploration and production activ

ities leading Latin America to

represent substantial share of

Weatherfords revenues by 2014
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Country Profile

Russia

The pace of Weatherfords

growth iii Russid continued

to accelerate following the

acquisition of TNK-BPs drilling

well workover and cementing

services companies in 2009

Coupled with activity gains in

many of our existing product

lines the acquisition has greatly

expanded the presence we

established in Russia since

our 1997 start-up on Sakhahin

Island This and other acquisi

tions in the region allow us to

pull through new Weatherford

technologies and ensure the

continued productivity growth

of oilfield services in Russia

Our regional product and service

portfolio spans the life cycle

of well with the recent intro

duction of directional drilling

reservoir evaluation and well

testing services The application

of our fracturing services also

continues to grow with ongoing

additions to our operating capac

ity and stimulation technology

portfolio Our
rig fleet currently

consists of 75 land drilling rigs

and 135 workover units

Weatherfords footprint includes

headquarters office in Moscow

27 total offices and operations

facilities full service training

center plus an RO center in

St Petersburg Our workforce

now exceeds 8300 people

We expect this exceptional

growth to continue in 2011

with contractual gains in explo

ration and development drilling

as well as increased production

and completion activities

.1

xl
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Technology Profile

Managed Pressure Drilling

Weatherfords simple yet highly

effective suite of managed

pressure drilling MPD method

ologies is transforming undrill

able wells into producing assets

MPD systems use rotating

control device ROD to convert

drilling rigs traditional open-

loop fluid circulation system to

closed loop for more efficient

safer faster drilling

Rather than being viewed as

simply new technology MPD

is increasingly regarded as

best practice in mitigating safety

risks associated with kicks and

losses while reducing nonpro

ductive time in the process

Using the MPD technology that

suits their specific conditions

operators have increased effi

ciency and reduced non-produc

tive time PT and costs

MPD mitigates lost circulation

stuck pipe kicks and other

pressure-related events that are

common and costly drilling haz

ards in shales high pressure

high-temperature HPHT res

ervoirs deepwater and pre salt

reservoirs offshore Brazil and

West Africa and other challeng

ing prospects

MPD is gaining acceptance off

shore and was recently used in

deepwater application for the

first time ever Operators in Asia

Pacific are early adopters of this

technique which has been used

in more than 100 wells since

2005 It has proved especially

16



valuable in mitigating hazards in

difficult carbundte formatiuns

such as Raturaja and Kujung in

Indonesia MPD is gaining

greater acceptance for eliminat

ing virtually all NPT related to

kicks losses and well control in

Southeast Asias tight gas and

HP/HT reservoirs

One innovation in the MPD tech

nology suite is uur next genera

tion SeaShieldTM marine ROD

the industrys first and only API

certified and only purpose built

device for riser and floater appli

cations Marine RODs extend our

MPD capabilities to deepwater

drilling vessels where they sig

nificantly enhance performance

and safety

Our advanced MicrofluxTM sys

tem identifies minute downhole

influxes and losses in real time

expanding the closed-loop sys

tem with precise timely down

hole pressure and flow

monitoring and control Drilling

decisions can be made based on

actual data not just predictions

Microflux technology turns our

closed-loop MPD system into

sensitive monitoring tool for

quickly understanding and react

ing to the downhole environment

Since entering the MPD market

more than decade ago

Weatherford has continued to

build our closed loop drilling

capabilities with innovations that

benefit all drilling operations

17



Technology Profile

Artificial Lift and

Production Optimization

As reservoirs mature and their

natural pressure declines

artificial lift systems are

becoming more relevant than

ever in boosting production

As result lift which was one

of Weatherfords very first

product lines remains one of

our top three revenue generating

business lines

Production optimization

systems which help monitor

and interpret oil and natural

gas fields can be used in

conjunction with lift to help

clients optimize new and aging

assets We have been expanding

our production optimization

capabilities both organically

and through acquisitions since

2001 For 2011 and beyond it

is at the forefront of our growth

opportunities

For both of these business

lines our market differentiator

is our ability to shape either as

independent technologies or as

part of synchronized system

these offerings in ways that

best meet clients needs

We are combining our produc

tion optimization technology

with lift to help clients increase

operational efficiency One

example is in the southeast

region of Mexico where we

helped client improve oil

production in mature fields

by seam lessly integrating

production services solution

that included the design instal

lation supervision maintenance

operation and optimization of



artificial lift systems to guaran

tee the production increase of

oil and gas

For subsea applications we

are simplifying operations by

providing open communication

control and delivery systems

that work with all existing and

new subsea wells By opening

up the communication system

which traditionally was proprie

tary and single sourced we are

increasing efficiencies for our

clients We also can extend

additional technologies to them

through product offerings such

as our control systems reservoir

monitoring flow measurement

gas lift video leak detection

and software systems As

result clients are installing our

subsea technologies in the

North Sea Asia and now Brazil

and the Gulf of Mexico

For deepwater environments

we are increasing reliability

with our patented DVX gas lift

mandrel series which was

developed specifically to

address our clients concerns

of unintended transfer of

production fluids into the

annulus It has been proven

in number of deep offshore

and subsea wells in the Gulf

of Mexico offshore Africa and

the North Sea

In 2011 the combination of

artificial lift and production

optimization systems will

continue to evolve and extend

efficiencies for unconventional

plays key growth area for

Weatherford
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Application Profile

Shale

With shale plays surging in the

U.S and gaining impnrtance in

Europe the Middle East and

beyond Weatherford is applying

whole new generation of inte

grated tools and techniques in

shale plays to maximize return

on investment while reducing

risk and environmental impact

Our high-performance measure

ment-while drilling MWD
logging-while drilling LWD
and rotary steerable systems

help optimize horizontal drilling

mainstay of shale wells and

well placement During the

evaluation stage our technology

driven approach includes detailed

reservoir characterization for

determining factors such as

mechanical rock properties

mineralogy and geochemistry

We have rapidly growing

surface logging component

with applications relevant to

shale such as optimizing

geosteering and identifying

sweet spots in shale which

assists in designing effective

frarturing programs

Our ZoneSelect openhole

completion system reduces the

time and cost to stimulate

multizone well by customizing

the complete design for each

individual zone This zonal

isolation technology makes it

easy to apply the right fracturing

method to every zone every

time with modular precise

components designed and

engineered to work together

20



During completion the

ZoneSelect system minimizes

the time to isolate and fracture

zones later in the fields life

it aids in managing production

by controlling the flow from

various zones

For producing shale wells

Weatherfords Fracology5M

services offer an integrated

approach to combining forma

tion evaluation techniques

pressure pumping with one of

the industrys youngest frac

fleets fracturing fluids and

highly scientific approach to

optimize hydraulic fracturing

key enabler of shale resource

development

Our artificial lift systems

minimize the cost of recovering

fracturing fluids in turn reduc

ing overall costs And when

intervention becomes necessary

we leverage our experience on

more than 1O00D casing exits

as well as advanced milling

technology and whipstocks to

maximize the efficiency of cre

ating casing exits This reduces

the time and costs of horizontal

drilling in shale plays

Operators are beginning to

explore the opportunities for

shale plays outside of the U.S

Weatherford gives them the

technology tools to make the

best possible decisions and

exploit the greatest potential

out of their shale plays
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Business Systems

Ethics and Compliance

Weatherford takes firm stance

on complying with all laws

rules and regulations in the

100 countries where we work

We will always strive to do

business in proper way

Our Office of Global Compliance

is staffed with former U.S federal

prosecutors fraud investigators

forensic accountants and other

experts They apply best practices

to develop internal policies and

procedures conduct risk-based

compliance reviews audit

internal processes and ensure

full compliance with applicable

laws and regulations

In 2010 Weatherford contin

ued to introduce new ethics

and compliance training for

employees Other key activities

included conducting in-depth

compliance reviews of Company

operations in specific countries

implementing an award to

the three employees who most

contributed to furthering the

Companys ethical culture

and launching global trade

compliance principles and

accompanying training

Weatherfords compliance

program is intended to protect

our Company protect our

employees and facilitate

sustainable business The

focus is on the risks companies

face every day related to anti

corruption laws such as the U.S

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

FCPA trade laws and antitrust

concerns around the world
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Explanatory Note
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under Selected Financial Data Part II Item under Managements Discussion and Analysis of Results of

Operations and Financial Condition and Part II Item under Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

see Notes 17 20 21 and 23



PART

Item Business

Weatherford International Ltd the Company is one of the worlds leading providers of equipment and

services used in the drilling evaluation completion production and intervention of oil and natural gas wells Many

of our businesses including those of our predecessor companies have been operating for more than 50 years

We were originally incorporated in Delaware in 1972 and moved our incorporation to Bermuda in 2002 In

February 2009 we completed share exchange transaction in which Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda

exempted company Weatherford Bermuda became wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford International

Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation Weatherford Switzerland for
purposes

of changing the Companys place

of incorporation from Bermuda to Switzerland collectively the Transaction Pursuant to the Transaction each

common share par value U.S $1.00 per share of Weatherford Bermuda was exchanged for one registered share par

value 1.16 Swiss francs CHF per share of Weatherford Switzerland

When referring to Weatherford and using phrases such as we and us our intent is to refer to Weatherford

International Ltd and its subsidiaries as whole or on regional basis depending on the context in which the

statements are made

We operate in over 100 countries which are located in nearly all of the oil and natural gas producing regions in

the world Our operational performance is reviewed and managed on geographic basis and we report the

following regions as reporting segments North America Latin America Europe/West Africa/the former

Soviet Union FSU and Middle East/North Africa/Asia

Our headquarters are located at 4-6 Rue Jean-Francois Bartholoni 1204 Geneva Switzerland and our

telephone number at that location is 41.22.816.1500 Our internet address is www.weatherford.com General

information about us including our corporate governance policies and charters for the committees of our board of

directors can be found on our web site On our web site we make available free of charge our annual reports on

Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form and amendments to those reports filed or

furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we

electronically file or furnish them to the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC The public may read and

copy any materials we have filed with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE
Room 1580 Washington DC 20549 Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained

by calling the SEC at 1-800 SEC-0330 The SEC maintains an internet site that contains our reports proxy and

information statements and our other SEC filings The address of that site is www.sec.gov

The following is summary of our business strategies and the markets we serve We have also included

description of our products and services offered and our competitors Segment financial information appears in

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note 20

Strategy

Our primary objective is to provide our shareholders with above-average returns on their investment through

income growth Principal components of our strategy include

Continuously improving the efficiency productivity and quality nf ur prnducts and services and their

respective delivery in order to grow revenues and operating margins in all of our geographic markets at rate

exceeding underlying market activity

Through commitment to innovation and invention developing and commercializing new products and

services capable of meeting evolving needs of our customers and

Further extending our global infrastructure in scope and scale at level consistent with meeting customer

demand for our products and services in an efficient manner
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Markets

We are leading provider of equipment and services to the oil and natural gas exploration and production

industry Demand for our industrys services and products depends upon the number of oil and natural gas wells

being drilled the depth and drilling conditions of wells the number of well completions and the level of workover

activity worldwide

As result of the maturity of the worlds oil and natural gas reservoirs accelerating production decline rates

and the focus on complex deepwater prospects technology has become increasingly critical to the marketplace

Clients continue toseek test and prove production-enabling technologies at an increasing rate Technology is an

important aspect of our products and services as it helps us provide our clients with more efficient tools to find and

produce oil and natural gas We have invested substantial amount of our time and resources in building our

technology offerings We believe our products and services enable our clients to reduce their costs of drilling and

production andlor increase production rates Furthermore these offerings afford us additional opportunities to sell

our traditional core products and services to our clients

Product Offerings

Within each of our geographic reporting segments we group our product offerings into ten service lines

artificial lift systems drilling services well construction drilling tools completion systems

wireline and evaluation services re-entry and fishing stimulation and chemicals integrated drilling and

10 pipeline and specialty services The following discussion provides an overview of our various product offerings

With the exception of integrated drilling our service line offerings are provided in all of our geographic segments

Our integrated drilling service line is offered only outside of North America

Artificial Lift Systems

Artificial lift systems are installed in oil wells and to lesser extent natural gas wells that do not have

sufficient reservoir pressure to raise the produced hydrocarbon to the surface These systems supplement the natural

reservoir pressures to produce oil or natural gas from the well There are six principal types of artificial lift

technologies used in the industry We are able to provide all forms of lift including progressing cavity pumps

reciprocating rod lift systems gas lift systems hydraulic lift systems plunger lift systems hybrid lift systems and

electric submersible systems which are sold through our equity investment partner We also offer wellhead systems

and production optimization

Progressing cavity Pumps progressing cavity pump PCP is downhole pump driven by an above-

ground electric motor system connected to it by coupled rod or continuous rod string PCPs are particularly useful

in heavy-oil producing basins around the world

Reciprocating Rod Lift Systems reciprocating rod lift system is an artificial lift pumping system that uses

an above-ground mechanical unit connected to sucker rod and downhole pump It uses an up and-down suction

pump to lift the oil from the reservoir

Gas Ljft Systems Gas lift is form of artificial lift that uses natural gas to lift oil in producing reservoir to

the surface The process of gas
lift involves the injection of natural gas into the well through an above-ground

injection system and series of downhole mandrels and gas
lift valves in the production tubing string The injected

gas lightens the pressure of the fluid in the well bore allowing the reservoirs natural
pressure to push the fluid to the

surface in wells that have stopped producing and allowing greater volume in already producing wells Gas lift

systems are used primarily for offshore wells including deepwater and ultra-deepwater and for wells that have

high component of
gas

in the produced fluid or have gas supply near the well

Hydraulic Lift Systems hydraulic lift oil pumping system uses an above-ground surface power unit to

operate downhole hydraulic pump jet or piston to lift oil from the reservoir Hydraulic pumps are well suited for

wells with high volumes and low solids

Plunger Lift Systems Plunger lift is the only artificial lift method that requires no assistance from outside

energy sources The typical system consists of plunger or piston top and bottom bumper springs lubricator and

AR-2



surface controller By using the energy from the compressed gas in the well the plunger travels to the surface

creating solid interface between the lifted gas below and produced fluid above to maximize lift energy Plunger lift

is low-cost easily maintained method of lift It is particularly useful for dewatering gas wells and increasing

production from wells with emulsion problems

Hybrid Lift Systems We offer variety of hybrid artificial lift systems which are engineered fur special

applications and may incorporate two or more of the artificial lift methods described above

Welihead Systems We offer line of conventional wellhead equipment and valves manufactured to the latest

API industry specificatitms and client requirements including conventional surface wellheads through 20000 psi

gate valves from 2000 to 20000 psi complete wellhead systems drill-through multi-bowl unitized and mud-

line and all the accessories and aftermarket services to go with them Wellhead tools are used by drilling and

workover crews to reduce time in changing wellhead sizes while fundamentally increasing safety procedures

Production Optimization Production optimization is the process of monitoring oil and natural gas fields

and interpreting the resulting data to inform production and reservoir management decisions The ultimate goal is to

assist operators in making better decisions that maximize profits through improved optimized well production and

maximized reservoir recovery The major benefits of production optimization are increased production with lower

operating costs resulting in improved bottom-line profits for producers

Weatherford offers products for optimizing at the well reservoir and field level Downhole and surface

electronics communication systems analysis software and consulting services are combined into solutions that fit

the customers specific needs for optimizing production

Well Optimization For wellsite intelligence we offer specific controllers for each type of artificial lift

These controllers contain computers with specific logic to control the well in response to changes in the reservoir

artificial-lift equipment or well characteristics The desktop software provides advanced analytical tools that allow

the operator to make changes by controlling the well directly or by changing the parameters that the controller is

using to operate the well Our clients have the option of hosting the software system at their location or using an on

line version that provides status reports and/or analysis reports from our consultants

Flow Measurement We provide multiphase metering systems that measure how much fluid is flowing in

well These systems also measure the percentages of oil and water in the fluid Expanded development of our water-

cut meter technology helps us provide clients with accurate measurement for wells that span wide levels of gas salt

and solids that normally would interfere with the water cut measurement

Field Optimization We provide tools for optimizing workflow These software tools assist the operator in

tracking the operations needed for optimal field management Tasks such as chemical injection well workovers and

allocation of injection gas can easily generate unnecessary expenses by inefficient prioritization of tasks poor

recordkeeping and lack of analysis of the effectiveness of the total field operations The combination of our

experienced consultants and advanced software tools help the
operator optimize operations for entire fields

Deepwater Our subsea production control system simplifies subsea operations by providing open systems

for control communications and data management that can work with all existing and new subsea wells

Traditionally wells are single sourced with proprietarily communication system This method can slow down

production and increase costs if technologies other than the single-sourced providers are added or merged By

making our systems open operators can benefit by reduction in downtime an increase in production and

explanation of subsea fields and an ability to retrofit designs into existing operations Our open-system approach

also creates pull through opportunities for our control systems reservoir monitoring flow measurement and

software systems

Drilling Services

These capabilities include directional drilling Secure DrillingSMservices Well Testing drilling-with-casing

DwCTh1 and drilling-with-liner DwLTM systems and surface logging systems

Directional drilling involves the personnel equipment and engineering required to actively control the

direction of wellbore and its eventual optimal position in the target reservoir Directional drilling allows drilling of
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multiple wells from single offshore platform or land-based pad site It also allows drilling of horizontal wells and

penetration of multiple reservoir pay zones from single wellbore We supply range of specialized patented

equipment for directional drilling and real-time wellbore logging including

Measurement while drilling MWD and logging while drilling LWD MWD and LWD measure

respectively wellbore trajectory and formation properties in real time while the well is being drilled

to enable it to be steered into its optimum position

Rotary steerable systems RSS These systems allow control of wellbore trajectory while maintaining

continuous rotation of the drillstring at the surface RSS technology is cmcial for enabling long step-out

directional wells and for reducing completion-running complications resulting from abmpt small-scale hole-

angle changes caused by conventional drilling methods

Directional drilling services These services include surveying design and operational support for

directional and horizontal drilling and performance drilling in vertical wells products include drilling

motors and other associated equipment software and expertise required to deliver the well on target as

efficiently as possible

Our directional drilling capabilities are supported by our engineering facilities in Houston and other locations

globally which house and support qualified engineers scientists and technicians all focused on developing

technologies for the MWDILWD and directional drilling markets both land based and offshore

Secure Drilling5Mservices Our Secure Drilling services minimize the risk of drilling hazards related to

wellbores pressure profile and optimize life-of-well performance Weatherfords Secure Drilling offerings are

provided through three techniques Managed Pressure Drilling Underbalanced Drilling and Air Drilling

Managed Pressure Drilling MPD This technique provides an advanced method of controlling the well

using closed pressurized fluid system that more precisely controls the wellbore pressure profile than mud

weight adjustments alone The main objective of MPD is to optimize drilling processes by decreasing non

productive time and mitigating drilling hazards

Underbalanced Drilling UBD This technique is used in development exploration and mature field

applications to minimize formation damage and maximize productivity UBD is drilling with bottomhole

pressure that is maintained below reservoir pressure to intentionally invite fluid influx This technique

permits the reservoir to flow while drilling takes place thereby improving well productivity by protecting

the formation from damage by the drilling fluids

Air Drilling This technique applies reduced density fluid systems to drill sub-hydrostatically Air drilling

is used primarily in hard rock applications to reduce drilling costs by increasing the rate of penetration

full range of downhole equipment such as high temperature motors wireline steering tools drillpipe air

rotary hammer drills casing exit systems downhole deployment valves and downhole data acquisition equipment

make our product offerings unique

Well Testing Well testing uses specialized equipment and procedures to obtain essential information about

oil and gas wells after the drilling process has been completed Typical information derived may include reservoir

boundaries reservoir pressure
formation permeability formation porosity and formation fluid composition

related application is our separation business which supplies personnel and equipment on wellsite to

recover mixture of solids liquids and gases from oil and gas wells These services are used during drilling after

stimulation or after re completion to clean up wells The operator requires that well be properly cleaned before

undertaking well test to ensure that the true deliverability of the well is attained and that debris and spent

stimulation chemicals do not ultimately flow to the process plant

Drilling-with casing and drilling-with-liner systems These systems allow operators to simultaneously drill

and case oil and natural gas wells Our DwC and DwL techniques eliminate downhole complexity reducing

expensive rig modifications and the number of trips downhole Consequently drilling hazards are mitigated well

construction is simplified and productivity can be improved when drilling through the reservoir
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Sutface Logging Systems Often referred to as mud logging this is well-site service that uses fluid and gas

samples along with drilling cuttings to evaluate the geology and geo chemistry of the formation as it is being drilled

The derived data and interpretation is used to help geologists and drillers ensure that the well is placed in the most

productive formation to maximize ultimate well productivity

Well Construction

This grouping includes the primary services and products required to construct well and spans tubular

running services cemQntation tools liner systems solid tubular expandable technologies and aluminum alloy

tubular products

Tubular Running Services These services consist of wide variety of tubular connection and installation

services for the drilling completion and workover of an oil or natural gas
well We provide tubular handling

preparation inspection and wellsite installation services from single source We offer suite of products and

services for improving rig floor operations by reducing personnel exposure increasing operational efficiency and

improving safety We also specialize in critical-service installations where operating conditions such as downhole

environments and/or metallurgical characteristics call for specific handling technology

Cementing Products Cementing operations comprise one of the most expensive phases of well completion

We produce specialized equipment that allows operators to centralize the casing throughout the wellbore and

control the displacement of cement and other fluids Our cementing engineers also analyze complex wells and

provide recommendations to help optimize cementing results

Liner Systems Liner hangers allow suspension of strings of casing within weilbore without the need to

extend the casing to the surface Most directional wells include one or more liners to optimize casing programs We

offer both drilling and production liner hangers Drilling liners are used to isolate areas within the well during

drilling operations Production liners are used in the producing area of the well to support the wellbore and to isolate

various sections of the well

Swellable Products Weatherford has combined swellable elastomer technologies with our packers and

centralization technology to address well construction challenges Our Micro-SealTM isolation system combines

swellable technology with mechanical cementing products to isolate microannular voids or discrete reservoir

intervals in oil gas and injection wells We have introduced four main swellable packers offering Genisis

Nemisis Morphisis and Genisis FT for zonal isolation All of these products incorporate oil swell water swell or

the industrys only customizable dual fluid activated swell.able hybrid elastomers

Solid Tubular Expandable Technologies Proprietary expandable tools are being developed for downhole

solid tubular applications in well remediation well completion and well construction Our solid tubular expandable

products include the MetalSkin line and the HydraSkintM System MetalSkin systems are used for well cladding to

shut off zones retro-fit corroded sections of casing and strengthen existing casing MetalSkin open-hole clad

systems are used for controlling drilling hazards such as unwanted fluid loss or influx and as slim bore drilling

liners Slim-bore and ultimately monobore liner systems are designed to allow significant cost reductions by

reducing consumables for drilling and completion of wells allowing use of smaller rigs and reducing cuttings

removal needs The benefits are derived because of the potential of expandable technologies to significantly reduce

or eliminate the reverse-telescoping architecture inherent in traditional well construction The HydraSkin system is

hydraulic bottom-up expansion system that can be used for increased diameter efficiency in either planned or

contingency operations

Aluminum Alloy Tubular Products We design and manufacture aluminum alloy tubular goods for drilling

production and completion Unique physical and mechanical properties of aluminum alloys provide number of

benefits especially superior corrosion resistance in various aggressive environments and enhanced

strength-to-weight ratio resulting in better drilling performance Products range from Aluminum Alloy Drill Pipe

which is used in most drilling applications but especially recommended for ultra deep and extended reach wells and

rigs with limited load capacity to drillpipe risers designed for drilling production and completion operations These

large diameter products possess high strength and significant corrosion resistance properties essential in aggressive

environments such as deepwater wells
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Drilling Tools

We design and manufacture patented tools including our drilling jars rotating control devices and other

pressure-control equipment used in drilling oil and natural gas wells We also offer broad selection of in-house or

third-party manufactured equipment for the drilling completion and workover of oil and natural gas wells We offer

these proprietary and nonproprietary drilling tuols to our clients primarily operators and drilling contractors

on rental basis allowing the clients to use unique equipment to improve drilling efficiency without the cost of

holding that equipment in inventory

Our drilling tools include the following

Drillpipe and related drillstem tools drill collars heavyweight pipe and drilling jars

Downhole tools

Pressure-control equipment such as blowout preventers high-pressure valves accumulators adapters and

choke-and-kill manifolds and

Tubular handling equipment such as elevators spiders slips tongs and kelly spinners

Completion Systems

We offer our clients comprehensive line of completion tools and sand screens These products and services

include the following

Completion Tools These tools are incorporated into the tubing string used to transport hydrocarbons from

the reservoir to the surface We offer wide range of devices for enhancing the safety and functionality of the

production string including permanent and retrievable packer systems subsurface safety systems flow control

systems and tool strings specialized downhole isolation valves and associated servicing equipment Over the past

decade we have evolved our portfolio from one of basic cased-hole commodity products to one that focuses more

heavily on premium offerings for deepwater and high-pressure/high temperature environments

Sand Screens Sand production often results in premature failure of artificial-lift and other downhole and

surface equipment and can obstruct the flow of oil and natural gas To remedy this issue we provide two different

sand screen approaches conventional and expandable

Conventional Sand Screens These products are used in the fluid-solid separation processes and have

variety of product applications Our primary application of well screens is for the control of sand in

unconsolidated formations We offer premium pre-pack and wire-wrap sand screens We also offer

FloRegTM line of inflow control devices that balance horizontal wellbore production ultimately maximizing

reservoir drainage We also operate the water well and industrial screen business of Johnson Screens Served

markets include water well petrochemical wastewater treatment and surface water intake mining and

general industrial applications

Expandable Sand Screens ESS Our ESS systems are proprietary step-change sand-control devices that

reduce cost and improve production An ESS system consists of three layers including slotted base pipe

filtration screens and an outer protective shroud The system can be expanded using fixed cone and/or

compliantly using our proprietary axial and rotary expansion system This system aids productivity because

it stabilizes the wellbore prevents sand migration and has larger inner diameter ESS technology can

replace complex gravel-packing techniques in many sand-control situations

Reservoir Optimization Our intelligent completion technology ICT uses downhole optical and electronic

sensing to allow operators to remotely monitor the downhole pressure temperature flow rate phase fraction and

seismic activity of each well and the surrounding reservoir This advanced monitoring capability allows the operator

to monitor the reaction of the reservoir to the production of the well Combining this monitoring with multiple-zone

downhole flow control allows field pressure management and shutoff of unwanted flows of water or gas
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Wireline and Evaluation Services

Wireline and evaluation services in concert with surface logging systems and LWD form data acquisition

and interpretation capability that enables clients with an integrated approach to formation evaluation and reservoir

characterization Open-hole wireline services and logging while drilling compliment laboratory-derived analysis of

core and reservoir fluid samples When combined with geosciences consulting this integrated capability provides

the data and interpretation to reduce reservoir uncertainty and ultimately optimize production and maximize

recovery

Wire line Services Wireline services measure the physical properties of underground formations to help

determine the location and potential deliverability of oil and gas from reservoir Wireline services are provided

from surface logging units which lower tools and sensors into the wellbore mainly on single or multiple conductor

wireline

The provision of wireline and associated interpretation services is divided into four categories open hole

wireline geoscience services cased hole wireline and slickline services

Open Hole Wireline This service helps locate oil and gas by measuring certain characteristics of

geological formations and providing permanent records called logs Open hole logging can be performed

at different intervals during the well drilling process or immediately after well is drilled The logging data

provides valuable benchmark to which future well management decisions may be referenced The open

hole sensors are used to determine well lithology and the presence of hydrocarbons Formation charac

teristics such as resistivity density and porosity are measured using electrical nuclear acoustic magnetic

and mechanical technologies

The formation characteristics are then used to characterize the reservoir and describe it in terms of porosity

permeability oil gas or water content and an estimation of productivity Wireline services can relay this

information from the wellsite on real-time basis via secure satellite transmission network and secure

internet connection to the clients office for faster evaluation and decision making

Geoscience Services This capability consisting of geologists geophysicists and drilling completion

production and reservoir engineers serves as the interpretive bridge across diverse data sources to support

client efforts to maximize their oil and gas assets for the life of the well from well planning through

drilling evaluation completion production intervention and finally abandonment

Major computing centers in Calgary and Houston along with branches in Europe the Middle East Latin

America and Asia Pacific use the latest technology to deliver data to our clients from real-time LWD
geosteering for critical well placement decisions to ongoing reservoir monitoring with permanent

intelligent completion sensors We provide advanced reservoir solutions by incorporating open hole

cased hole and production data

Cased Hole Wi reline This service is performed at various times throughout the life of the well and

includes perforating completion logging production logging and casing integrity services Perforating

creates the flow path between the reservoir and the wellbore Production logging can be performed

throughout the life of the well to measure temperature fluid type flow rate pressure and other reservoir

characteristics In addition cased hole services may involve wellbore diagnostics and remediation which

could include the positioning and installation of various plugs and packers to maintain production or repair

well problems and casing inspection for internal or external abnormalities in the casing string

Slickline Services This service uses solid steel or braided nonconductor line in place of single or

multiple conductor braided line used in electric logging to run downhole memory tools manipulate

downhole production devices and provide fishing services primarily in producing wells

Integrated Evaluation Services These services help clients plan the development of new and existing oil

and gas production fields Specifically global network of laboratories provide support in terms of fluid and

reservoir characterization specialized core and fluid testing enhanced oil recovery rock strength and character

ization sour richness and maturity sorption properties assessment and reservoir flow studies
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Production and Produced Water Systems These systems help clients manage water handling during

fracturing production disposal and enhanced oil recovery operations Weatherford provides complete production

solutions for field development and/or production optimization projects Our engineering consultancy services and

project management extend through construction to commissioning and operations for early production facilities

the rapid design construction and operation of complex often remote installations engineered resources

extended well testing field development studies FF50 topsides permanent production facilities project man

agement and supply chain management

Re-entry and Fishing

Our re-entry fishing and thru tubing services help clients repair wells that have mechanical problems or that

need work to prolong production of oil and natural gas reserves

Re-entry Services Our re-entry services include casing exit services and advanced multilateral systems

Conventional and advanced casing exit systems allow sidetrack and lateral drilling solutions for clients who either

cannot proceed down the original well track or want to drill lateral wells from the main or parent wellbore

Fishing Services Fishing services are provided through teams of experienced fishing tool supervisors and

comprehensive line of fishing and milling tools Our teams provide conventional fishing services such as removing

wellbore obstructions including stuck or dropped equipment tools drillstring components and other debris that

have been lost downhole unintentionally during the drilling completion or workover of new and old wells

Specialty fishing tools required in these activities include fishing jars milling tools casing cutters overshots and

spears Our Fishing Services business unit also provides well patches and extensive plug-and abandonment

products

Thru-tubing Services Thru-tubing services are used in well re-entry activity to allow operators to perform

complex drilling completion and cementing activities from existing wellbores without removing existing pro
duction systems We provide full range of thru-tubing services and products including drilling motors casing

exits fishing and milling zonal isolation packers and other well remediation services

Well Abandonment Services Oil or gas wells ultimately reach their economic limit or can be irreparably

damaged In these situations the well must be abandoned according to federal requirements that ensure it will pose

no safety or environmental hazards Weatherford combines proprietary well abandonment technology comple

mentary intervention equipment and global team of dedicated specialists to ensure that this critical phase in the

wells life cycle goes smoothly and safely

Wellbore Cleaning Remnants of drilling fluid and other debris can damage equipment jeopardize well

completion or even shorten wells lifespan cost-effective alternative to workovers Weatherfords

CLEARMAXT1 wellhnre cleaning cervices incnrpnrate specialized chemical hydraulic and mechanical technnl

ogies to remove lingering debris safely and efficiently

Stimulation and Chemicals

We offer our clients advanced chemical technology and services for safer and more effective production

enhancement These products and services include the following

Fracturing Technologies Hydraulic reservoir fracturing is stimulation method routinely performed on oil

and natural gas wells in low-permeability reservoirs to increase productivity and oil and gas recovery Our offerings

include the latest in equipment design and technology

Coiled Tubing Technologies Our services include line of equipment designed with the latest technology to

ensure effective results during operations that require coiled tubing intervention Offerings include coiled tubing

units appropriate crane trucks and nitrogen tanks and pumpers trailer or skid formats

Cement Services Includes CHEMVIEW and CHEMPRO software to analyze each job to ensure the best

application for each situation Our new fleet of cement pumping equipment includes high-horsepower pump

trailers batch mixers two-pod blended cement trailers and four-pod sand storage trailer all with the latest in

technology and design features for improved operation and performance
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Chemical Systems Our Engineered Chemistry business combines proprietary chemical solutions with

internally developed oilfield equipment technologies Our high-performance chemistry solutions include cus

tomized chemical solutions for drilling completion production intervention refining water treatment as well as

many industrial processes total service package product selection application and optimization and precise

formulations and multi functional chemical formulations that include the only formulas certified for capillary

injection

Drilling Fluids Our drilling fluids service line is engaged in the provision of drilling fluids completion

fluids and other related services The main functions of drilling fluids include providing hydrostatic pressure to

prevent formation fluis from entering into the well bore keeping the drill bit cool and clean during drilling

carrying out drill cuttings and suspending the drill cuttings while drilling is paused and the drilling assembly is

brought in and out of the hole We also provide waste management services which separate and manage drill

cuttings produced by the drilling process Drill cuttings are usually contaminated with petroleum or drilling fluids

and must be disposed of in an environmentally safe manner

Integrated Drilling

We have the ability to offer project management services to our clients in which we provide number of

products and services needed to drill and complete well including the rig All of our land drilling rigs are located

outside of North America

Pipeline and Specialty Services

We provide range
of services used throughout the life cycle of pipelines and process facilities onshore and

offshore Our pipeline group can meet all the requirements of the pipeline process industrial and energy markets

worldwide We also can provide any service or package of services carried out on permanently installed client

equipment that involves inspecting cleaning drying testing improving production running or establishing

integrity from the wellhead out including integrated management services

Other Business Data

Competition

We provide our products and services worldwide and compete in variety of distinct segments with number

of competitors Our principal competitors include Baker Hushes Halliburton and Schlumberger We also compete

with various other regional suppliers that provide limited range of equipment and services tailored for local

markets Competition is based on number of factors including performance safety quality reliability service

price response time and in some cases breadth of products

Raw Materials

We purchase wide variety of raw materials as well as parts and components made by other manufacturers and

suppliers for use in our manufacturing Many of the products sold by us are manufactured by other parties We are

not dependent on any single source of supply for any of our raw materials or purchased components

Customers

Our principal customers consist of major and independent oil and natural gas producing companies During

2010 and 2008 there was nu individual customer who accounted fur more than 10% uf our consolidated revenues

Revenue from Petroleos Mexicanos Pemex accounted for approximately 13% of our revenues during 2009 No

other individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues during 2009

Research and Development and Patents

We maintain world-class technology and training centers throughout the world Our 34 research development

and engineering facilities are focused on improving existing products and services and developing new technologies
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to meet customer demands for improved drilling performance and enhanced reservoir productivity Our expen
ditures for research and development totaled $214 million in 2010 $195 million in 2009 and $193 million in 2008

As many areas of our business rely on patents and proprietary technology we seek patent protection both

inside and outside the U.S for products and methods that
appear to have commercial significance In the U.S we

currently have 1362 patents
issued and over 420 pending We have 2662 patents issued in international

jurisdictions and over 1270 pending We amortize patents over the years expected to be benefited ranging from

three to 20 years

Although in the aggregate our patents are important to the manufacturing and marketing of many of our

products and services we do not believe that the loss of any one of our patents would have material adverse effect

on our business

Seasonality

Weather and natural phenomena can temporarily affect the level of demand for our products and services

Spring months in Canada and winter months in the North Sea and Russia tend to affect operations negatively In

2010 heavy rains in parts of Australia and an exceedingly cold winter in the U.S had an impact on our reported

results Furthermore in the summers of 2005 and 2008 the Gulf of Mexico suffered an unusually high number of

hurricanes that adversely impacted our uperations The widespread geographical locations of our operations serve

to mitigate the impact of the seasonal nature of our business

Federal Regulation and Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to federal state and local laws and regulations relating to the energy industry in

general and the environment in particular

Our 2010 expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations were not material and we currently

do not expect the cost of compliance with environmental laws and regulations for 2011 to be material

Employees

At December 31 2010 we employed approximately 55000 employees Certain of our operations are subject

to union contracts These contracts cover approximately two percent of our employees We believe that our

relationship with our employees is generally satisfactory

Forward-Looking Statements

This report as well as other filings made by us with the SEC and our releases issued to the public contain

various statements relating to future results including certain projections and business trends We believe these

statements constitute Forward-Looking Statements as defined in the Private Securiries Litigation Reform Act of

1995 These forward-looking statements generally are identified by the words believe project expect

anticipate estimate intend strategy plan may should will would will be will continue

will likely result and similarexpressions although not all forward-looking statements contain these identifying

words

From time to time we update the various factors we consider in making our forward-looking statements and

the assumptions we use in those statements However we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any

forward-looking events or circumstances that may arise after the date of this report The following sets forth the

various assumptions we use in our forward-looking statements as well as risks and uncertainties relating to those

statements Certain of the risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to be materially different from projected

results contained in forward-looking statements in this report and in our other disclosures These risks and

uncertainries include but are not limited to the following

Global political economic and market conditions could affect projected results Our operating results and

the forward-looking information we provide are based on our current assumptions about oil and natural gas

supply and demand oil and natural gas prices rig count and other market trends Our assumptions on these
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matters are in turn based on currently available information which is subject to change The oil and natural

gas industry is extremely volatile and subject to change based on political and economic factors outside our

control Worldwide drilling activity as measured by average worldwide rig counts increased in each year

from 2002 to 2008 However activity began declining in the fourth quarter of 2008 particularly in North

America The weakened glnhal
ecnnnmic climate resulted in lnwer demand and lnwer prices for nil and

natural gas which reduced drilling and production activity which in turn resulted in lower than expected

revenues and income in 2009 and 2010 and may affect our future revenues and income Worldwide drilling

activity and global demand for oil and natural gas may also be affected by changes in governmental policies

and debt loads laws and regulations related to environmental or energy security matters including those

addressing alternative energy sources and the risks of global climate change For 2011 worldwide demand

may be significantly weaker than we have assumed

We may be unable to recognize our expected revenues from current and future contracts Our customers

many of whom are national oil companies often have significant bargaining leverage over us and may elect

to cancel or revoke contracts not renew contracts modify the scope of contracts or delay contracts in some

cases preventing us from realizing expected revenues and/or profits Our projections assume that our

customers will honor the contracts we have been awarded and that those contracts and the business that we

believe is otherwise substantially firm will result in anticipated revenues in the periods for which they are

scheduled

Currency fluctuations could have material adverse financial impact on our business material change

in currency rates in our markets such as the devaluation of the Venezuelan Bolivar experienced during the

first
quarter of 2010 could affect our future results as well as affect the carrying values of our assets World

currencies have been subject to much volatility In addition due to the volatility we may be unable to enter

into foreign currency contracts at reasonable cost As we are not able to predict changes in currency

valuations our forward looking statements assume no material impact from future changes in currency

exchange rates

Our ability to manage our workforce could affect our projected results In climate of decreasing demand

we are faced with managing our workforce levels to control costs without impairing our ability to provide

service to our customers Conversely in climate of increasing demand we are faced with the challenge of

hiring and maintaining skilled workforce at reasonable cost Our forward looking statements assume we

will be able to do so

Increases in the prices and availability of our raw materials could affect our results of operations We use

large amounts of raw materials for manufacturing our products and some of our fixed assets The price of

these raw materials has significant impact on our cost of producing products for sale or producing fixed

assets used in our business We have assumed that the prices of our raw materials will remain within

manageable range and will be readily available If we are unable to obtain necessary raw materials or if we

are unable to minimize the impact of increased raw material costs or to realize the benefit of cost decreases in

timely fashion through our supply chain initiatives or pricing our margins and results of operations could

be adversely affected

Our ability to manage our supply chain and business processes could affect our projected results We have

undertaken efforts to improve our supply chain invoicing and collection processes and procedures These

undertakings include costs which we expect will result in long term benefits of our business processes Our

forward-looking statements assume we will realize the benefits of these efforts

Our long-term growth depends upon technological innovation and commercialization Our ability to

deliver our long-term growth strategy depends in part on the commercialization of new technology central

aspect of our growth strategy is to improve our products and services through innovation to obtain

technologically advanced products through internal research and development and/or acquisitions to protect

proprietary technology from unauthorized use and to expand the markets for new technology by leveraging

our worldwide infrastructure The key to our success will be our ability to commercialize the technology that

we have acquired and demonstrate the enhanced value our technology brings to our customers operations

Our major technological advances include but are not limited to those related to controlled pressure drilling

AR 11



and testing systems expandable solid tubulars expandable sand screens and intelligent well completion

Our forward-looking statements have assumed successful commercialization of and above-average growth

from these new products and services as well as legal protection of our intellectual property rights

Nonrealization of expected benefits from our redomnestication could affect our projected results We

operate through our various subsidiaries in numerous countries throughout the world including the

United States During the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction in which our former parent

Bermuda company became wholly-owned subsidiary of Weathei-ford International Ltd Swiss joint-

stock corporation and holders of common shares of the Bermuda company received one registered share of

the Swiss company in exchange for each common share that they held Consequently we are or may become

subject to changes in tax laws treaties or regulations or the interpretation or enforcement thereof in the U.S

Bermuda Switzerland or any other jurisdictions in which we or any of our subsidiaries operates or is

resident Our income tax expense is based upon our interpretation of the tax laws in effect in various

countries at the time that the expense was incurred If the U.S Internal Revenue Service or other taxing

authorities do no1 agree with our assessment of the effects of such laws treaties and regulations this could

have material adverse effect on us including the imposition of higher effective tax rate on our worldwide

earnings or reclassification of the tax impact of our significant corporate restructuring transactions In

addition our realization of expected tax benefits is based upon the assumption that we take successful

planning steps and that we maintain and execute adequate processes to support our planning activities If we

fail to do so we may not achieve the expected benefits

Non realization of expected benefits from our acquisitions or business dispositions could affect our projected

results We expect to gain certain business financial and strategic advantages as result of business

acquisitions we undertake including synergies and operating efficiencies Our forward-looking statements

assume that we will successfully integrate our business acquisitions and realize the benefits of those

acquisitions Further we may from time to time undertake to dispose of husinesses or capital assets that are

no longer core to our long-term growth strategy and the disposition of which may improve our capital

structure Our forward-looking statements assume that if we decide to dispose of business or asset we will

find buyer willing to pay price we deem favorable to Weatherford and that we will successfully dispose of

the business or asset Our inability to complete dispositions timely and at attractive prices may impair our

ability to improve our capital structure as rapidly as our forward-looking statements may indicate

The downturn in our industry could affect the carrying value of our goodwill As of December 31 2010

we had approximately $4.2 billion of goodwill Our estimates of the value of our goodwill could be reduced

in the future as result of various factors including market factors some of which are beyond our control

Our forward-looking statements do not assume any future goodwill impairment Any reduction in the fair

value of our businesses may result in an impairment charge and therefore adversely affect our results

Adverse weather conditions in certain regions could adversely affect our operations In the summers of

2005 and 2008 the Gulf of Mexico suffered several significant hurricanes These hurricanes and associated

hurricane threats reduced the number of days on which we and our customers could operate which resulted

in lower revenues than we otherwise would have achieved In parts of 2006 and particularly in the second

quarters of 2007 and 2008 climatic conditions in Canada were not as favorable to drilling as we anticipated

which limited our potential results in that region Similarly unfavorable weather in Russia China Mexico

Australia and in the North Sea as well as exceedingly cold winters in other areas of the world could reduce

our operations and revenues from this area during the relevant period Our forward-looking statements

assume weather patterns in our primary areas of operations will be conducive to our operations

U.S Government and internal investigations could affect our results of operations We are currently

involved in govemment and internal investigations involving various of our operations We have begun

negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these matters but we cannot yet anticipate the timing

outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of these investigations financial or otherwise The

governmental agencies involved in these investigations have broad range
of civil and criminal penalties

they may seek to impose against corporations and individuals for violations of trade sanction laws the

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other federal statutes including but not limited to injunctive relief
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disgorgement fines penalties and modifications to business practices and compliance programs In recent

years these agencies and authorities have entered into agreements with and obtained range of penalties

against several public corporations and individuals in similar investigations under which civil and criminal

penalties were imposed including in some cases fines and other penalties and sanctions in the tens and

hundreds of millions of dollars These agencies likely will seek to impose penalties of some amount against

us for past conduct but the ultimate amount of
any penalties we may pay currently cannot be reasonably

estimated Under trade sanction laws the U.S Department of Justice may also seek to impose modifications

to business practices including immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other

limitations that decrease our business and modifications to compliance programs which may increase

compliance costs Any injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties sanctions or imposed modifications

to business practices resulting from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations To

date we have incurred $49 million for costs in connection with our exit from certain sanctioned countries

and incurred $113 million for legal and professional fees in connection with complying with and conducting

these on-going investigations This amount excludes the costs we have incurred to augment and improve our

compliance function We may have additional charges related to these matters in future periods which costs

may include labor claims contractual claims penalties assessed by customers and costs fines taxes and

penalties assessed by the local governments but we cannot quantify those charges or be certain of the timing

of them

Failure in the future to ensure ongoing compliance with certain laws could affect our results of operations

In 2009 we substantially augmented our compliance infrastructure with increased staff and more rigorous

policies procedures and training of our employees regarding compliance with applicable anti-corruption

laws trade sanctions laws and import/export laws As part of this effort we now undertake audits of our

compliance performance in various countries Our forward-looking statements assume that our compliance

efforts will be successful and that we will comply with our internal policies and applicable laws regarding

these issues Our failure to do so could result in additional enforcement action in the future the results of

which could be material and adverse to us

Political disturbances wam or terrorist attacks and changes in global trade policies could adversely impact

our operations We operate in over 100 countries and as such are at risk of various types of political

activities including acts of insurrections war terrorism nationalisation of assets and changes in trade

policies We have assumed there will be no material political disturbances or terrorist attacks and there will

be no material changes in global trade policies that affect our business In early 2011 our operations in

Tunisia Egypt and Libya were disrupted by political revolutions and uprisings in these countries Political

disturbances in these countries and elsewhere in the Middle East and North Africa regions including to

lesser extent Yemen and Bahrain are ongoing as of the end of February 2011 and our operations in Libya

have not resumed During 2010 these five countries accounted for approximately 3C0 of our global revenue

We have taken steps to secure our personnel and assets in affected areas and to resume or continue operations

where it is safe for us to do so and our forward looking statements assume we will do so successfully In

Libya we have evacuated all of our non-Libyan employees and their families At December 31 2010 we

had in Libya inventory property plant and equipment net with carrying value of approximately

$141 million as well as cash accounts receivable and prepaid expenses of approximately $76 million

In cases where we must evacuate personnel it may be difficult if not impossible for us to safeguard and

recover our operating assets and our ability to do so will depend on the local turn of events In these areas we

also may not be able to perform the work we are contracted to perform which could lead to forfeiture of

performance bonds We currently have outstanding approximately $19 million of performance bonds related

to contracts in Libya Our forward-looking statements assume that we will not incur substantial loss with

respect to our assets or under performance bonds located in or related to affected areas We have assumed

that cessation of business activities in parts of the Middle East and North Africa regions due to political

turmoil will be short-lived that the negative impact on our business will not be material and that the region

will not experience further disruptive political revolution in the near term However if political violence

were to curtail our activities in other countries in the region from which we derive greater business such as

Saudi Arabia Iraq and Algeria and particularly if political activities were to result in prolonged violence or

civil war we may fail to achieve the results reflected in our forward-looking statements
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The material weakness in accounting for income taxes could have further adverse effect on our share

price If we are unable to effectively remediate this material weakness in timely manner we could lose

investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports which could have further

adverse effect on our share price and could subject us to additional potentially costly shareholder litigation

or government inquiries Our forward looking statements assume we will be able to remediate the material

weakness in timely manner and will maintain an effective internal control environment in the future

Recent turmoil in the credit markets may reduce our access to capital or reduce the availability offinancial

risk mitigation tools The worldwide credit markets experienced turmoil and uncertainty from mid-2008

through most of 2009 and certain markets remained challenging in parts of 2010 Our forward-looking

statements assume that the financial institutions that have committed to extend us credit will honor their

commitments under our credit facilities If one or more of those institutions becomes unwilling or unable to

honor its commitments our access to liquidity could be impaired and our cost of capital to fund growth could

increase We use interest-rate and foreign-exchange swap transactions with financial institutions to mitigate

certain interest-rate and foreign-exchange risks associated with our capital structure and our business Our

forward-looking statements assume that those tools will continue to be available to us at prices we deem

reasonable However the failure of any counter party to honor swap agreement could reduce the

availability of these financial risk-mitigation tools or could result in the loss of expected financial benefits

Finally our future results will depend upon various other risks and uncertainties including but not limited to

those detailed in our other filings with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended For additional information regarding risks and uncertainties see our other

filings with the SEC Our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10 current reports on

Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange

Act of 1934 are made available free of charge on our internet web site www.weatherford.com as soon as reasonably

practicable after we have electronically filed the material with or furnished it to the SEC

Item 1A Risk Factors

An investment in our common shares involves various risks When considering an investment in our company

you should consider carefully all of the risk factors described below the matters discussed on the foregoing pages

under Business-Forward Looking Statements as well as other information included and incorporated by

reference in this report

Physical dangers are inherent in our operations and may expose us to significant potential losses

Personnel and property may be harmed during the process of drilling for oil and natural gas

Drilling for and producing hydrocarbons and the associated products and services that we provide include

inherent dangers that may lead to property damage personal injury death or the discharge of hazardous materials

into the environment Many of these events are outside our control Typically we provide products and services at

well site where our personnel and equipment are located together with personnel and equipment of our customer

and third parties such as other service providers At many sites we depend on other companies and personnel to

conduct drilling operations in accordance with appropriate safety standards From time to time personnel are

injured or equipment or property is damaged or destroyed as result of industrial accidents failed equipment faulty

products or services failure of safety measures uncontained formation pressures or other dangers inherent in

drilling for oil and natural gas Any of these events can be the result of human error With increasing frequency our

products and services are deployed on more challenging prospects both onshore and offshore where the occurrence

of the types of events mentioned above can have an even more catastrophic impact on people equipment and the

environment Such events may expose us to significant potential losses

We may not be fully indemnified against financial losses in all circumstances where damage to or loss of

property personal injury death or environmental harm occur

As is customary in our industry our contracts typically provide that our customers indemnify us for claims

arising from the injury or death of their employees the loss or damage of their equipment damage to the reservoir

and pollution emanating from the customers equipment or from the reservoir including uncontained oil flow from
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reservoir Conversely we typically indemnify our customers for claims arising from the injury or death of our

employees the loss or damage of our equipment or pollution emanating from our equipment Our contracts

typically provide that our customer will indemnify us for claims arising from catastrophic events such as well

blowout fire or cxplosion

Our indemnification
arrangements may nnt protect us in

every case For example from time to time we may
enter into contracts with less favorable indemnities or perform work without contract that protects us our

indemnity arrangements may beheld unenforceable in some courts and jurisdictions or we may be subject to other

claims brought by third parties or government agencies Furthermore the parties from which we seek indemnity

may not be sol cot mas become bankrupt may lack resources or insurance to honor their indemnities or may not

otherwise be able to satisfy their indemnity obligations to us The lack of enforceable indemnification could expose

us to significant potential losses

Further our assets are not insured against loss from political violence such as war terrorism or civil

commotion If any of our assets are damaged or destroyed as result of an uninsured cause we would recognize

loss of those assets

Our business may be exposed to uninsured claims and litigation might result in significant potential

losses

In the ordinary course of business we become the subject of various claims and litigation For example we have

been named in number of lawsuits because along with other oilfleld service companies we provided products and

services on the Dcepwater Horizon in the Gulf of Mexico We maintain liability insurance which includes insurance

against damage to people equipment and the environment up to maximum limits of $600 million and subject to

self insured retentions and deductibles of $2 million per occurience

Our insurance policies are subject to exclusions limitations and other conditions and may not apply in all

cases for example where willful wrongdoing on our part is alleged It is possible an unexpected judgment could be

rendered against us in cases in which we could be uninsured and beyond the amounts we cunently have reserved or

anticipate incurring and in some cases those potential losses could be material

Gui insurance may not be sufficient to cover any particular loss or our insurance may not cover all losses For

example although we maintain product liability insurance this type of insurance is limited in coverage and it is

possible an ad erse claim could arise in excess of our coverage Finally insurance rates have in the past been subject

to wide fluctuation In response to the recent catastrophic accident in the Gulf of Mexico insurance rates are volatile

and increasing and some forms of insurance may become entirely unavailable in the future or unavailable on terms

that we or our customers beliese are economically acceptable Reductions in coverage changes in the insurance

markets and accidents affecting our industry may result in further increases in our cost and higher deductibles and

retentions in future years and may also result in reduced activity levels in certain markets Any of these events would

have an adverse impact on our financial performaoce

Our operations are subject to environmental and other laws and regulations that may expose us to

significant liabilities and could reduce our business opportunities and revenues

We are subject to various federal state and local laws and regulations relating to the energy industry in general

and the environment in particular An environmental claim could arise with respect to one or more of our current

businesses products or services or business or property that one of our predecessors owned or used and such

claims could involve material expenditures Generally environmental laws have in recent years become more

stringent and have sought to impose greater liability on larger number of potentially responsible parties The scope

of regulation of our industry and our products and services may increase further following recent events in the Gulf

of Mexico including possible increases in liabilities or funding requirements imposed by governmental agencies In

early 2010 moratorium was issued on new deepwater projects in the Gulf of Mexico Although that moratorium

was recently lifted we cannot anticipate when and to what extent drilling activity in the deepwater Gulf will resume

We also cannot ensure that our future business in the deepwater Gulf if any will be profitable in light of new

regulations that may be promulgated and in light of the current risk environment and insurance markets Further

additional regulations on deepwater drilling elsewhere in the world could be imposed as result of the Deepwater
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Horizon incident and those regulations could limit our business where they are imposed In addition members of

the U.S Congress and the U.S Environmental Protection Agency are reviewing more stringent regulation of

hydraulic fracturing technology which is used in one of our business segments and regulators are investigating

whether any chemicals used in the fracturing process might adversely affect groundwater significant portion of

North American service activity today is directed at prospects that require hydraulic fracturing in order to produce

hydrocarbons Additional regulation could increase the costs of conducting our business and could materially

reduce our business opportunities and revenues if our customers decrease their levels of activity in response to such

regulation

We have significant operations that would be adversely impacted in the event of war political

disruption civil disturbance economic and legal sanctions or changes in global trade policies

Like most multinational oilfield service companies we have operations in certain international areas

including parts of the Middle East Africa Latin America the Asia Pacific region and the FSU that are subject

to risks of war political disruption civil disturbance economic and legal sanctions such as restrictions against

countries that the U.S government may deem to sponsor terrorism and changes in global trade policies Our

operations may be restricted or prohibited in any country in which the foregoing risks occur

In particular the occurrence of
any

of these risks could result in the following events which in turn could

materially and adversely impact our results of operations

disruption of oil and natural gas exploration and production activities

restriction of the movement and exchange of funds

our inability to collect receivables

loss of assets in affected jurisdictions

enactment of additional or stricter U.S government or international sanctions and

limitation of our access to markets for periods of time

In early 2011 our operations in Tunisia Egypt and Libya have been disrupted by the political revolutions and

uprisings in these countries Political disturbances in these countries and elsewhere in the Middle East and

North Africa regions including to lesser extent Yemen and Bahrain are ongoing as of the end of February 2011

and our operations in Libya have not resumed During 2010 these five countries accounted for approximately 3%of

our global revenue In Libya we have evacuated all of our non-Libyan employees and their families

At December 31 2010 we had in Libya inventory property plant and equipment net with carrying value of

approximately $141 million as well as cash accounts receivable and prepaid expenses of appiuximately

$76 million In cases where we must evacuate personnel it may be difficult if not impossible for us to safeguard

and recover our operating assets and our ability to do so will depend on the local turn of events In these areas we

also may not be able to perform the work we are contracted to perform which could lead to forfeiture of

performance bonds We currently have outstanding approximately $19 million of performance bonds related to

contracts in Libya We could suffer material losses with respect to these assets

If political violence were to curtail our activities in other countries in the region from which we derive greater

business such as Saudi Arabia Iraq and Algeria and particularly if political activities were to result in prolonged

violence or civil war these political activities could have material adverse effect on our business in the region

We are involved in several governmental and internal investigations which are costly to conduct have

resulted in loss of revenne and may result in substantial financial penalties

We are currently involved in government and internal investigations involving various areas of our operations

Until 2003 we participated in the United Nations oil-for-food program governing sales of goods and services

into Iraq The U.S Department of Justice DOJ and the SEC have undertaken investigations of our participation

in the oil-for-food program and have subpoenaed certain documents in connection with these investigations We
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have cooperated fully with these investigations We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to

investigate this matter We have begun negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these matters but we

cannot yet anticipate the timing outconie or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations

financial or otherwise

The U.S Department of Commerce Bureau of Industry Security Office of Foreign Assets Control

OFAC DOJ and SEC have undertaken investigations of allegations of improper sales of products and services

by the Company and its subsidiaries in certain sanctioned countries We have cooperated fully with this inves

tigation We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters and to

cooperate fully with these agencies We have begun negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these

matters but we cannot yet anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the

investigation financial or otherwise

In light of this investigation and of U.S and foreign policy environment and the inherent uncertainties

surrounding these countries we decided in September 2007 to direct our foreign subsidiaries to discontinue doing

business in countries that are subject to comprehensive U.S economic and trade sanctions specifically Cuba Iran

and Sudan as well as Syria Effective September 2007 we ceased entering into any new contracts in these countries

and began an orderly discontinuation and winding down of our existing business in these sanctioned countries

Effective March 2008 we substantially completed our winding down of business in these countries We can

complete the withdrawal process only pursuant to licenses issued by OFAC Our remaining activities in Iran Sudan

and Syria include ongoing withdrawal activities such as attempts to collect accounts receivable attempts to settle

tax liabilities or legal claims and attempts to recover or liquidate assets including equipment and funds Certain of

our subsidiaries continue to conduct business in countries such as Myanmar that are subject to more limited

U.S trading sanctions

The DOJ and SEC are investigating our compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act FCPA and

other laws worldwide We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters

and to cooperate fully with the DOJ and SEC As part of our investigations we have uncovered potential violations

of U.S law in connection with activities in West Africa We have begun negotiations with the government agencies

to resolve these matters but we cannot yet anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate

resolution of the investigations financial or otherwise

The DOJ SEC and other agencies and authorities have broad range of civil and criminal penalties they may
seek to impose against corporations and individuals for violations of trade sanctions laws the FCPA and other

federal statutes including but not limited to injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties and modifications to

business practices and compliance programs In recent years these agenciesind authorities have entered into

agreements with and obtained range of penalties against several public corporations and individuals in similar

investigations under which civil and criminal penalties were imposed including in some cases fines and other

penalties and sanctions in the tens and hundreds of millions of dollars These agencies are seeking to impose

penalties against us for past conduct but the ultimate amount of any penalties we may pay currently cannot be

reasonably estimated Under trade sanctions laws the DOJ may also seek to impose modifications to business

practices including immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other limitations that

decrease our business and modifications to compliance programs which may increase compliance costs Any

injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties sanctions or imposed modifications to business practices resulting

from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations In addition our historical activities in

sanctioned countries such as Sudan and Iran could result in certain investors such as government sponsored

pension funds divesting or not investing in our registered shares Based on available information we cannot predict

what if any actions the DOJ SEC or other authorities will take in our situation or the effect any such actions will

have on our consolidated financial position or results of operations To the extent we violated trade sanctions laws

the FCPA or other laws or regulations fines and other penalties may be imposed Because these matters are now

pending before the indicated agencies there can be no assurance that actual fines or penalties if any will not have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition liquidity or results of operations
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To date we have incurred $49 million for costs in connection with our exit from sanctioned countries and

incurred $113 million for legal and professional fees in connection with complying with and conducting these on

going investigations

Our significant operations in foreign countries expose us to currency fluctuation risks or devaluation

portion of our net assets are located outside the U.S and are carried on our books in local currencies

Changes in those currencies in relation to the U.S dollar result in translation adjustments which are reflected as

accumulated other comprehensive income in the shareholders equity section in our Consolidated Balance Sheets

We recognize remeasurement and transactional gains and losses on currencies in our Consolidated Statements of

Income which may adversely impact our results of operations We enter into foreign currency forward contracts

and other derivative instruments as an effort to reduce our exposure to currency fluctuations hosses ci there can he

no assurance that these hedging activities will be effective in reducing or eliminating foreign cunency risks

In certain foreign countries component of our cost structure is denominated in different currency than our

revenues In those cases currency fluctuations could adversely impact our operating margins

In January 2010 the Venezuelan government announced its intention to devalue its
currency and move to two

tier exchange structure The official exchange moved from 2.15 to 2.60 for essential goods and 4.30 for non essential

goods and services In connection with this devaluation we incurred charge of $64 million for the remeasurement of

our net monetary assets denominated in Venezuelan bolivars at the date of the devaluation which was not tax

deductible We also recorded $24 million tax benefit for local Venezuelan inconie tax purposes related to our net

U.S dollar denominated monetary liability position in the country We currently utilize the 4.30 Venezuelan bolivar to

U.S dollar exchange rate At December 31 2010 we had net monetary asset position denominated in Venezuelan

bolivars of approximately $56 million comprised primarily of cash and accounts receivable We are continuing to

explore opportunities to reduce this exposure but should another devaluation occur in the future we may be required to

take further charges related to the remeasurement of our net monetary asset position For example if the Vene7uela

bolivar devalued by an additional 10% in the future we would record devaluation charge of approximately

$6 million Effective January 2011 the Venezuelan government again modified the fixed rate of cxchange

eliminating the two tier structure and establishing 4.30 as the official exchange rate for all goods and services This

modification will not have material impact to our financial position or results of operations

As result of discussions with customer and the economic environment in Venezuela we reviewed how the

dual exchange rate might affect amounts we receive for our U.S dollar denominated receivables in Venezuela We

believe our contracts are legally enforceable and our customers continue to accept our invoices However based on

the current political and economic environment in Venezuela we believe loss is probable Accordingly we

recorded reserve of $32 million against this exposure in the fourth quarter of 2010

Customer credit risks could result in losses

The concentration of our customers in the energy industry may impact our overall exposure to credit risk as

customers may be similarly affected by prolonged changes in economic and industry conditions Those countries

that rely heavily upon income from hydrocarbon exports will be hit particularly hard given the drop in oil prices

Further laws in some jurisdictions in which we operate could make collection difficult or time consuming We

perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and do not generally require collateral in support of our trade

receivables While we maintain reserves for potential credit losses we cannot assure such reserves will be sufficient

to meet write offs of uncollectible receivables or that our losses from such receivables will be consistent with our

expectations

Any capital financing that may be necessary to fund growth may not be available to us at economic

rates

Turmoil in the credit markets and the potential impact on liquidity of major financial institutions may have an

adverse effect on our ability to fund growth opportunities through borrowings under either existing or newly

created instruments in the public or private markets on terms we believe to be reasonable

AR 18



terrorist attack could have material and adverse effect on our business

We operate in many dangerous countries such as Iraq in which acts of terrorism or political violence are

substantial and frequent risk Such acts could result in kidnappings or the loss of life of our employees or

contractors loss of equipment which may or may not be insurable in all cases or cessation of business in an

affected area We cannot be certain that our security efforts will in all cases be sufficient to deter or prevent acts of

political violence or terrorist strikes against us or our customers operations

We have identified material weakness in accounting for income taxes in our internal control over

financial reporting which if not remedied effectively could have further adverse effect on oar share

price

Management through documentation testing and assessment of our internal control over financial reporting

pursuant to the rules promulgated by the SEC under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Item 308 of

Regulation S-K has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting had material weakness in

accounting for income taxes as of December 31 2010 See Item 9A Controls and Procedures If we are unable to

effectively remediate this material weakness in timely manner we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy

and completeness of our financial reports which could have further adverse effect on our share price

In future periods if the process required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act reveals further material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies the correction of any such material weakness or significant deficiency could

require additional remedial measures including additional personnel which could be costly and time consuming If

material weakness exists as of future period year-end including material weakness identified prior to year-end

for which there is an insufficient period of time to evaluate and confirm the effectiveness of the corrections or

related new procedures our management will be unable to report favorably as of such future period year end to the

effectiveness of our control over financial reporting If we are unable to assert that our internal control over financial

reporting is effective in any future periud ur if we cuntinue tu experience material weaknesses iii uur internal

control over financial reporting for accounting for income taxes we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy

and completeness of our financial reports which could have further adverse effect on our share price and

potentially subject us to additional and potentially costly litigation and governmental inquiries/investigations In

March 2011 shareholders filed suit relating to the matters described above In addition the SEC is investigating the

circumstances surrounding the material weakness and related restatement of historical financial statements We are

cooperating with the investigation

Changes in tax laws could adversely impact our results

On June 26 2002 the shareholders and Board of Directors of Weatherford International Inc Weatherford

Delaware approved our corporate reorganization and Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford Bermuda

newly formed Bermuda company became the parent holding company of Weatherford International Inc During

the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction in which Weatherford Bermuda became wholly-owned

subsidiary of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock company Weatherford Switzerland and

holders of our common shares received one registered share of Weatherford Switzerland for each common share of

Weatherford Bermuda that they held We refer to this transaction as the redomestication The realization of the tax

benefit of this reorganization could be impacted by changes in tax laws tax treaties or tax regulations or the

interpretation or enforcement thereof or differing interpretation or enforcement of applicable law by the U.S Inter

nal Revenue Service or other taxing jurisdictions The inability to realize this benefit could have material impact

on our financial statements

The anticipated benefits of moving our principal executive offices to Switzerland may not be realized

and difficulties in connection with moving our principal executive offices could have an adverse effect

on us

In connection with the redomestication we relocated our principal executive offices from Houston Texas to

Geneva Switzerland Most of our executive officers including our Chief Executive Officer and other key decision

makers have relocated or will relocate to Switzerland We may face significant challenges in relocating our other
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employees including corporate support staff are located Employees may be uncertain about their future roles

within our organization as result of the redomestication Management may also be required to devote substantial

time to the redomestication and related matters which could otherwise be devoted to focusing on ongoing business

operations and other initiatives and opportunities In addition we may not realize the benefits we anticipate from the

redomestication including the benefit of moving to location that is more centrally located within our area of

worldwide operations Any such difficulties could have an adverse effect on our business results of operations or

financial condition

The rights of our shareholders are governed by Swiss law and documents following the

redomestication

Following the redomestication the rights of our shareholders are governed by Swiss law and Weatherford

Switzerlands articles of association and organizational regulations The rights of shareholders under Swiss law

differ from the rights of shareholders of companies incorporated in other jurisdictions For example directors of

Weatherford Switzerland may be removed by shareholders with or without cause but such removal requires the vote

of shareholders
holding at least 667A% of the voting rights and the absolute majority of the

par
value of the registered

shares represented at the meeting as well as quorum of at least two-thirds of the registered shares recorded in the

share register

We hold shareholder meetings in Switzerland and our required quorum for those meetings is lower

We hold shareholders meetings in Switzerland which may make attendance in person more difficult for some

investors For shareholders meetings for Weatherford-Switzerland for the transaction of any business other than

removal of director or certain other specified resolutions quorum comprises at least one-third of the registered

shares recorded in the share register and entitled to vote and at least two-thirds of the registered shares recorded in

the share register and entitled to vote for the removal of directors and certain other specified resolutions

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

Our operations are conducted in approximately 100 countries and we have manufacturing facilities and sales

service and distribution locations throughout the world The following table describes our material facilities as of

December 31 2010

Owned Principal Services and Products

Location Leased Offered or Manufactured

North America

Houma Louisiana Owned Cementing products

Houston Texas Owned Sand screens

Huntsville Texas Owned Liner systems and solid expandables

New Brighton Minnesota Owned Water well and industrial screens

Nisku Alberta Canada Owned Reciprocating rod lift

Nisku Alberta Canada Owned Drilling equipment fishing wireline controlled

pressure drilling and testing services

Schriever Louisiana Owned Cementation manufacturing plant and well

construction services

Latin America

Ciudad Del Carmen Campeche Mexico Leased Wireline

Europe/West Africa/FSU

Aberdeen Scotland Leased Expandable slotted tubulars

Langenhagen Germany Leased Manufacturing

Lukhovitsy Russia Owned Pipeline and specialty services

Nizhnevartovsk Russia Owned Drilling sidetracking wireline fishing well

workover and tool rental

Stavanger Norway Leased Casing exit cementation equipment systems

directional drilling and fishing

Middle East/North Africa/Asia

Abu Dhabi UAE Leased Manufacturing

Awjila Libya Leased Warehouse and service

Dongyin China Leased Progressing cavity pumping

Hassi Messaoud Algeria Leased Fishing liner hangers controlled pressure

drilling and testing services

Shifang China Owned Pump jacks and wellhead

Corporate

Geneva Switzerland Leased Headquarters

Houston Texas Leased Corporate offices

Item Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business we become the subject of various claims and litigation We maintain

insurance to cover many of our potential losses and we are subject to various self-retention limits and deductibles

with respect to our insurance

Please see the following

Item Business Other Business Data Federal Regulation and Environmental Matters which is

incorporated by reference into this item

Item 1A Risk Factors We are involved in several govemmental and internal investigations which are

costly to conduct have resulted in loss of revenue and may result in substantial financial penalties which

is incorporated by reference into this item
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 18 Disputes Litigation and Contingencies

Although we are subject to various ongoing items of litigation we do not believe it is probable that any of the

items of litigation to which we are currently subject will result in any material uninsured losses to us It is possible

however an unexpected judgment could be rendered against us in the cases in which we are involved that could be

uninsured and beyond the amounts we currently have reserved and in some cases those losses could be material

Item Rernovdd and Reserved

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our shares are traded under the symbol WFT on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE the Euronext-Paris

exchange and as of November 17 2010 the SIX Swiss Stock Exchange As of March 2011 there were

2803 shareholders of record Additionally there were 55 stockholders of Weatherford International Inc as of the

same date who had not yet exchanged their shares The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the range of

high and low sales prices per share for our stock as reported on the NYSE

Price

High Low

Year ending December 31 2010

First Quarter $20.88 $14.63

Second Quarter 18.80 12.34

Third Quarter 17.60 12.68

Fourth Quarter 22.98 16.70

Year ending December 31 2009

First Quarter $14.47 9.08

Second Quarter 23.75 10.50

Third Quarter 23.00 17.22

Fourth Quarter 20.92 15.43

On March 2011 the closing sales price of our shares as reported by the New York Stock Exchange was

$21.14 per share We have not declared or paid cash dividends on our shares since 1984

Under our restricted share plan employees may elect to have us withhold shares to satisfy minimum statutory

federal state and local tax withholding obligations arising on the vesting of restricted stock awards and exercise of

options When we withhold these shares we are required to remit to the appropriate taxing authorities the market

price of the shares withheld which could be deemed purchase of shares by us on the date of withholding During

the quarter ended December 31 2010 we withheld shares to satisfy these tax withholding obligations as follows

No of Average
Period Shares Price

October 1-October 31 2010 39763 $17.38

November 1-November 30 2010 8951 19.01

December 1-December 31 2010 170573 20.94

Information concerning securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is set forth in

Part III of this report under Item 12d Security Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

which is incorporated by reference into this Item
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Performance Graph

This graph compares the yearly cumulative return on our shares with the cumulative return on the Dow Jones

U.S Oil Equipment Services Index and the Dow Jones U.S Index for the last five years The graph assumes the

value of the investment in our shares and each index was $100 on December 31 2005 The stockholder return set

furth below is riot necessarily indicative of futore perforriiariee The following graph and related information shall

not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC nor shall such information be incorporated by

reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to

the extent that Weatherford specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain selected historical consolidated financial data and should be read in

conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Oper
ations and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data both contained in this report The following

information may not be indicative of our future operating results Results for 2009 2008 and 2007 have been

restated in the following table See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consol

idated Financial Statements Note Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Restated Restated Restated

In thousands except per share amount

Statements of Operations Data

Revenues $10220797 8833005 9600564 7832062 6578928

Operating Income 781453 687864 1955168 1643912 1354687

Income Loss From Continuing

Operations Attributable to

Weatherford 107925 170141 1259424 961926 906106

Basic Earnings Loss Per Share

From Continuing Operations

Attributable To Weatherford 0.15 0.24 1.84 1.42 1.31

Diluted Earnings Loss Per Share

From Continuing Operations

Attributable To Weatherford 0.15 0.24 1.80 1.38 1.28

Balance Sheet Data

Tutal Assets $19131654 $18696690 $16470187 $13208909 $10139248

Long-term Debt 6529998 5847258 4564255 3066335 1564600

Shareholders Equity 9464847 9438373 8128593 7309997 6197837

Cash Dividends Per Share
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations MDA
begins with an executive overview which provides general description of our company today synopsis of

industry market trends insight into managements perspective of the opportunities and challenges we face and our

outlook for 2011 Next we analyze the results of our operations for the last three years including the trends in our

business Then we review our cash flows and liquidity capital resources and contractual commitments We
conclude with an overview of our critical accounting judgments and estimates and summary of recently issued

accounting pronouncem.ents

The Company we us and our refer to Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation

or prior to February 26 2009 to Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company which as of that

date became direct wholly owned subsidiary of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation

in either case on consolidated basis

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

thereto included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Our discussion includes various

forward looking statements about our markets the demand for our products and services and our future results

These statements are based on certain assumptions we consider reasonable For information about these assump
tions you should refer to the section entitled Item Business Forward-Looking Statements

Overview

General

We provide equipment and services used for drilling completion and production of oil and natural
gas

wells

throughout the world We conduct operations in approximately 100 countries and have service and sales locations in

nearly all of the oil and natural gas producing regions in the world Our product offerings can be grouped into ten

service lines drilling services artificial lift systems well constmction completion systems integrated

drilling drilling tools re-entry and fishing stimulation and chemicals services wireline and evaluation

services and 10 pipeline and specialty services

Our operational performance is segmented and reviewed on geographic basis and we report the following

regions as separate distinct reporting segments North America Latin America Europe/West AfricaIFSU

and Middle East/North Africa/Asia

In July 2009 we acquired the Oilfield Services DivisionOFS of TNK-BP for 24.3 million shares valued at

approximately $450 million plus contingent and other consideration During 2010 we settled the working capital

and contingent consideration payment provisions for $44 million and $47 million respectively Through this

transaction we acquired drilling well workover and cementing services operations in West Siberia East Siberia

and the Volga-Urals region
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Industry Trends

Changes in the current price and expected future prices of oil and natural gas influence the level of energy

industry spending Changes in expenditures result in an increased or decreased demand for our products and

services Rig count is an indicator of the level of spending for the exploration for and production of oil and natural

gas reserves The following chart sets forth certain statistics that reflect historical market conditions

North

Henry Hub American Rig International

WTI 0111 Gas2 Count3 Rig Count3

2010 $91.38 $4.41 2108 1118

2009 79.36 5.57 1485 1113

2008 44.60 5.62 2143 1175

Price
per barrel as of December 31 Source Thomson Reuters

Price per MMIBTU as of December 31 Source Thomson Reuters

Average rig count for December Source Baker Hughes Rig Count and other third-party data

Oil prices increased during 2010 ranging from low of $68.01 per barrel in May to high of $91.51 per
barrel

late in December Natural gas prices decreased during 2010 ranging from high of $6.01 MMIBTU in early

January to low of $3.65 MM/BTU late in August Factors influencing oil and natural gas prices during the period

include hydrocarbon inventory levels realized and expected economic growth realized and expected levels of

hydrocarbon demand levels of spare production capacity within the Organization of Petroleum Exporting

Countries OPEC weather and geopolitical uncertainty

Opportunities and Challenges

The nature of our industry offers many opportunities and challenges The cyclicality of the energy industry

impacts the demand for our products and services Certain of our products and services such as our drilling and

evaluation services well installation services and well completion services depend on the level of exploration and

development activity and the completion phase of the well life cycle Other products and services such as our

production optimization and artificial lift systems are dependent on production activity We have created long-

term strategy aimed at growing our businesses servicing our customers and most importantly creating value for

our shareholders The success of our long term strategy will be determined by our ability to manage effectively any

industry cyclicality respond to industry demands and successfully maximize the benefits from our acquisitions

Outlook

We believe the long-term outlook for our businesses is favorable As decline rates accelerate and reservoir

productivity complexities increase our clients will face growing challenges securing desired rates of production growth

These challenges increase our customers requirements for technologies that improve productivity and efficiency and

increase demand for our products and services These phenomena provide us with positive outlook over the longer term

We noted substantial increase in activity in North America during 2010 as compared to 2009 For 2011 we

expect land activity in the U.S will flatten out and we do not expect the market to provide significant volume gains

We anticipate that further strengthening in oil and shale activity in North America will offset reduction in

conventional gas segments

Our assessment of the international market for 2011 is positive The Eastern Hemisphere is beginning its

recoveiy process which has been led by Russia both in volume and price We also have contractual commitments in

hand and have initiated start-ups in Algeria Bangladesh Iraq Kuwait Libya Oman and Turkmenistan Our

expectation is that the current political upheaval in the Middle East and North Africa will be resolved quickly that

the interruption of our business will be brief and that we will not incur substantial loss with respect to our assets

located in or related to these countries However we expect operating results will be negatively impacted in the

near-term Overall our prognosis for Latin America for 2011 is positive Brazil Colombia Argentina and Peru

should have robust growth in 2011 with Brazil and Colombia experiencing the strongest growth In Mexico we

expect activity to gradually improve from the trough levels witnessed during 2010
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The level of improvement in our businesses in 2011 will continue to depend heavily on volume increases and

our ability to further penetrate existing markets with our younger technologies as well as to successfully introduce

these technologies to new markets In addition our ability to grow our business aggressively will rely on our

continued demonstration of high level of operational efficacy for our clients including the efficiency of

mobilization related to planned startups The recruitment training and retention of personnel will also be

critical factor in growing our businesses The continued strength of the industry will be highly dependent on many
external factors such as world economic and political conditions member country quota compliance within OPEC

and weather conditions including the factors described under Forward-Looking Statements

Results of Operations

The following charts contain selected financial data comparing our consolidated and segment results from

operations for 2010 2009 and 2008 Results for 2009 and 2008 have been restated in the follo\ving table See

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note

Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Restated Restated

In thousands except percentages and per share

data

Revenues

North America 4166881 $2762264 $4460147

Middle East/North Africa/Asia 2450503 2372798 2391520

Europe/West Africa/FSU 1984429 1618664 1539190

Latin America 1618984 2079279 1209707

10220797 8833005 9600564

Operating Income Expense

North America 695607 190877 1105924

Middle East/North Africa/Asia 264647 440371 563438

Europe/West AfricaJFSU 241298 224666 374888

Latin America 53843 279888 279646

Research and Development 214481 194650 192659

Corporate 172918 176995 136212

Revaluation of Contingent Consideration 12597 24273

Exit and Restructuring 99140 100566 39857

781453 687864 1955168

Interest Expense Net 405785 366748 243679

Bond Tender Premium 53973

Devaluation of Venezuelan Bolivar 63859

Other Net 53247 37633 44956

Effective Tax Rate 145.5% 30.8% 22.4%

Net Income per Diluted Share 0.15 0.24 1.80

Depreciation and Amortization 1.047.334 908.897 73 1.808
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Revenues

The following chart contains consolidated revenues by product line for 2010 2009 and 2008

Year Ended

December 31

2010 2009 2008

Drilling Services 17% 16% 16%

Artificial Lift Systems 15 14 17

Well Construction 14 15 15

Integrated Drilling 12 14

Stimulation Chemicals 12

Completion Systems 11 10

Drilling Tools 11

Wireline

Re-entry Fishing

Pipeline Specialty Services

Total 100% 100% 100%

Consolidated revenues increased $1388 million or 16% in 2010 as compared to 2009 North American

revenue increased $1405 million or 51% in 2010 when compared to the prioryear on 45% increase in rig count

Intemational revenues were essentially flat compared to 2009 An 11% increase in Eastern Hemisphere revenues

was offset by decline in Latin America Our stimulation and chemicals artificial lift and drilling services product

lines were strong contributors to the year-over-year
increase

Consolidated revenues decreased $768 million or 8% in 2009 as compared to 2008 against 31% decrease in

rig count activity This decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the significant declines experienced in

North America International revenues increased $930 million or 18% in 2009 as compared to 2008 Our Latin

American region was the largest contributor to our year-over-year international revenue growth This international

growth occurred despite an 8% decline in international rig count From service line perspective our integrated

drilling service line experienced the strongest growth in 2009

Operating Income

Consolidated operating income increased $94 million or 14% in 2010 as compared to 2009 Our operating

segments contributed $120 million of incremental operating income during 2010 as compared to the prior year This

incremental income was partially offset by an increase in research and development expenditures of $20 million

over 2009 Research and development expenditures represented consistent 2% of revenues in both years The

revaluation of contingent consideration associated with the OFS acquisition offset $1 million of the incremental

operating income contributed by our operating segments as we recognized gain of$l3 million in 2010 compared

to gain of $24 million in 2009

Consolidated operating income decreased $1267 million or 65% in 2009 as compared to 2008 Our operating

segments accounted for $1188 million of this decrease In addition exit and restructuring charges during 2009

increased $61 million and corporate expenditures increased $41 million compared to 2008 The increase in

corporate expenses was primarily attributable to higher employee compensation costs professional fees and costs

related to acquisitions which were capitalized in 2008 and expensed in 2009 due to the adoption of new accounting

guidance related to business combinations and settlement of certain legal disputes In addition 2009 includes costs

associated with business process optimization initiatives We also augmented our compliance infrastructure with

increased staff and more rigorous policies and training of our employees regarding compliance with applicable anti

corruption laws trade sanction laws and import/export laws Also 2009 results include $24 million related to gain

recorded in connection with the revaluation of contingent consideration included as part
of the acquisition of OFS
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The $99 million of exit and restructuring costs incurred during 2010 include $38 million charge related to

our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP which was frozen on March 31 2010 $61 million for

severance and facility closure costs and Hi $7 million for legal and professional fees incurred in connection with

our on-going investigations These charges were offset by $7 million benefit related to the reversal of prior cost

accruals for our exit from sanctioned countries

We incurred exit and restructuring charges during 2009 of $101 million which was comprised of $45 million

for legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going investigations $52 million for

severance and facility closure costs and Hi $4 million for unusable assets and cost accruals in certain sanctioned

countries

Exit and restructuring charges during 2008 included $47 million for legal and professional fees incurred in

connection with our on-going investigations ii $18 million for severance costs incurred associated with

restructuring activities and Hi $56 million for costs incurred in connection with our withdrawal from sanctioned

countries These charges were partially offset by an $81 million gain recognized in the second quarter of 2008 as

result of selling our 50% interest in subsidiary we control to Qatar Petroleum for cash consideration of

$113 million

Devaluation of Venezuelan Bolivar

In January 2010 the Venezuelan govemment announced its intention to devalue its currency and move to two

tier exchange structure The official exchange moved from 2.15 to 2.60 for essential goods and to 4.30 for non

essential goods and services In connection with this devaluation we incurred charge of $64 million in the first

quarter of 2010 for the remeasurement of our net monetary assets denominated in the Venezuelan bolivar at the date

of the devaluation Effective January 2011 the Venezuelan govemment again modified the fixed rate of

exchange eliminating the two tier structure and establishing 4.30 as the official exchange rate for all goods and

services This modification will not have material impact to our financial position or results of operations

Interest Expense Net

Interest expense net increased $39 million or 11% in 2010 compared to 2009 The increase in interest expense

was primarily attributable to an overall increase in our long-term debt balance when compared to 2009 as we

refinanced lower-rate short-term debt with higher interest bearing long-term debt In addition in September 2010

we completed $1.4 billion long-term debt offering and in October 2010 we completed tender offer

repurchasing $700 million of our senior notes due 2012 and2013 This activity temporarily increased the balance

of our borrowings and contributed to the increase in interest expense

Interest expense net increased $123 million or 51% in 2009 compared to 2008 The increase in interest

expense was primarily attributable to an overall increase in our long term debt balance during the period We issued

$1.5 billion in senior notes in March 2008 and an additional $1.25 billion of senior notes in January 2009 This

increase was partially offset by lower short-term borrowing rates and balances during the comparable period The

incremental borrowings added were primarily used to fund capital expenditures and to fund acquisitions

Bond Tender Premium

In September 2010 we commenced cash tender offer for up to $700 million aggregate principal amount of

specified series of our outstanding debt Pursuant to the tender-offer terms in September 2010 we repurchased

$167 million of our 6.625% senior notes due 2011 and incurred an expense of $11 million for the premium we paid

on the repurchase In October 2010 we completed the tender offer by repurchasing $327 million and $206 million of

our 5.95% senior notes due 2012 and 5.15% senior notes due 2013 respectively We paid $44 million premium on

these bonds tendered and incurred charge of $43 million in the fourth quarter of 2010

Other Expense Net

Other expense net increased $16 million or 42% in 2010 compared to 2009 The increase was mostly due to an

increase in foreign currency exchange losses incurred as the result of the weakening of foreign currencies against
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the U.S dollar Other expense net decreased $7 million or 16% in 2009 compared to 2008 The decrease was

primarily due to decline in foreign currency exchange losses

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rates were 145.5% in 2010 30.8% in 2009 and 22.4% in 2008 The increase in our effective

tax rate during 2010 was primarily due to tax expense related to the reorganization of our operations in

Latin America minimum tax in Mexico curtailment expense on our SERP for which no related tax benefit

was recorded and changes in our geographic earnings mix all of which are partially offset by tax benefit related to

the devaluation uf the Venezuelan bolivar The increase in our effective tax rate during 2009 was primarily due to

minimum tax in Mexico and changes in our geographic earnings mix

Segment Results

North America

North American revenues increased $1405 million or 51% in the current year as compared to the prior year

and outpaced 45% increase in average North American rig count over the comparable period The strong

performance in the U.S land market an overall increase in North American drilling activity and price improve

ments more than offset weak Gulf of Mexico environment Revenues from our stimulation and chemicals

artificial lift and drilling services product lines were the strongest contributors to our year-over-year increase in

revenue

Revenues in our North American segment decreased $1698 million or 38% in 2009 as compared to 2008 on

42% decline in the average rig count in North America over the comparable period The decrease in revenues was

the result of the steep decline in drilling activity both in Canada and the United States and the significant declines in

pricing experienced in the first half of 2009

Operating income increased $505 million or 264% in 2010 as compared to the prior year Operating margins

were 17% in 2010 compared to 7% in 2009 The increase in operating income and margins is attributable to

increased onshore activity in the U.S the realization of prior cost reduction efforts more favorable sales mix and

improved pricing

Operating income decreased $915 million or 83% in 2009 compared to 2008 Operating margins were 7%

and 25% in 2009 and 2008 respectively The significant reduction in drilling activity in the region and pricing

declines were the primary reasons for the deterioration in margins and operating income

Middle East/North Africa/Asia

Middle East/North Africa/Asia revenues increased $78 million or 3% in 2010 as compared to 2009 with 7%
increase in rig count over the comparable period Within the region our integrated drilling product line continued as

the strongest performer from service line perspective

Middle East/North Africa/Asia revenues decreased $19 million or 1% in 2009 as compared to 2008 on 7%

decline in rig count over the comparable period Integrated drilling and drilling services product lines were the

strongest performers from service line perspective

Operating income decreased $176 million or 4U% during 201U compared to the prior year Operating margins

decreased from 19% in 2009 to 11% in 2010 The decline in operating income and margins was primarily the result

of higher mobilization costs and operating delays related to operations in certain countries full years impact of

lower pricing and less favorable sales mix

Operating income decreased $123 million or 22% during 2009 compared to the prior year Operating margins

were 19% and 24% in 2009 and 2008 respectively The deterioration in operating income and margins during 2009

was primarily the result of delays in startups and deliveries as well as pricing declines experienced in the region
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Europe/West Africa/FSU

Revenues in our Europe/West AfricaJFSU segment increased $366 million or 23% in 2010 compared to the

prior year with 34% rig count increase over the comparable period The increase in revenue was largely

attributable to our acquisition of OFS in July 2009

Revenues in our Europe/West Africa/FSU segment increased $79 million or 5% in 2009 compared to 2008

against 16% rig count decrease over the comparable period Our acquisition of OFS in July 2009 was the primary

driver of the increase

Opcrating income increased $17 million or 7% during the current year compared to the prior year Operating

margins were 12% in 2010 and 14% in 2009 The decline in operating margins was primarily due to $6 million

one-time depreciation charge as result of finalizing third-party asset valuations in connection with the OFS

acquisition higher than usual year-end inventory write-offs pricing declines and changes in sales mix over the

comparable period

Operating income decreased $15U million or 40% during 2UU9 compared to 20013 Operating margins were

14% in 2009 and 24% in 2008 The decline in operating income and operating margins was primarily due to activity

and pricing declines experienced in the region in 2009

Latin America

Revenues in our Latin American segment decreased $460 million or 22% in 2010 as compared to 2009

against an average rig count increase of 8% over the comparable period The decline in revenue was due to reduced

project activity in Mexico while Brazil and Colombia posted strong operational results partially offsetting the

decline in Mexico

Revenues in our Latin American segment increased $870 million or 72% in 2009 as compared to the prior

year against an average rig count decrease of 7% over the comparable period Mexico was the strongest contributor

to revenue growth From service line perspective our integrated drilling and stimulation and chemicals service

lines experienced the strongest growth in 2009

Operating income decreased $226 million or 81% in 2010 over 2009 Operating margins decreased from 14%

in the prior year to 3% in the current year
The decline in operating income and operating margins is attributable to

the reduced scale of project work in Mexico and the revisions to our profitability estimates on project management

contracts in the country During the quarter ended September 30 2010 we incurred $76 million charge for

revisions to our profitability estimates on our project management contracts in Mexico as the client requested

slowdown in drilling activity to near zero while they re-evaluated the pace of drilling and capital expenditures in the

current year As result the contracts will take longer to complete than originally estimated In addition

$32 million reserve was taken against accounts receivable balances in Venezuela in light of the countrys economic

prognosis

Operating income was relatively flat in 2009 as compared to 2008 and operating margins decreased from 23%

in 2008 to 14% in 2009 significant change in product mix together with unforeseen delays shifts in customer

focus and market declines in Venezuela Argentina and Colombia negatively impacted margins In addition

weather issues and reduction in gas activity in Mexico contributed to the decline in margins

Discontinued Operation

We finalized the divestiture of our discontinued operation consisting of our oil and gas development and

production company during the second quarter of 2008 We recorded gain of $1 million net of taxes in

connection with the finalization of the divestiture For the full
year

of 2008 we had loss from our discontinued

operation net of taxes of $13 million which included approximately $21 million incurred in connection with the

settlement of legal dispute regarding the business This loss was partially offset by the gain recognized in the

second quarter of 2008
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Equity Investment Acquisition

We acquired 33% ownership interest in Premier Business Solutions PBS in June 2007 for approximately

$330 million PBS conducts business in Russia and is an electric submersible pump manufacturer In January 2008

we sold our electrical submersible pumps product line to PBS and received combination of cash and an additional

equity investment in PBS in consideration of the sale This transaction increased our ownership percentage to

38.5% In September 2009 we converted $38 million note plus accrued interest due from PBS for an additional

equity investment Our ownership percentage was unchanged as the other joint venture partner also converted its

notes receivable for an additional equity investment

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

Our sources of available liquidity include cash and cash equivalent balances cash generated from operations

and committed availabilities under bank lines of credit We also historically have accessed banks for short-term

Inans frnm uncommitted borrnwing arrangements and the capital markets with debt equity and convertible bond

offerings and may from time to time dispose of businesses or capital assets that are no longer core to our long-term

growth strategy

Committed Borrowing Facility

Effective October 15 2010 we entered into new unsecured revolving credit agreement the Credit

Agreement which replaced our previous agreements scheduled to mature in May 2011 The Credit Agreement can

be used for combination of borrowings support for our commercial paper program and issuances of letters of

credit At December 31 2010 the Credit Agreement allowed for aggregate availability of $1.75 billion with an

October 2013 maturity date subject to extension There were no outstanding borrowings on this facility at

December 31 2010

Consistent with our prior facilities the Credit Agreement requires us to maintain debt-to-capitalization ratio

of less than 60% and contains other covenants and representations customary for an investment-grade commercial

credit Our debt-to-capitalization ratio was approximately 42% at December 31 2010 which is in compliance with

these covenants

The following is recap of our availability under the Credit Agreement at December 31 2010 in millions

Facility $1750

Less uses of facility

Amount drawn

Commercial paper

Letters of credit 64

Availability $1686

Commercial Paper

We have $1.5 billion commercial
paper program under which we may from time to time issue short-term

unsecured notes Our commercial
paper issuances are supported by the Credit Agreement

Accounts Receivable Factoring

We have entered into an accounts receivable factoring program to sell accounts receivable related to Latin

America to third party financial institutions We sold approximately $395 million under this program during 2010

We received cash totaling $363 million and recognized loss of $10 million on these sales These transactions

qualified for sale accounting under the accounting standards The remaining amounts due to us will be paid as the

third party financial institution collects on the receivables These deferred amounts are recorded as Other Current

Assets in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet The proceeds received on the initial sale and $16 million for
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the collection of deferred amounts through December 31 2010 are included in operating cash flows in our

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Secured Loan Agreement

In June 2010 we entered into secured loan agreement with third-party financial institution and received

proceeds of $180 million The note bears interest at rate of 4.8% and will be repaid in monthly installments over

seven years The loan is secured by assets located in the United States and is included in long-term debt on our

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

Cash Requirements

During 2011 we anticipate our cash requirements will include interest payments on our outstanding debt the

payment of $183 million of senior notes due in the fourth quarter of 2011 working capital needs and capital

expenditures and may include opportunistic business acquisitions We anticipate funding these requirements with

cash generated from operatipns and if necessary with availability under the Credit Agreement or with an issuance

of commercial paper

Capital expenditures during the year ended December 31 2010 were $977 million We estimate our capital

expenditures for 2011 will be approximately $1.4 billion We are projecting higher capital expenditures during 2011

to support anticipated near-term growth

From time to time we acquire businesses or technologies or enter into joint ventures to increase our range of

products and services expand our geographic scope or otherwise enhance our businesses During the year ended

December 31 2010 we used $146 million in cash for business and technology acquisitions which includes our

payment of $47 million to settle contingent consideration terms and $44 million paid in accordance with the

working capital adjustment provisions associated with our 2009 OFS acquisition Consideration for the 2010

acquisitions also included the issuance of approximately two million shares valued at approximately $28 million

From time to time we also divest of businesses or capital assets when we believe they are no longer core to our long-

term growth strategy or when combining those businesses with joint venture partner presents us with strategic

opportunity In 2010 we received $197 million in cash from sales of assets and businesses

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and contingent commitments by period The obliga

tions we pay in future periods may vary due to certain assumptions including the duration of our obligations and

anticipated actions by third parties

Payments Due by Period

2012 and 2014 and

2011 2013 2015 Thereafter Total

In millions

Short-term debt 18 18

Long-term debta 207 862 45 5578 6692

Interest on long-term debt 448 837 777 4326 6388

Noncancellable operating leases 116 149 79 188 532

Purchase obligations 260
______ _______

260

$1049 $1848 $901 $10092 $13890

Amounts represent the expected cash payments for our total debt and do not include any unamortized discounts

or deferred gains on terminated interest rate swap agreements

Due to the uncertainty with respect to the timing of future cash flows associated with our unrecognized tax

benefits at December 31 2010 we are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement

with the respective taxing authorities Therefore $84 million in unrecognized tax benefits including interest and

penalties have been excluded from the contractual obligations table above
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We have defined benefit pension plans covering certain of our U.S and international cmployees that provide

various pension benefits During 2010 we contributed approximately $8 million towards those plans and paid out

benefits directly of approximately $33 million For 2011 we anticipate funding $8 million through cash flows from

operating activitics

Senior Notes and Bond Tender

In September 2010 we completed $1.4 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $800 million of

5.125% Senior Notçs due in 2020 5.125% Senior Notes and ii $600 million of 6.75% Senior Notes due in 2040

6.75% Senior Notes Net proceeds of $1 .386 billion werc used to fund our bond tender ollcr that commenced in

September 2010 and repay short-term bontwings on our revolving credit facilities

In September 2010 we commenced cash tender offcr for up to $700 million aggreFate principal amount of

specified scrics ol our outstanding debt Pursuant to the tenderoffer terms iii September 2010 we repurchased

$167 million of our 6.625% senior notes due 2011 and incurred an expense
of $11 million for the premium we paid

on the repurchase

In October 2010 we completed the tender offer by repurchasing $327 million and $206 million of our

5.95% senior notes due 2012 and 5.15% senior notes due 2013 respectively We paid $44 million premium on

these bonds tendered and incurred charge of $43 million in the fourth quarter of 2010

In January 2009 we completed $1.25 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $1 billion of

9.625% Senior Notes due in 2019 9.625% Senior Notes and $250 million of 9.875% Senior Notes due in

2039 9.875% Senior Notes Net proceeds of $1.23 billion were used to repay short-term borrowings and for

general corporate purposes

In March 2008 we completed $1.5 billion long term debt offering comprised of $500 million of

5.15% Senior Notes due in 2013 5.15% Senior Notes $500 million of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2018

6.00% Senior Notes and Hi $500 million of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 7.00% Senior Notes Net

proceeds of $1.47 billion were used to repay short-term borrowings and for general corporate purposes including

capital expenditures and business acquisitions

Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate swaps to help mitigate exposures related to interest rate movements Amounts paid or

received upon termination of the interest rate swaps accounted for as fair value hedges represent the fair value of the

agreements at the time of termination and are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt

These amounts are being amortized as reduction in the case of gains or as an increase in the case of losses to

interest expense over the remaining term of the debt As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had net unamortized

gains of $55 million and $68 million respectively associated with interest rate swap terminations

Cash Flow Hedges

In 2008 we entered into interest rate derivative instruments to hedge projected exposures to interest rates in

anticipation of debt offering Those hedges were terminated at the time of the issuance of the debt and the loss on

these hedges is being amortized from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income to interest expense over the

remaining term of the debt As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had net unamortized losses of $13 million

associated with our cash flow hedge terminations

Other Derivative Instruments

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had foreign currency forward and option contracts with notional

amounts aggregating $925 million and $1062 million respectively which were entered into to hedge exposure to

currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies including but not limited to the British pound sterling the

Canadian dollar the euro and the Norwegian krone The total estimated fair value of these contracts and amounts

owed associated with closed contracts resulted in net liability of approximately $14 million and $9 million at
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December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the

changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the

Canadian dollar At December 31 2010 and 2009 we had notional amounts outstanding of $215 million and

$263 million respectively The total estimated fair value of these contracts at December 31 201 and 2009 resulted

in liability of $35 million and $26 million respectively These derivative instruments were not designated as

hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings

Warrants

At December 31 2010 we had outstanding warrants to purchase up to 12.9 million of our shares at price of

$15.00 per
share The warrants remain exercisable until February 28 2012 and are subject to adjustment for changes

in our capital structure or the issuance of dividends in cash securities or property Upon exercise by the holders

settlement may occur through physical delivery net share settlement net cash settlement or combination of those

methods The net cash settlement option upon exercise is at our sole discretion

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Guarantees

During the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction that changed our place of incorporation from

Bermuda to Switzerland new Swiss corporation named Weatherford International Ltd was formed and is now

the ultimate parent Weatherford Switzerland of the Weatherford group and guarantees the obligations of

Weatherford International Ltd incorporated in Bermuda Weatherford Bermuda and Weatherford International

Inc incorporated in Delaware Weatherford Delaware noted below

The following obligations of Weatherford Delaware were guaranteed by Weatherford Bermuda at

December 31 2010 and 2009 the 6.625% Senior Notes ii the 5.95% Senior Notes iii the 6.35% Senior

Notes and iv the 6.80% Senior Notes

The following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware at Decem

ber 31 2009 the revolving credit facilities ii the 4.95% Senior Notes Hi the 5.50% Senior Notes iv the

6.50% Senior Notes the 5.15% Senior Notes vi the 6.00% Senior Notes vii the 7.00% Senior Notes

vHi the 9.625% Senior Notes ix the 9.875% Senior Notes and issuances of notes under the commercial paper

program

In September 2010 Weatherford Bermuda issued SUU million of 3.l2Sc Senior Notes due 2020 and

$600 million of 6.75% Senior Notes due 2040 both of which are guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware As result

of these transactions the following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware

at December 31 2010 the revolving credit facility the 4.95% Senior Notes Hi the 5.50% Senior Notes

iv the 6.50% Senior Notes the 5.15% Senior Notes vi the 6.00% Senior Notes vH the 7.00% Senior Notes

viii the 9.625% Senior Notes ix the 9.875% Senior Notes the 5.125% Senior Notes xi the 6.75% Senior

Notes and xii issuances of notes under the commercial paper program

Letters of Credit

We execute letters of credit in the normal course of business While these obligations are not normally called

these obligations could be called by the beneficiaries at any time before the expiration date should we breach certain

contractual or payment obligations As of December 31 2010 we had $425 million of letters of credit and bid and

performance bonds outstanding consisting of $361 million outstanding under various uncommitted credit facilities

and $64 million letters of credit outstanding under our committed facility If the beneficiaries called these letters of

credit the called amount would become an on-balance sheet liability and our available liquidity would be reduced

by the amount called To the extent we are successful in being awarded large contracts in the future our

requirements for posting letters of credit and bid and performance bonds could increase
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Critical Accountiag Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operation is based upon our consolidated

financial statements We prepare these financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles As such we are required to make certain estimates judgments and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the periods presented We base our estimates on historical experience available information and

various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances On an on going basis we evaluate

our estimates however actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

The accounting policies we believe require managements most difficult subjective or complex judgments and are

the most critical to our reporting of results of operations and financial position are as follows

Business Conthinations and Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in connection with business combinations represent the excess of

consideration over the fair value of tangible net assets acquired Certain assumptions and estimates are employed in

determining the fair value of assets acquired the fair value of liabilities assumed as well as in determining the

allocation of goodwill to the appropriate reporting unit

We perform an impairment test for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets annually as of October or

earlier if indicators of potential impairment exist

We have indefinite-lived intangible assets totaling $19 million and $20 million as of December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively Our impairment test for indefinite-lived intangible assets involves the comparison of the fair

value of the intangible asset and its carrying value We have determined that no impairment exists related to these

assets

We have goodwill totaling $4.2 billion at both December 31 2010 and 2009 Goodwill impairment is evaluated

using two-step process The first step of the goodwill impairment test involves comparison of the fair value of

each of our reporting units with their carrying values Our reporting units are based on our regional structure and

consist of the United States Canada Latin America Europe West Africa FSU Middle East/North Africa and Asia

Pacific If the carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds its fair value the second step
of the goodwill impairment

test shall be performed The second step compares the implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill to the

carrying amount of its goodwill to measure the amount of impairment loss

The fair value of our reporting units are determined using discounted cash flows using discount rate adjusted

for the credit risk of the regional reporting unit tested Certain estimates and judgments are required in the

application of these fair value models The discounted cash flow analysis consists of estimating the future revenue

operating margins capital expenditures working capital and cash flows that are directly associated with each of our

reporting units

Many of the assumptions used in our discounted cash flow analysis are based upon our annual financial

forecast This annual planning process takes into consideration many factors including historical results and

operating performance related industry trends pricing strategies customer analysis operational issues competitor

analysis and marketplace data among others Assumptions are also made for growth rates for periods beyond the

financial forecast period Our estimates of fair value are sensitive to changes in all of these variables certain of

which relate to conditions outside our control If
any one of the above assumptions changes or fails to materialize

the resulting decline in our estimated fair value could result in an impairment charge to goodwill associated with the

applicable reporting unit

None of our reporting units failed the first step of our impairment test during 2010 In addition all reporting

units fair values were substantially in excess of their carrying value with the exception of the FSU and West Africa

reporting units These reporting units had an excess of fair value over carrying value of approximately 20% Our

FSU and West Africa reporting units have approximately $300 million and $75 million of goodwill respectively
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Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets which includes property plant and equipment and definite lived intangibles comprise

significant amount of our assets In accounting for long-lived assets we must make estimates about the expected

useful lives of the assets and the potential for impairment based on the fair value of the assets and the cash flows they

are expected to generate The value of the long-lived assets is then amortized over its expected useful life change

in the estimated useful lives of our long-lived assets would have an impact on our results of operations We estimate

the useful lives of our long lived asset groups as follows

Useful Lives

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10-40 years or lease term

Rental and service equipment 2-20 years

Machinery and other 12 years

Intangible assets 2-20 years

In estimating the useful lives of our property plant and equipment we rely primarily on our actual experience

with the same or similarassets The useful lives of our intangible assets are determined by the years over which we

expect the assets to generate benefit based on legal contractual or regulatory terms

Long-lived assets to be held and used by us are reviewed to determine whether any events or changes in

circumstances indicate that we may not be able to recover the carrying amount of the asset Factors that might

indicate potential impairment may include but are not limited to significant decreases in the market value of the

long-lived asset significant change in the long-lived assets physical condition the introduction of competing

technologies legal challenges change in industry conditions or reduction in cash flows associated with the use

of the long-lived asset If these or other factors exist that indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be

recoverable we determine whether an impairment has occurred through the use of an undiscounted cash flow

analysis The undiscounted cash flow analysis consists of estimating the future cash flows that are directly

associated with and expected to arise from the use and eventual disposition of the asset over its remaining useful life

These cash flows are inherently subjective and require significant estimates based upon historical experience and

future expectations such as budgets and internal projections If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the

carrying value of the long-lived asset an impairment has occurred and we recognize loss for the difference

between the carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the asset The fair value of the asset is measured using

market prices or in the absence of market prices is based on an estimate of discounted cash flows Cash flows are

generally discounted at an interest rate commensurate with our weighted average cost of capital for similarasset

Pension and Other Postretiretnent Benefits

We recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit pension or other postretirement benefit

plan as an asset or liability in the financial statements measure plan assets and obligations as of the end of our fiscal

year and recognize gains/losses prior service credits/costs and transition assets/obligations in accumulated other

comprehensive income until they are recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost

Amounts recognized in the financial statements are determined on an actuarial basis Two of the more critical

assumptions in the actuarial calculatinns are the discount rate for determining the current value of plan benefits and

the expected rate of return on plan assets Discount rates are based on the yields of government bonds or high quality

corporate bonds in the respective country or economic market The expected long-term rates of return on plan assets

are based on combination of historical experience and anticipated future retums in each of the asset categories As

we have both domestic and intemational plans the assumptions though the same in nature are based on varying

factors specific to each particular country or economic environment Changes in any of the assumptions used could

impact our projected benefit obligations and benefit costs as well as other pension and postretirement benefit

calculations
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Due to the significance of the discount rates and expected long-term rates of return the following sensitivity

analysis demonstrates the effect that 50 basis point change in those assumptions will have on annual pension

expense

Increase Decrease of Annual

Pension Expense

50 Basis Point 50 Basis Point

Increase Decrease

In millions

Discount rate $0.1 $1.5

Expected long-term rate of return 0.5 0.5

Percentage of Completion

Revenue from longrterm contracts primarily for our integrated project management services is reported on

the percentage-of-completion method of accounting This method of accounting requires us to calculate contract

profit to be recognized in each reporting period for each contract based upon our projections of future outcomes

which include

estimates of the total cost to complete the project

estimates of project schedule and completion date

estimates of the extent of progress toward completion and

amounts of any change orders or claims included in revenue

Measurements of progress are generally output based related to physical progress At the outset of each

contract we prepare detailed analysis of our estimated cost to complete the project Risks related to service

delivery usage productivity and other factors are considered in the estimation process
Our personnel periodically

evaluate the estimated costs claims change orders and percentage of completion at the contract level The

recording of profits and losses on long-term contracts requires an estimate of the total profit or loss over the life of

each contract This estimate requires consideration of total contract value change orders and claims less costs

incurred and estimated costs to complete There are many factors that impact future costs including but not limited

to weather inflation labor and community disruptions timely availability of materials productivity and other

factors as outlined in our Risk Factors During the quarter ended September 30 2010 we incurred $76 million

charge for revisions to our profitability estimates on our project management contracts in Mexico as the client

requested slowdown in drilling activity to near zero while they re-evaluated the
pace

of drilling and capital

expenditures in the current year As result the contracts will take longer to complete than originally estimated

Anticipated losses on contracts are recorded in full in the period in which they become evident Profits are recorded

based upon the total estimated contract profit times the current percentage complete for the contract

Income Taxes

We take into account the differences between the financial statement treatment and tax treatment of certain

transactions Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective

tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect of

change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date Our effective

tax rates for 2010 2009 and 2008 were 145.5% 30.8% and 22.4% respectively
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We recognize the impact of an uncertain tax position taken or expected to be taken on an income tax return in

the financial statements at the largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the

relevant taxing authority

We operate in approximately 100 countries through various legal entities As result we are subject to

numerous domestic and foreign tax jurisdictions and tax agreements and treaties among the various taxing

authorities Our operations in these jurisdictions are taxed on various bases income before taxes deemed profits

which is generally determined using percentage of revenues rather than profits withholding taxes based on

revenue and other alternative minimum taxes The calculation of our tax liabilities involves consideration of

uncertainties in the application and interpretation of complex tax regulations in multitude of jurisdictions across

our global operations We recognize potential liabilities and record tax liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in

the U.S and other tax jurisdictions based on oui estimate of whether and the c\tent to which additional taxes will

be due The tax liabilities are reflected net of realized tax loss carryforwards We adjust these reserves upon specific

events however due to the complexity or some of these uncertainties the ultimate resolution may result in

payment that is different from our current estimate of the tax liabilities If our estimate of tax liabilities proves to be

less than the ultimate assssment an additional charge to expense would result If payment of these amounts

ultimately proves to be less than the recorded amounts the reversal of the liabilities would result in tax benefits

being recognized in the period when the contingency has been resolved and the liabilities are no longer necessary

Changes in tax laws regulations agreements and treaties foreign currency exchange restrictions or our level of

operations or profitability in each taxing jurisdiction could have an impact upon the amount of income taxes that we

provide during any given year

Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets

We record valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of our deferred tax assets when it is more likely

than not that portion or all of the deferred tax assets will expire before realization of the benefit or that future

deductibility is not probable The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate

sufficient taxable income of the appropriate character and in the related jurisdiction in the future In evaluating our

ability to recover our deferred tax assets we consider reasonably available positive and negative evidence including

our past operating results the existence of cumulative losses in the most recent years and our forecast of future

taxable income In estimating future taxable income we develop assumptions including the amount of future state

federal and international pretax operating income the reversal of temporary differences and the implementation of

feasible and prudent tax planning strategies These assumptions require significant judgment

We have identified various domestic and international tax planning strategies that we would implement if

necessary to enable the realization of our deferred tax assets however when the likelihood of the realization of

existing deferred tax assers changes adjustments to the valuation allowance are charged to oui income tax provision

in the period in which the determination is made

As of December 31 2010 our net deferred tax assets were $266 million before related valuation allowance of

$103 million As of December 31 2009 our net deferred tax assets were $314 million before related valuation

allowance of $70 million

For more comprehensive list of our accounting policies see Item Financial Statements and Supple

mentary Data Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note

New Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an update to existing guidance on revenue

recognition for arrangements with multiple deliverables This update will allow companies to allocate consideration

received for qualified separate deliverables using estimated selling price for both delivered and undelivered items

when vendor-specific objective evidence or third-party evidence is unavailable Additional disclosures discussing

the nature of multiple element arrangements the types of deliverables under the arrangements the general timing of

their delivery and significant factors and estimates used to determine estimated selling prices are required We will

adopt this update for new revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified beginning January 2011 We

AR-39



do not expect the provisions of this update to have material impact on our condensed consolidated financial

statements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are currently exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency and changes in interest rates From

time to time we may enter into derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk

discussion of our market risk exposure
in these financial instruments follows

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We operate in virtually every oil and natural gas exploration and production region in the world In some parts

of the world such as the Middle East and Southeast Asia the currency of our primary economic environment is the

U.S dollar We use this as our functional currency In other parts of the world we conduct our business in currencies

other than the U.S dollar and the functional currency is the applicable local currency In those countries in which we

operate in the local currency the effects of foreign currency fluctuations are largely mitigated because local

expenses of such foreign operations are also generally denominated in the same currency

In January 2010 the Venezuelan government announced its intention to devalue its
currency and move to two

tier exchange structure The official exchange rate moved from 2.15 to 2.60 for essential goods and from 2.15 to

4.30 for non-essential goods and services Our Venezuelan entities maintain the U.S dollar as their functional

currency In connection with this devaluation we incurred charge of $64 million for the remeasurement of our net

monetary assets denominated in Venezuelan bolivars at the date of the devaluation which was not tax deductible in

Venezuela We also recorded $24 million tax benefit for local Venezuelan income tax purposes related to our net

U.S dollar-denominated monetary liability position in the country As of December 31 2010 we had net

monetary asset position denominated in Venezuelan bolivars of approximately $56 million comprised primarily of

cash and accounts receivable We are continuing to explore opportunities to reduce this exposure but should another

devaluation occur in the future we may be required to take further charges related to the remeasurement of our net

monetary asset position For example if the Venezuela bolivar devalued by an additional 10% in the future we

would record devaluation charge of approximately $6 million

Assets and liabilities of entities for which the functional currency is the local currency are translated into

U.S dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date resulting in translation adjustments that are

reflected in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the shareholders equity section on our Consolidated

Balance Sheets portion of our net assets are impacted by changes in foreign currencies in relation to the

U.S dnllar We recorded $5 million adjustment tn increase our equity account for 2010 to reflect the net impact of

the weakening of the U.S dollar against various foreign currencies Effective January 2011 the Venezuelan

government again modified the fixed rate of exchange eliminating the two tier structure and establishing 4.30 as the

official exchange rate for all goods and services This modification will not have material impact to our financial

position or results of operations

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had foreign currency forward and option contracts with notional

amounts aggregating $925 million and $1062 million respectively which were entered into to hedge exposure to

currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies including but not limited to the British pound sterling the

Canadian dollar the euro and the Norwegian krone The total estimated fair value of these contracts and amounts

owed associated with closed contracts resulted in net liability of approximately $14 million and $9 million at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the

changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the

Canadian dollar At December 31 2010 and 2009 we had notional amounts outstanding of $215 million and

$263 million respectively The estimated fair value of these contracts at December 31 2010 and 2009 resulted in

liability of $35 million and $26 million respectively These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges

and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings
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Interest Rates

We are subject to interest rate risk on our long-term fixed-interest rate debt and variable-interest rate

borrowings Variable rate debt where the interest rate fluctuates periodically exposes us to short-term changes

in market interest rates Fixed rate debt where the interest rate is fixed over the life of the instrument exposes us to

changes in market interest rates reflected in the fair value of the debt and to the risk that we may need to refinance

maturing debt with new debt at higher rate All other things being equal the fair value of our fixed rate debt will

increase or decrease as interest rates change

Our long-term boirowings that were outstanding at December 31 2010 and 2009 subject to interest rate risk

consist of the following

December 31

2010 2009

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

In millions

0.025% SeniorNotes due 2011 184 191 353 381

5.95% Senior Notes due 2012 273 290 599 648

5.15%SeniorNotesdue20l3 299 310 511 526

4.95% Senior Notes due 2013 252 266 253 263

5.50% Senior Notes due 2016 358 374 360 351

6.35% Senior Notes due 2017 600 651 600 647

6.00% Senior Notes due 2018 498 551 498 514

9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 1033 1287 1034 1236

5.125% Senior Notes due 2020 799 794

6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 596 595 596 574

6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 298 312 298 303

7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 498 535 498 517

9.875% Senior Notes due 2039 247 335 247 326

6.75% Senior Notes due 2040 598 624

We have various other long-term debt instruments of $215 million at December 31 2010 but believe the

impact of changes in interest rates in the near term will not be material to these instruments The carrying value of

our short-term borrowings of $18 million at December 31 2010 approximates fair value

As it relates to our variable rate debt if market interest rates average 1% more in 2011 than the rates as of

December 31 2010 interest
expense

for 2011 would increase by less than $1 million This amount was determined

by calculating the effect of the hypothetical interest rate on our variable rate debt This sensitivity analysis assumes

there are no changes in our financial structure

Interest Rate Swaps and Derivatives

We manage our debt portfolio to limit our exposure to interest rate volatility and may employ interest rate

swaps as tool to achieve that goal The major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the interest

rates affecting the fair value of such instruments potential increases in interest expense due to market increases in

floating interest rates and the creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions The counterparties to our

interest rate swaps are multinational commercial banks In light of events in the global credit markets and the

potential impact of these events on the liquidity of the banking industry we continue to monitor the creditworthiness

of our counterparties

Amounts paid or received upon termination of the interest rate swaps represent the fair value of the agreements

at the time of termination and are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt These amounts

are amortized as reduction in the case of gains or an increase in the case of losses to interest
expense over the

remaining term of the debt
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In August 2009 we entered into interest rate swap agreements to pay variable interest rate and receive fixed

interest rate with an aggregate notional amount of $1.2 billion against our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

These swaps were designed as fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2009 As result of these

terminations we received cash settlement of $53 million In addition we received $11 million in interest

payments while the interest rate swaps were open The gains associated with these interest rate swap terminations

have been deferred and will he amortized over the remaining term of our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

In December 2008 we entered into an interest rate swap agreement on an aggregate notional amount of

$150 million against one of our revolving credit facilities This agreement matured in June 2009

Upon completion of the long-term debt offering in March 2008 we entered into interest rate swap agreements

on an aggregate notional amount of $500 million against our 5.15% Senior Notes These swaps were designed as

fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2008 As result of these terminations we received cash

proceeds net of accrued interest of $12 million The gain associated with this interest rate swap termination has

been deferred and is being amortized over the remaining term of the 5.15% Senior Notes

As of Decemher 31 2010 and 2009 we had net nnnmnrti7ed
gains

of $55 million and $62 million respectively

associated with interest rate swap terminations We have no interest rate swaps outstanding at December 31 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries

We have audited Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Weatherford Inter

national Ltd and subsidiaries management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on the companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys
assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

material weakness is deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial

reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of the companys annual or interim

financial stateiiients will not be prevented or detected on timely basis The following material weakness has been

identified and included in managements assessment Management has identified material weakness in controls

related to the companys accounting for income taxes at December 31 2010 We also have audited in accordance

with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated financial

statements of Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related

consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 This material weakness was considered in determining the nature timing and extent of

audit tests applied in our audit of the 2010 financial statements and this report does not affect our report dated

March 2011 which expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements

In our opinion because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the

objectives of the control criteria Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries has not maintained effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the COSO criteria

Houston Texas

March 2011

AR-44



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Weatherford International Ltd and

subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders

equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 Our audits also included

the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 These financial statements and schedule are the

responsibility of the dompanys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and

2009 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion

the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as

whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the December 31 2009 and 2008 consolidated

financial statements have been restated to correct certain errors in the income tax accounts

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Weatherford International Ltd.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2011 expressed an adverse opinion

thereon

t7LLP
Houston Texas

March 82011

AR-45



Ernst Young Ltd

Brandschenkestrasse 100

8022 Zurich

Switzcrland

Phonc 41 58 28631 ii

Fux 41 58 286 30 04

www.ey.com/ch

To the Annual General Meeting of

Weatherford International Ltd Zug

Zurich March 2011

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Weatherford International Ltd

and subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related

consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash flows and notes thereto pages AR-48 to AR-

101 for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Board of Directors responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and the requirements of

Swiss law This responsibility includes designing implementing and maintaining an internal control system

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement whether due to fraud or error The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law Swiss Auditing Standards and auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or

error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entitys

preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys

internal control system An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates made as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 present

fairly in all material respects the financial position the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and comply with Swiss law

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note to the consolidated financial statements which describes the restatement of the

previously reported consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31 2009 to correct

certain errors in the income tax accounts Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter
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Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act AOA
and independence article 728 CO and article 11 AOA and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our

independence

In accordance with the audit procedures carried out in accordance with article 728a paragraph item CO and

the Swiss Standard on Auditing 890 we conclude that the internal control system ICS designed in accordance

with the instructions of the Board of Directors for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is

sufficiently documented except for the Companys processes and procedures related to income taxes which were

not designed to provide for adequate and timely identification and review of various income tax calculations

reconciliations and related supporting documentation required to apply accounting policies for income taxes

In our opinion except for income taxes we conclude that the intemal control system designed in accordance

with the instructions of the Board of Directors for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements exists

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved

Ernst Young Ltd

Is RoBIN ERRIc0 /5/ JOLANDA DOLENTE

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert

Auditor in charge
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2010 2009

Restated

In thousands except par value

Current Assets

Cash and Cash quivalents 415772 252519
Accounts Receivable Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts of

$58756 in 2010 and $20466 in 2009 2629403 2510948
Inventories 2590008 2238294
Current Deferred Tax Assets 255476 259077

Other Current Assets 601408 721115

Total Current Assets 6492067 5981953

Property Plant and Equipment

Land Buildings and Leasehold Improvements 1159442 976274
Rental and Service Equipment 7977336 7534467

Machinery and Other 2024856 1919086

11161634 10429827

Less Accumulated Depreciation 4221880 3440448

6939754 6989379

Goodwill 4185477 4156105
Other Intangible Assets 730429 772786

Equity Investments 539580 533138

Other Assets 244347 263.329

Total Assets $19131654 $18696690

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt 235392 869581

Accounts Payable 1335020 1002359

Accrued Salaries and Benefits 328967 274199

Income Taxes Payable 43167 201647

Other Current Liabilities 640433 652914

Total Current Liabilities 2582979 3000700

Long term Debt 6529998 5847258
Other Liabilities 553830 410359

Total Liabilities 9666807 9258317

Shareholders Equity

Shares CHF 1.16 Par Value Authorized 1137670 Shares Conditionally

Authorized 379223 Shares Issued 758447 Shares at December 31 2010
Authorized 1093303 Shares Conditionally Authorized 364434 Shares

Issued 758447 Shares at December 31 2009 761077 761077

Capital in Excess of Par Value 4701797 4642800

Treasury Shares at Cost 562906 616048
Retained Earnings 4348845 4456770
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 152118 114742

Weatherford Shareholders Equity 9400931 9359341

Noncontrolling Interests 63916 79032

Total Shareholders Equity 9464847 9438373

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $19131654 $18696690

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Restated Restated
In thousands except per share amounts

Revenues

Products 3579681 $2921174 $3564636

Services 6641116 5911831 6035928

10220797 8833005 9600564

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Products 2634666 2307731 2577254

Cost of Services 4948615 4154911 3687520

Research and Development 214481 194650 192659

Selling General and Administrative Attributable to Segments 1404421 1261377 1081032

Corporate General and Administrative 237161 226472 188275

Gain on Sale of Subsidiary 81344

9439344 8145141 7645396

Operating Income 781453 687864 1955168

Other Income Expense

Interest Expense Net 405785 366748 243679
Bond Tender Premium 53973

Devaluation of Venezuelan Bolivar 63859

Other Net 53247 37633 44956

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 204589 283483 1666533

Provision for Income Taxes 297721 87183 372837

Income Loss from Continuing Operations Net of Taxes 93132 196300 1293696

Loss from Discontinued Operation Net of Taxes
__________

12928

Net Income Loss 93132 196300 1280768

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 14793 26159 34272

Net Income Loss Attributable to Weatherford 107925 170141 $1246496

Basic Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income Loss from Continuing Operations 0.15 0.24 1.84

Loss from Discontinued Operation 0.02

Net Income Loss 0.15 0.24 1.82

Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income Loss from Continuing Operations 0.15 0.24 1.80

Loss from Discontinued Operation 0.02

Net Income Loss 0.15 0.24 1.78

Amounts Attributable to Weatherford

Income Loss from Continuing Operations Net of Taxes 107925 170141 $1259424

Lnss frnm Discnntiniierl Operatinn Net nf Taxes 17922

Net Income Loss 107925 170141 $1246496

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Basic 743125 714981 682704

Diluted 743125 723449 698178

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

As Reported December 31 2007

Restatement Adjustmeht

Balance at December 31 2007

Comprehensive Income

Net Income

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Deferred Loss on Derivative Instruments

Defined Benefit Pension Plans Net of Tax

Diher Net of Tax

Comprehensive Income

Sale of Subsidiary Shares to Noncontrolling

Interests

Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests

Shares Issued for Acquisitions

Equity Awards Granted Vested and Exercised

Excess Tax Benefit of Share-Based Compensation

Plans

Other

Balance at December 31 2008

Comprehensive Income

Net Income

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Detined Benefit Pension Plans Net of Tax

Other Net of Tax

Comprehensive Income

Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests

Shares Issued for Acquisitions

Equity Awards Granted Vested and Exercised

Excess Tax Benefit of Share-Based Compensation

Plans

Other

Balance at December 31 2009

Comprehensive Income

Net Income Loss

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Defined Benefit Pension Plans Net of Tax

Other Net of Tax

Comprehensive Income

Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests

Shares Issued for Acquisitions

Equity Awards Granted Vested and Exercised

Excess Tax Benefit of Share-Based Compensation

Plans

1246496

682669

12576

9788

484

1246496 704549

10032

10003
_________

4059112 4286629

170141

377313

3580

170141

522657

66786

4197

9952
_________

4642800 4456770

107925

4572

32178

__________
626

107925 37376

10649

70127

Total

Noncootrolling Shareholders

tnterests Equity

Restated

$7440046

_______
130049

7309997

34272 1280768

682669

12576

9788

484

34272 576219

27156

18903

130134

101121

10032

_______
7163

8128593

196300

377313

3580

_______
610

577803

30464

673046

91603

4197

________
6405

9438373

93132

4572

32178

________
626

55756

28683

28330

85636

318

________
2735

$9464847

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Accumulated

Capital In Other

tssued Excess of Par Retained Comprehensive Treasury

Shares Value Earnings Income Loss Shares

Restated

$727204

727204

$3995747

3995747

$3170182

130049

3040133

In thousands

437788

437788

$924202

924202

$33327

33327

38683

102019

168817

2331

27156

18903

4549

80401266761

1761

759477

1433

52

728689

32208

180

761077

26159

26159

30464

610

381503

114742

118181

24817

431

616048

2936

79032

14793

Other 163
________

Balance at December 31 2010 $761077 $4701797 $4348845

318

14793

28683

1226

63916

38979

15509

1346

$562906$152118
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 20011

Restated Restated

In thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Income Loss 93132 196300 1280768

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating

Activities

Depreciation and Amortization 1047334 908897 731808

Employee Share Based Compensation Expense 98725 110359 101416

Bad Debt Expense 56803 11328 5970

Oain Loss on Sale of Assets and Businesses Net 30410 13841 110326
Deferred Income Tax Provision Benefit 55033 130770 84310
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Conipensation 318 4197 10032
Devaluation of Venezuelan Bolivar 63859

Bond Tender Premium 53973

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 38021

Revaluation of Contingent Consideration 12597 24.273
Loss from Discontinued Operation 12928

Other Net 13328 25550 123t2
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities Net of Effect of Businesses

Acquired

Accounts Receivable 190304 94133 461239
Inventories 360062 48744 559847
Other Current Assets 80895 150393 167440
Accounts Payable 298493 41277 230596
Other Current Liabilities 7227 236736 183911

Other Net 18565 119468 31104

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities Continuing Operations 1128013 608322 1110787
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities Discontinued Operation

_________ __________
6219

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1128013 608322 1.104568

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and Equipment for Continuing

Operations 976544 1569477 2484163
Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash Acquired 143556 9695 798530
Acquisition of Intellectual Property 23977 28210 24079
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates 2405 26999 11568
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses Net 196927 123445 297285

Other Investing Activities 41840
___________

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities-Continuing Operations 907715 1510936 3021055
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities-Discontinued Operation

_________ __________
11000

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 907715 1510936 3010055

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Borrowings of Long-term Debt 1580548 1240300 1498874

Borrowings Repayments of Short term Debt Net 834310 392920 477821

Repayments of Long-term Debt 721005 13714 20541
Bond Tender Premium 53973
Proceeds from Interest Rate Derivatives 63544 638
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Compensation 3t8 4197 10032

Other Financing Activities Net 9426 4748 11983

Net Cash Used Provided by Financing Activities-Continuing

Operations 37848 906155 1977531

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities-Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Used Provided by Financing Activities 3784S 90ol55 1977531

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 19197 10580 4360
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 163253 14121 67684
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 252519 238398 170714

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 415772 252519 238398

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

In February 2009 Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford Bermuda
became wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation Weath
erford Switzerland for purposes of changing the Companys place of incorporation from Bermuda to Switzerland

collectively the Transaction Pursuant to the Transaction each common share par value U.S $1.00
per share

of Weatherford Bermuda was exchanged for one registered share par value 1.16 Swiss francs CHF per share of

Weatherford Switzerland

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Weatherford International Ltd all majority-

owned subsidiaries all controlled joint ventures and variable interest entities where the Company has determined it

is the primary beneficiary collectively the Company When referring to Weatherford and using phrases such as

we us and our the intent is to refer to Weatherford International Ltd and its subsidiaries as whole or on

regional basis depending on the context in which the statements are made

Investments in affiliates in which we exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies are

accounted for using the equity method All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

in consolidation

Nature of Operations

We are one of the largest global providers of innovative mechanical solutions technology and services for the

drilling and production sectors of the oil and natural gas industry

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform prior year financial information to the current period

presentation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at

the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period

and disclosure of contingent liabilities On an ongoing basis we evaluate our estimates including those related to

uncollectible accounts receivable lower of cost or market value of inventories equity investments intangible assets

and goodwill property plant and equipment income taxes percentage-of-completion accounting for long-term

contracts self-insurance pension and postretirement benefit plans and contingent liabilities We base our estimates

on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circum

stances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities

not readily apparent from other sources Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash

equivalents
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at the historical carrying amount net of allowances for uncollectible accounts

We establish an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on specific customer collection issues we have

identified Uncollectible accounts receivable are written off when settlement is reached for an amount less than the

outstanding historical balance or when we determine that it is probable the balance will not be collected

Major Customers and Credit Risk

Substantially all of our customers are engaged in the
energy industry This concentration of customers may

impact our overall
exposure to credit risk either positively or negatively in that customers may be similarly affected

by changes in economic and industry conditions We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and do

not generally require collateral in
support

of our trade receivables We maintain reserves for potential credit losses

and actual losses have historically been within our expectations International sales also present various risks

including risks of war civil disturbances and governmental activities that may limit or disrupt markets restrict the

movement of funds result in the deprivation of contract rights or the taking of property without fair consideration

Most of our international sales however are to large international or national companies During 2010 and 2008 no

individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues Revenue from Petroleos

Mexicanos Pemex accounted for approximately 13% of our consolidated revenues during 2009 and is included

in our Latin America segment see Note 20

Inventories

We value our inventories at lower of cost or market using either the first-in first-out FIFO or average cost

methods Cost represents third-party invoice or production cost Production cost includes material labor and

manufacturing overhead

Property Plant and Equipment

We carry our property plant and equipment both owned and under capital lease at cost less accumulated

depreciation The carrying values are based on our estimates arid judgments relative to capitalized costs useful lives

and salvage value where applicable We expense maintenance and repairs as incurred We capitalize expenditures

for renewals replacements and improvements We depreciate our fixed assets on straight line basis over their

estimated useful lives allowing for salvage value where applicable Our depreciation expense for the years ended

December 31 20102009 and 2008 was $955 million $828 million and $669 million respectively We classify our

rig assets as Rental and Service Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets The estimated useful lives of our

major classes of property plant and equipment are as follows

Estimated

Useful Lives

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10-40 years or lease term

Rental and service equipment 2-20 years

Machinery and other 2-12
years

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

We test for the impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives on at least an annual

basis Our goodwill impairment test involves comparison of the fair value of each of our reporting units with its

carrying amount Our indefinite-lived asset impairment test involves comparison of the fair value of the intangible

asset and its carrying value Fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows using discount rate adjusted for the

credit risk of the regional reporting unit tested If the fair value is less than the carrying value the asset is considered
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

impaired The amount of the impairment if any is then determined based on an allocation of the reporting unit fair

values to individual assets and liabilities

Intangible Assets

Our intangibld assets excluding goodwill are acquired technology licenses patents customer relationships

and other identifiable intangible assets Intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated

economic lives generally ranging from two to 20 years except for intangible assets with indefinite lives which are

not amortized As many areas of our business rely on patents and proprietary technology we seek patent protection

both inside and outside the U.S for products and methods that appear to have commercial significance We

capitalize patent defense costs when we determine that successful defense is probable

Long-Lived Assets

We review our long-lived assets to determine whether any events or changes in circumstances indicate the

carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable Factors that might indicate potential impairment may

include but are not limited to significant decreases in the market value of the long-lived asset significant change

in the long-lived assets physical condition change in industry conditions or reduction in cash flows associated

with the use of the long-lived asset If these or other factors indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be

recoverable we determine whether an impairment has occurred through analysis of undiscounted cash flow of the

asset at the lowest level that has an identifiable cash flow If an impairment has occurred we recognize loss for the

difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset We measure the fair value of the asset using

market prices or in the absence of market prices based on an estimate of discounted cash flows Cash flows are

generally discounted using an interest rate commensurate with weighted average cost of capital for similarasset

Pension and Postretireinent Benefit Plans

We have defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans covering certain of our employees

Costs of the plan are charged to income and consist of several components known collectively as net periodic

pension cost which are based on various actuarial assumptions regarding future experience of the plans Amounts

recorded for these defined benefit plans reflect estimates related to future interest rates investment rates of return

employee turnover and wage increases We review all assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis As of

December 31 2010 and 2009 we have recognized the overfunded or underfunded status of our plans as an asset or

liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Research and Development Expenditures

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred

Environmental Expenditures

Environmental expenditures that relate to the remediation of an existing condition caused by past operations

and that do not contribute to future revenues are expensed Liabilities for these expenditures are recorded when it is

probable that obligations have been incurred and costs can be reasonably estimated Estimates are based on

available facts and technology enacted laws and regulations and our prior experience in remediation of contam

inated sites

Insurance

We are self-insured up to certain retention limits for general liability vehicle liability group medical and for

workers compensation claims for certain of our employees The amounts in excess of the self insured levels are
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

fully insured up to limit Self-insurance accruals are based on claims filed and an estimate for significant claims

incurred but not reported

Derivative Financial Instruments

We record derivative instruments at fair value in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability Changes in

the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income depending

on whether the derivative is designated as part of hedge relationship and if so the type of hedge transaction Any

gain or loss associated with the termination of an interest rate swap that was accounted for as hedge instrument is

deferred and amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the remaining debt term

Foreign Currency

Results of operations for our foreign subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the U.S dollar are

translated using average exchange rates during the period Assets and liabilities of these foreign subsidiaries are

translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dates and the resulting translation adjustments are

included as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income component of shareholders equity

For our non-U.S subsidiaries where the functional currency is the U.S dollar inventories property plant and

equipment and other non-monetary assets and liabilities together with their related elements of expense or income

are remeasured using historical exchange rates All other assets and liabilities are remeasured at current exchange

rates All other revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates Translation gains and losses for

these subsidiaries are recognized in our results of operations during the period incurred We had net currency losses

of $34 million $29 million and $39 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The gain or loss related to

individual foreign currency transactions are included in results of operations when incurred Currency gains and

losses are included in Other Net in our Consolidated Statements of Income

Share-Based Compensation

We account for all share-based payment awards including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans

stock options restricted stock and performance units by measuring these awards at the date of grant and recognizing

the grant date fair value as an expense over the service period which is usually the vesting period

Income Taxes

Income taxes have been provided based upon the tax laws and rates in the countries in which our operations are

conducted and income is earned Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences

attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and

their respective tax bases valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is recorded when it is more likely than not

that some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax asset will not be realized The impact of an uncertain tax position

taken or expected to be taken on an income tax retum are recognized in the financial statements at the largest

amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria have been met evidence of an arrangement exists

delivery to and acceptance by the customer has occurred the price to the customer is fixed or determinable and

collectability is reasonably assured

Both contract drilling and pipeline service revenue is contractual by nature and both are day-rate based

contracts We recognize revenue for these contracts based on the criteria outlined above which is consistent with

our other product offerings
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

From time to time we may receive revenues for preparation and mobilization of equipment and personnel In

connection with new drilling contracts revenues earned and incremental costs incurred directly related to

preparation and mobilization are deferred and recognized over the primary contract term of the project using

the straight-line method Costs of relocating equipment without contracts to more promising market areas are

expensed as incurred Demobilization fees received are recognized along with any related expenses upon

completion of confracts

We incur rebillable expenses including shipping and handling third-party inspection and repairs and custom

and duties We recognize the revenue associated with these rebillable expenses as Products Revenues and all related

costs as Cost of Products in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income

Percentage- of- Completion

Revenue from certain long-term contracts primarily for our integrated project management services is

reported on the percentage-of-completion method of accounting This method of accounting requires us to calculate

contract profit to be recognized in each reporting period for each contract based upon our projections of future

outcomes which include

estimates of the total cost to complete the project

estimates of project schedule and completion date

estimates of the extent of progress toward completion and

amounts of any change orders or claims included in revenue

Measurements of progress are generally output based related to physical progress At the outset of each

contract we prepare detailed analysis of our estimated cost to complete the project Risks related to service

delivery usage productivity and other factors are considered in the estimation process We periodically evaluate

the estimated costs claims change orders and percentage of completion at the contract level The recording of

profits and losses on long-term contracts requires an estimate of the total profit or loss over the life of each contract

This estimate requires consideration of total contract value change orders and claims less costs incurred and

estimated costs to complete Anticipated losses on contracts are recorded in full in the period in which they become

evident Profits are recorded based upon the total estimated contract profit times the current percentage complete for

the contract

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share for all periods presented equals net income divided by the weighted average number

of our shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the

weighted average number of our shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the dilutive effect of our stock

options restricted shares performance units and our outstanding warrants The diluted earnings per share

calculation excludes three million potential shares for the year ended December 31 2010 seven million potential

shares for the year ended December 31 2009 and six million potential shares for the year ended December 31 2008

due to their antidilutive effect Our diluted earnings per share calculation for the year ended Deceinbet 31 2010 also

excludes seven million potential shares that would have been included if we had net income for that year but are

excluded as we had net loss and their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive

Unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents

whether paid or unpaid are participating securities and are included in the computation of earnings per
share

following the two class method Accordingly we now include our restricted share awards which contain the right

to vote and receive dividends in the computation of both basic and diluted earnings per
share
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

In 2008 our Board of Directors approved two-for-one split of our shares effected through share dividend

The share and option amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes

reflect the effect of the share split

The following reconciles basic and diluted weighted average
of shares outstanding

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

In thousands

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 743125 714981 682704

Dilutive effect of

Warrants 1858 5720

Stock options and restricted shares 6610 9754

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 743125 723449 698178

New Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an update to existing guidance on revenue

recognition for arrangements with multiple deliverables This update will allow companies to allocate consideration

received for qualified separate deliverables using estimated selling price for both delivered and undelivered items

when vendor-specific objective evidence or third party evidence is unavailable Additional disclosures discussing the

nature of multiple element arrangements the types of deliverables under the arrangements the general timing of their

delivery and significant factors and estimates used to determine estimated selling prices are required We will adopt

this update for new revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified beginning January 2011 We do not

expect the provisions of this update to have material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements

Restatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We identified material weakness in our internal controls over the accounting for income taxes in 2010 that

resulted in the identification of certain errors in our income tax accounts The correction of these errors resulted in

restatements of our previously reported financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31 2009 and

2008 including beginning retained earnings in 2008 and our condensed consolidated financial statements for each

of the quarters within 2009 and 2010

The most significant adjustment for the errors identified relates to the correction of our accounting for the

income tax consequences of certain intercompany transactions that were inappropriately tax-effected over multiple

years This error resulted in the understatement of income tax expense by $100 million and $106 million in 2009 and

2008 respectively similarerror was identified in 2007 that understated income tax expense by $154 million The

impact of the 2007 error is included as an adjustment to the 2008 beginning retained earnings We also recorded

other adjustments to our tax provision to correct for certain errors and items recorded in the improper period These

adjustments were not recorded previously as we concluded that they were not material to the respective periods

These other adjustments resulted in decrease to our total tax provision in 2009 of $32 million which is primarily

comprised of an adjustment to the cumulative difference between book and tax basis of fixed assets and intangibles

and an adjustment related to differences between accrued tax expense and tax expense per the filed tax returns Our

total 2008 tax provision was increased by $17 million which is primarily comprised of an adjustment related to

differences between accrued tax expense and tax expense per the filed tax returns

In addition we recorded other adjustments to correct for previously identified immaterial errors affecting

operating income that were recorded in improper periods These adjustments were not recorded previously as we

concluded that these adjustments were not material to the respective periods In 2008 operating income was

reduced by $23 million primarily related to an inventory reserve adjustment in North America In 2009 operating

AR-57



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

income was reduced by $16 million primarily as result of recognizing foreign payroll tax expense in the Middle

East/North Africa and operating costs associated with an equity method joint venture in the Former Soviet Union

FSU We have adjusted income tax expense for the tax effect of these adjustments These adjustments had no

impact to operating cash flows during 2008 During 2009 these adjustments resulted in decrease to operating cash

flows of $6 milliop and corresponding increase to investing cash flows of the same amount

The following tables summarize the impact of these adjustments on our previously reported annual results filed

on our Annual Reports on Form 10-K The effect of these adjustments on our 2010 quarterly results is shown in

Note 21

The effects of the restatements on our consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31 2009

follows

Products $2921174 $2921174

Services 5905759 6072 5911831

8826933 6072 8833005

Costs and Expenses

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford

2311068

4152268

194650

1241920

223172

8123078

703855

366748

37633

299474

19549

279925

26159

253766

3337

2643

19457

3300

22063

15991

15991

67634

83625

$83625

2307731

4154911

194650

1261377

226472

8145141

687864

Basic

Diluted

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Basic 714981

Diluted 723449

Revenues

Year Ended December 31 2009

Previously

Reported Adjustments Restated

In thousands except per share amounts

Cost of Products

Cost of Services

Research and Development

Selling General and Administrative Attributable to Segments

Corporate General and Administrative

Operating Income

Other Income Expense

Interest Expense Net

Other Net

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes

Provision for Income Taxes

Net Income

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Net Income Attributable to Weatherford

366748

37633

283483

87183

196300

26159

170141

0.35 0.11

0.35 0.11

0.24

0.24

714981

723449
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The effects of the restatements on our consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31 2008

follows

Year Ended December 31 2008

Previously

Reported Adjustments Restated

In thousands except per share amounts

Revenues

Products $3564636 $3564636
Scrvices 6035928 6035928

9600564 9600564
Costs and Expenses

Cost of Products 2555965 21289 2577254

Cost of Services 3686495 1025 3687520

Research and Development 192659 192659

Selling General and Administrative Attributable to Segments 1081165 133 1081032

Corporate General and Administrative 187075 1200 188275

Gain on Sale of Subsidiary 81344 81344

7622015 23381 7645396

Operating Income 1978549 23381 1955168

Other Income Expense
Interest Expense Net 243679 243679
Other Net 44956 44956

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 1689914 23381 1666533

Provision for Income Taxes 249561 123276 372837

Income from Continuing Operations Net of Taxes 1440353 146657 1293696

Loss from Discontinued Operation Net of Taxes 12928 12928

Net Income 1427425 146657 1280768

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 34272 34272

Net Income Attributable to Weatherford $1393153 $046657 $1246496

Basic Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations 2.06 0.22 1.84

Loss from Discontinued Operation 0.02 0.02

Net Income 2.04 0.22 1.82

Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations 2.01 0.21 1.80

Loss from Discontinued Operation 0.02 0.02

Net Income 1.99 0.21 1.78

Amounts Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations Net of Taxes $1406081 $046657 $1259424

Loss from Discontinued Operation Net of Taxes 12928 12928

Net Income $1393153 $046657 $1246496

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Basic 682704 682704

Diluted 698178 698178
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The effects of the restatements on our consolidated balance sheet for the year ended December 31 2009

follows

Year Ended December 31 2009

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable

Inventories

Current Deferred Tax Assets

Other Current Assets
__________ _________ __________

Total Current Assets
__________ _________ __________

Property Plant and Equipment

Land Buildings and Leasehold Improvements

Rental and Service Equipment

Machinery and Other
__________ _________ __________

Less Accumulated Depreciation
___________ _________ ___________

Goodwill

Other Intangible Assets

Equity Investments

Other Assets
____________ _________ ____________

Total Assets
____________ __________ ____________

Current Liabilities

Short term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term

Debt

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salaries and Benefits

Income Taxes Payable

Other Current Liabilities
____________ __________ ____________

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt

Other Liabilities
____________ _________ ____________

Total Liabilities
____________ _________ ____________

Shareholders Equity

Shares

Capital in Excess of Par Value

Treasury Shares at Cost

Retained Earnings

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Weatherford Shareholders Equity

Noncontrolling Interests
____________ __________ ____________

Total Shareholders Equity __________ _________ __________

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity ___________ _________ ___________

Previously

Reported Adjustments Restated

In thousands except par value

252519

2504876

2239762

259077

884372

6072

1468

163257

252519

2510948

2238294

259077

721115

6140606 158653 5981953

976274

7534467

1919086

976274

7534467

1919086

10429827

3438248 2200

10429827

3440448

6991579 2200 6989379

4156105

778786

542667

256440

6000
9529
6889

4156105

772786

533138

263329

$18866183 169493 $18696690

869581

1002359

274199

650749

201647

2165

869581

1002359

274199

201647

652914

2796888

5847258

423333

203812

12974

3000700

5847258

410359

9067479 190838 9258317

761077

4642800

616048
4817101

114742

360331

761077

4642800

616048
4456770

114742

9719672

79032

360331 9359.341

79032

9798704

$18866183

360331

$169493

9438373

$18696690
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The effects of the restatements on our consolidated balance sheet for the year ended December 31 2008

follows

Year Ended December 31 2008

238398

2442848

2088342

270252

530442

5570282

756416

6246278

1610474

8613168

2690996

5922172

3530915

701483

515770

235891

$16476513

1255947

886104

257016

74052

548974

3022093

4564255

484866

8071214

728689

4059112

759477
4563335

266761

8324898

80401

8405299

$16476513

6245
4801

6326

238398
2442848

2084160

270252

529742

5565400

756416

6246278

1610474

8613168

2690996

5922172

3530915

701483

509525

240692

$16470187

1255947

886104

257016

346371

541652

3287090

4564255

490249

8341594

728689

4059112

759477
4286629

266761

8048192

80401

8128593

$16470187

Previously

Reported Adjustments Restated

In thousands except par value

4182

700

4882

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable

Inventories

Current Deferred Tax Assets

Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Property Plant and Equipment

Land Buildings and Leasehold Improvements

Rental and Service Equipment

Machinery and Other

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Goodwill

Other Intangible Assets

Equity Investments

Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term

Debt

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salaries and Benefits

Income Taxes Payable

Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Shareholders Equity

Shares

Capital in Excess of Par Value

Treasury Shares at Cost

Retained Earnings

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Weatherford Shareholders Equity

Noncontrolling Interests

Total Shareholders Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

272319

7322

264997

5383

270380

276706

276706

276706

6326
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The effects of the restatements on our consolidated cash flow for the year ended December 31 2009 follows

Year Ended December 31 2009

Previously

Reported Adjustments Restated

In thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Income 279925 $83625 196300

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by

Operating Activities

Depreciation and Amortization 906697 2200 908897

Employee Share-Based Compensation Expense 110359 110359

Bad Debt Expense 11328 11328

Gain Loss on Sale of Assets and Businesses Net 13841 13841
Deferred Income Tax Provision Benefit 110324 20446 130770
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Compensation 4197 4197
Revaluation of Contingent Consideration 21073 3200 24273
Other Net 28835 3285 25550
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities Net of Effect of

Businesses Acquired

Accounts Receivable 100205 6072 94133

Inventories 46030 2714 48744
Other Current Assets 312950 162557 150393
Accounts Payable 41277 41277
Other Current Liabilities 178751 57985 236736
Other Net 119468 119468

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 614322 6000 608322

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and Equipment for

Continuing Operations 1569477 1569477
Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash Acquired 9695 9695
Acquisition of Intellectual Property 34210 6000 28210
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates 26999 26999
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses Net 123445 123445

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 1516.936 6000 1510936

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Borrowings of Long-term Debt 1240300 1240300

Borrowings Repayments of Short-term Debt Net 392920 392920
Repayments of Long-term Debt 13714 13714
Proceeds from Interest Rate Derivatives 63544 63544

Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Compensation 4197 4197

Other Financing Activities Net 4748 4748

Net Cash Used Provided by Financing Activities 906155 906155

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 10580 10580

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 14121 14121

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 238398 238398

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 252519 252519
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The effects of the restatements on our consolidated cash flow for the year ended December 31 2008 follows

Year Ended December 31 2008

Previously

Reported Adjustments Restated

In thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Income 1427425 8146657 1280768

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating

Activities

Depreciation and Amortization 731808 731808

Employee Share Based Compensation Expense 101416 101416

Bad Debt Expense 5970 5970

Gain Loss on Sate of Assets and Businesses Net 110326 110326
Deferred Income Tax Provision Benefit 80692 3618 84310
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Compensation 10032 10032
Loss from Discontinued Operation 12928 12928

Other Net 18557 6245 12312
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities Net of Effect of Businesses

Acquired

Accounts Receivable 461239 461239
Inventories 581981 22134 559847
Other Current Assets 168140 700 167440
Accounts Payable 230596 230596

Other Current Liabilities 62715 121196 18391

Other Net 31104 31104

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities-Continuing Operations 1110787 1110787
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities Discontinued Operation 6219 6219
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1104568 1104568

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and Equipment for Continuing

Operations 2484163 2484163
Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash Acquired 798530 798530
Acquisition of Intellectual Property 24079 24079
Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Affihiates 11568 11568
Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses Net 297285 297285

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities-Continuing Operations 3021055 3021055
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities Discontinued Operation 11000 11000

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 3010055 3010055

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Borrowings of Long-term Debt 1498874 1498874

Borrowings Repayments of Short-term Debt Net 477821 477821

Repayments of Long-term Debt 20541 20541
Proceeds from Interest Rate Derivatives 638 638
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Compensation 10032 10032

Other Financing Activities Net 11983 11983

Net Cash Used Provided by Financing Activities-Continuing

Operations 1977531 1977531

Net Cash Prnvided by Financing Activities-Discontinued

Operations

Net Cash Used Provided by Financing Activities 1977531
________

1977531

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 4360 4360
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 67684 67684
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 170714 170714

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 238398 238398
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Business Combinations

Effective January 2009 we adopted new accounting standard for business combinations This standard

established principles and requirements for how company recognizes assets acquired liabilities assumed

contingencies and ontingent consideration measured at fair value at the acquisition date The statement also

established disclosure requirements that enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effect of business

combinations

We have acquired businesses we feel are important to our long-term growth strategy Results of operations for

acquisitions are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income from the date of acquisition The

balances included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to recent acquisitions are based on preliminary

information and are subject to change when final asset valuations are obtained and the potential for liabilities has

been evaluated The purchase price is allocated to the net assets acquired based upon their estimated fair values at

the date of acquisition

In July 2009 we acquired the Oilfield Services Division OFS of TNK-BP In this transaction we acquired

drilling well workover and cementing services operations in West Siberia East Siberia and the Volga-Urals region

We issued 24.3 million shares valued at approximately $450 million Under our sale and purchase agreement dated

May 29 2009 if TNK-BP sold the shares it received in consideration for the transaction for price less than $18.50

per share prior to June 29 2010 we were obligated to pay TNK-BP additional consideration in an amount equal to

the difference between the price at which the shares were sold and $18.50 On June 24 2010 we entered into an

amendment that modified the provisions relating to the value guarantee mechanism to allow the parties additional

time to settle the amount of consideration received by TNK-BP under the agreement The settlement date was

extended from June 29 2010 to the earlier of December 2010 or 30 days after the third business day

following our public announcement of our quarterly earnings for the third quarter of 2010 In addition the base

dollar amount used to calculate potential guarantee payments was increased from $18.50 to $19.50

The accounting guidance for business combinations requires contingent consideration to be recognized at its

acquisition date fair value Based on the terms of the arrangement we classified the contingent consideration for the

OFS acquisition as liability Such liabilities are required to be remeasured to fair value at each reporting date until

the contingency is resolved with any changes in fair value recognized in earnings We estimated the fair value of the

contingent consideration for the OFS acquisition to be liability of $84 million at the date of acquisition and

$60 million at December 31 2009 The valuation of the contingent consideration was determined using lattice-

based model incorporating the term of the contingency the price of our shares over the relevant periods and the

volatility of our stock price In November 2010 TNK-BP informed us that 23.1 million shares issued to them had

been sold below the guaranteed share price at weighted average price of $17.47 In accordance with the contingent

consideration arrangement we paid TNK BP approximately $47 million and recognized gain of approximately

$13 million on settlement All remeasurement gains and losses have been recorded in the Selling General and

Administrative Attributable to Segments line in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income In 2010 we

also paid TNK-BP $44 million in accordance with the working capital adjustment provisions of the OPS acquisition

agreement and in the third quarter of 2010 finalized the valuation of the assets and liabilities acquired in the

OFS acquisition

In November 2008 we acquired group of affiliated companies in Latin America Consideration for the

transaction totaled approximately $160 million which was comprised of approximately six million shares valued at

approximately $65 million non cash consideration of approximately $75 million and cash of approximately

$20 million Additional consideration of up to $65 million was contingent on the occurrence of future events and

circumstances In December 2010 we paid $5 million under the contingent consideration provisions and recorded it

as an addition to goodwill in our Latin America segment in accordance with the accounting guidance in effect on the

date of acquisition
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In August 2008 we acquired International Logging Inc ILl provider of surface logging and formation and

evaluation and drilling related se vices for approximately $400 million We allocated appioximately $140 million of the

purchase price to intangible assets See Note

We also acquired various other businesses during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 for cash

consideration of approx4mately $52 million $54 million and $380 million respectively In addition other 2010

acquisitions included the issuance of approximately two million shares valued at $28 million other 2009

acquisitions included the issuance of approximately 11 million shares valued at $222 million and other 2008

acquisitions included the issuance of approximately two million shares valued at approximately $65 million

Equity Investment Acquisition

We acquired 33% owÆership interest in Premier Business Solutions PBS in June 2007 for approximately

$330 million PBS conducts business in Russia and is an electric submersible pump manufacturer In January 2008

we sold our electrical submersible pumps ESP product line to PBS and received combination of cash and an

additional equity investment in PBS in consideration of the sale This transaction increased our ownership

percentage to 38.5% In September 2009 we converted $38 million note plus accrued interest due from PBS

for an additional equity investment Our ownership percentage was unchanged as the other joint venture partner also

converted its notes receivable for an additional equity investment

Discontinued Operation

In June 2007 our management approved plan to sell our oil and gas development and production business

We finalized the divestiture of the business in 2008 The results of operations and cash flows of the business have

been characterized in the consolidated financial statements as discontinued operation for the year ended

December 31 2008

Operating results of the oil and gas development and production business for the year ended December 31

2008 were as follows in thousands

Revenues 556

Loss Before Income Taxes $25811

Benefit for Income Taxes 12883

Loss from Discontinued Operation Net of Taxes $12928

The 2008 loss includes charges of approximately $21 million associated with settlement of legal dispute

regarding the business These charges were partially offset by an $11 million gain net of taxes recognized upon the

finalization of the divestiture

Cash Flow Information

Gain on Sales of Assets and Businesses Net

Gain on sales of assets and businesses net for the year ended December 31 2008 of $110 million includes

$19 million write-off of fixed assets resulting from our exit from sanctioned countries an $81 million gain

recognized in connection with the sale of 50% interest in subsidiary we control to Qatar Petroleum and

$48 million in gains related to our divestiture of other assets and businesses

Non-cash Activities

We issued approximately two million shares valued at $28 million in connection with acquisitions during the

year ended December 31 2010 35 million shares valued at approximately $673 million in connection with
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acquisitions during the year ended December 31 2009 and eight million shares valued at approximately

$130 million in connection with acquisitions during the year ended December 31 2008

During the year ended December 31 2009 there were non-cash investing activities of approximately

$18 million related to investment securities received in exchange for our sale of business which we liquidated

in 2010 During the year
ended December 31 2008 there was non-cash investing activity of $75 million related to

our consideration for an acquisition

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest and income taxes net of refunds was as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

In thousands

Interest paid net of capitalized interest $403055 $331862 $233468

Income taxes paid net of refunds 350603 389652 271418

Inventories

Inventories by category were as follows

December 31

2010 2009

Restated

In thousands

Raw materials components and supplies 383639 328253

Work in process 114266 115564

Finished goods 2092103 1794477

$2590008 $2238294

Work in process and finished goods inventories include the cost of materials labor and manufacturing

overhead

Goodwill

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment on at least an annual basis Our goodwill impairment test involves

comparison of the fair value of each of our reporting units with its carrying amount Our reporting units are based on

our regional structure and consist of the United States Canada Latin America Europe West Africa FSU Middle

East/North Africa and Asia Pacific We perform our annual goodwill impairment test as of October Our 2010

impairment test indicated goodwill was not impaired We will continue to test our goodwill annually as of October

unless events occur or circumstances change between annual tests that would more likely than not reduce the fair

value of reporting unit below its carrying amount
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the two years ended December 31 2010 were as follows

Middle EastJ Europe/
North North Africa West Africa Latin

America Asia FSU America Total

In thousands

Balancc at December 31 2008 $1813710 $675558 734930 $306717 $3530915

Acquisitions 146504 245571 392075

Disposals 6648 2659 534 9841
Purchase price anti other

adjustments 14000 10672 8554 16 33210

Foreign currency translation 129983 15325 56522 7916 209746

Balance at December 31 2009 2097549 698896 1045577 314083 4156105

Acquisitions 4169 24114 1246 29529

Disposals 862 862
Purchase price and other

adjustments 361 635 19374 1364 21734

Foreign currency translation 31663 10315 19844 305 22439

Balance at December 31 2010 $2133020 $731828 $1007605 $313024 $4185477

Other Intangible Assets

The components of intangible assets were as follows

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Restated Restated Restated

In thousands

Acquired technology 412744 $044752 $267992 410115 $009134 $300981

Licenses 269802 119971 149831 259930 101884 158046

Patents 215293 80461 134832 204702 68086 136616

Customer relationships and

contracts 165701 54885 110816 160556 35818 124738

Other 119812 52854 66958 96535 44130 52405

$1183352 $452923 $730429 $1131838 $359052 $772786

Intangibles obtained through acquisitions are initially recorded at estimated fair value based on preliminary

information Final valuations are obtained within one year from the date of acquisition The acquired technology

and customer relationships are being amortized over estimated useful lives ranging from three to 15 years

We have trademarks that are considered to have indefinite lives as we have the ability and intent to renew them

indefinitely These trademarks had carrying value of $19 million and $20 million as of December 31 2010 and

December 31 2009 respectively and are included in the Other caption in the table above

AR-67



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Amortization expense was $92 million $81 million and $63 million for the years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively Future estimated amortization expense for the carrying amount of intangible assets as

of December 31 2010 is expected to be as follows in thousands

2011 $89206

2012 86315

2013 84045

2014 80005

2015 67658

10 Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt

December 31

2010 2009

In thousands

Revolving credit facility $798500

Commercial paper program

Other short term bank loans 18001 53007

Total short-term borrowings 18001 851507

Current portion of long-term debt 217391 18074

Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt $235392 $869581

Weighted average interest rate on short-term borrowings outstanding at end

of year 8.96% 1.39%

Prior to October 2010 we maintained two revolving credit facilities with syndicates of banks available for

combination of borrowings support for our commercial paper program and issuances of letters of credit These

facilities allowed for an aggregate availability of $1.75 billion and were scheduled to mature in May 2011 In

October2010 we entered into $1.75 billion unsecured revolving credit agreement the Credit Agreement with

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent The Credit Agreement replaced our existing revolving credit

facilities The Credit Agreement has scheduled maturity date of October 15 2013 subject to extension and can be

used for combination of borrowings support for our commercial paper program and issuances of letters of credit

Consistent with our prior facilities the Credit Agreement requires us to maintain debt-tn-capitalization ratio of

less than 60% We are in compliance with these covenants at December 31 2010 There were $64 million in

outstanding letters of credit under these facilities at December 31 2010

We have $1.5 billion commercial paper program under which we may from time to time issue short-term

unsecured notes The commercial paper program is supported by our revolving credit facilities

We have short-term borrowings with various domestic and international institutions pursuant to uncommitted

facilities At December 31 2010 we had $18 million in short term borrowings under these arrangements with

weighted average interest rate of 9% In addition we had $361 million of letters of credit and bid and performance

bonds under these uncommitted facilities The carrying value of our short-term borrowings approximates their fair

value as of December 31 2010
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11 Long-term Debt

We have issued various senior notes all of which rank equally with our existing and future senior unsecured

indebtedness have semi-annual interest payments and no sinking fund requirements Our long-term debt consisted

of the following

December 31

2010 2009

In thousands

6.625% Senior Notes due 2011 183647 352872

5.95% Senior Notes due 2012 272897 599380

5.15% Senior Notes due 2013 298.586 511.273

4.95% Senior Notes due 2013 252412 253203

5.50% Senior Notes due 2016 358208 359585

6.35% Senior Notes due 2017 599656 599615

6.00% Senior Notes due 2018 498050 497782

9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 1032959 1033818

5.125% Senior Notes due 2020 798917

6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 595940 595880

6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 298215 298192

7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 498433 498376

9.875% Senior Notes due 2039 247136 247118

6.75% Senior Notes due 2040 597570

4.80% Secured Borrowing 172004

Foreign bank and other debt denominated in foreign currencies 15299 12933

Capital and Other Lease Obligations 23660 2548

Other 3800 2757

6747389 5865332

Less amounts due in one year 217391 18074

Long-term debt $6529998 $5847258

The following is summary of scheduled long-term debt maturities by year in thousands

2011 217391

2012 324386

2013 572687

2014 28187

2015 29634

Thereafter 5575104

$6747389

In September 2010 we completed $1.4 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $800 million of

5.125% Senior Notes due in 2020 5.125% Senior Notes and ii $600 million of 6.75% Senior Notes due in 2040

6.75% Senior Notes Net proceeds of $1 .386 billion were used to fund our bond tender offer that commenced in

September 2010 and repay short-term borrowings on our revolving credit facilities

AR-69



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

In September 2010 we commenced cash tender offer for up to $700 million aggregate principal amount of

specified series of our outstanding debt Pursuant to the tender offer terms we repurchased $167 million of our

6.625% senior notes due 2011 and incurred an expense of$1 million for the premium we paid on the repurchase In

October 2010 we completed the tender offer by repurchasing $327 million and $206 million of our 5.95% senior

notes due 2012 and 5.15% senior notes due 2013 respectively We paid $44 million premium on these bonds

tendered and incurred charge of $43 million in the fourth quarter of 2010

In January 2009 we completed $1.25 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $1 billion of

9.625% Senior Notes due in 2019 9.625% Senior Notes and ii $250 million of 9.875% Senior Notes due in

2039 9.875% Senior Notes

In March 2008 we completed $1.5 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $500 million of

5.15% Senior Notes due in 2013 5.15% Senior Notes ii $500 million of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2018

6.00% Senior Notes and iii $500 million of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 7.00% Senior Notes

The weighted average effective interest rates on our Senior Notes for 2010 was 6.67% The effective rate was

determined after giving consideration to the effect of interest rate derivatives accounted for as hedges and the

amortization of any discounts See Note 13

In June 2010 we entered into secured loan agreement with third-party financial institution and received

proceeds of $180 million The note bears interest at rate of 4.8% and will be repaid in monthly installments over

seven years The loan is secured by equipment located in the United States and is included in long-term debt on our

Consolidated Balance Sheet

12 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounts Receivable Factoring

We have entered into an accounts receivable sales program to sell accounts receivable related to Latin America

to third party financial institutions We sold approximately $395 million under this program during 2010 We

received cash totaling $363 million and recognized loss of $10 million on these sales These transactions qualified

for sale accounting under the accounting standards The remaining amounts due to us will be paid as the third party

financial institution collects on the receivables These deferred amounts are recorded as Other Current Assets in the

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet The proceeds received on the initial sale and $16 million for collection on

the deferred amounts through December 31 2010 are included in operating cash flows in our Consolidated

Statement of Cash Flows

Financial Instruments Measured and Recognized at Fair Value

There is hierarchy that classifies valuation inputs into three broad levels Level inputs are quoted prices

unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level inputs are quoted prices for similar assets

and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

through market corroboration for substantially the full term of the financial instrument Level inputs are

unobservable inputs based upon our own assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value

Classification of financial asset or liability within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level of

input that is significant to the fair value measurement
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At December 31 2010 we did not have non derivative assets or liabilities measured and recognized at fair

value on recurring basis The following table presents our non-derivative assets and liabilities that are measured

and recognized at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2009

December 31 2009

Level Level Level Total

Restated Restated

In thousands

Other Assets

Other investments $40822 $40822

Other Current Liabilities

Contingent consideration on acquisition See
Note 59563 595b3

During the first quarter of 2010 we received proceeds of approximately $42 million from the redemption of

our other investments recorded at fair value at December 31 2009 The proceeds are included in investing activities

in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended March 31 2010

The following table provides summary of changes in fair value of our Level financial liability as of

December 31 2010 and 2009

Year Ended

December 31

2010 2009

Restated

In thousands

Balance at beginning of period 59563

Contingent consideration on acquisition See Note 83836

Payment of contingent consideration on acquisirion 46966

Gain on contingent consideration on acquisition included in earnings 12597 24273

Balance at end of period 59563

The gains recorded during 2010 and 2009 are included in the Selling General and Administrative Attributable

to Segments line in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Our other financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents foreign currency exchange contracts

interest rate swaps accounts receivable notes receivable accounts payable and short and long-term debt With the

exception of long-term debt the carrying value of these financial instruments approximates their fair value

The fair value of outstanding debt fluctuates with changes in applicable interest rates Fair value will exceed

carrying value when the current market interest rate is lower than the interest rate at which the debt was originally

issued The fair value of companys debt is measure of its current value under present market conditions It does

not impact the financial statements under current accounting rules The fair value of our long-term debt was

established based nn quoted market prices
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The fair value and carrying value of the our long-term debt and current portion of long-term debt is provided as

follows

December 31

2010 2009

In thousands

Fair value $7329299 $6303203

Carrying value 6747389 5865332

13 Derivative Instruments

We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency and changes in interest rates From time to

time we may enter intb derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk We

manage our debt portfolio to achieve an overall desired position of fixed and floating rates and we may employ

interest rate swaps as tool to achieve that goal The major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the

interest rates affecting the fair value of such instruments potential increases in interest expense due to market

increases in floating interest rates and the creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions In light of

events in the global credit markets and the potential impact of these events on the liquidity of the banking industry

we continue to monitor the creditworthiness of our counterparties which are multinational commercial banks

The fair values of all our outstanding derivative instruments are determined using model with Level inputs

including quoted market prices for contracts with similar terms and maturity dates

Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate swaps to help mitigate exposures related to interest rate movements Amounts paid or

received upon termination of the interest rate swaps accounted for as fair value hedges represent the fair value of the

agreements at the time of termination and are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt

These amounts are amortized as reduction in the case of gains or as an increase in the case of losses to interest

expense over the remaining term of the debt As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had net unamortized gains of

$55 million and $68 million respectively associated with interest rate swap terminations

Cash Flow Hedges

In 2008 we entered into interest rate derivative instruments to hedge projected exposures to interest rates in

anticipation of debt offering Those hedges were terminated at the time of the issuance of the debt and the loss on

these hedges is being amortized from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income to interest expense over the

remaining term of the debt As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had net unamortized losses of $13 million

associated with our cash flow hedge terminations

Other Derivative Instruments

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts

aggregating to $925 million and $1062 million respectively which were entered into to hedge exposure to

currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies including but not limited to the British pound sterling the

Canadian dollar the euro and the Norwegian krone The total estimated fair value of these contracts and amounts

owed associated with closed contracts resulted in net liability of approximately $14 million and $9 million at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the

changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other Net in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Income

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the

Canadian dollar At December 31 2010 and 2009 we had notional amounts outstanding of $215 million and
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$263 million respectively The total estimated fair value of these contracts at December 31 2010 and 2009 resulted

in liability of $35 million and $26 million respectively These derivative instruments were not designated as

hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other Net in the accompanying

Consolidated Statements of Income

The fair values ofoutstanding derivative instruments are summarized as follows

Derivative assets not designated as hedges

Foreign exchange cQntracts

Derivative liabilities not designated as hedges

Foreign exchange contracts

Cross-currency swap contracts

14 Shareholders Equity

Accumulated other comprehensive income is comprised of the following

Balance at December 31 2007

Shares issued for acquisitions

Equity awards granted vested and exercised

Other

Balance at December 31 2008

Shares issued for acquisitions

Equity awards granted vested and exercised

Other

Balance at December 31 2009

Shares issued for acquisitions

Equity awards granted vested and exercised

Other

Balance at December 31 2010

December 31

2010 2009 2008

In thousands

$188768

60636

________ 13390
_________

_______
$114742 ________

$090317

62444

14000

$266761

December 31

2010 2009

In thousands

8155 9831

Classifications

Other Current Assets

21664

34783

18939 Other Current Liabilities

26170 Other Liabilities

Cumulative translation adjustment $193077

Cumulative defined benefit plan adjustments 28195

Deferred loss on derivative instruments net of amortization .. 12764

$152118

Changes in our Issued and Treasury shares during the years ended December 31 20102009 and 2008 were as

follows

Issued Treasury

In thousands

727204 49018

7709

1433 924

52 18

728689 40367

29578 5398

6030

180 138

758447 28801

1780

4181

202

758447 22638
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Authorized Shares

At December 2010 we were authorized to issue 1137669955 registered shares and conditionally

authorized to issue 379223318 registered shares

Warrants

At December 31 2010 we had outstanding warrants to purchase up to 12.9 million of our shares at price of

$15.00 per share The warrants remain exercisable until February 28 2012 and are subject to adjustment for changes

in our capital structure or the issuance of dividends in cash securities or property Upon excrcise by the holders

settlement may occur through physical delivery net share settlement net cash settlement or combination of those

choices The net cash settlement option upon exercise is at our sole discretion

15 Share-Based Compensation

Incentive Plans

The Weatherford International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan Omnibus Plan provides for awards of

options stock appreciation rights restricted share awards RSA restricted share units RSU performance

share awards performance unit awards other share-based awards and cash-based awards to any employee or our

non-employee directors In June 2010 the Weatherford International Ltd 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan 2010
Omnibus Plan was approved by our shareholders This plan permits the grant of options stock appreciation rights

restricted share awards restricted share units performance share awards performance unit awards other share-

based awards and cash-based awards to any employee non-employee director and other individual service

providers or any
affiliate The 2010 Omnibus Plan is similar to our 2006 Omnibus Plan

The provisions of each award vary based on the type of award granted and are specified by the Compensation

Committee of our Board of Directors Those awards such as stock options that are based on specific contractual

term will be granted with term not to exceed ten years Upon grant of an RSA the participant has the rights of

shareholder including but not limited to the right to vote such shares and the right to receive any dividends paid on

such shares Recipients of RSU awards do not have the rights of shareholder until such date as the shares are issued

or transferred to the recipient As of December 31 2010 approximately 8.4 million shares were available for grant

under the 2010 Omnibus Plan and approximately 1.8 million shares were available for grant under the 2006

Omnibus Plan

Share-Based Compensation Expense

We recognized the following employee share-based compensation expense during the years ended Decem

ber 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

In thousands

Share based compensation $98725 $110359 $101416

Related tax benefit 34554 38626 35496
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Options

summary of option activity for the year ended December 31 2010 is presented below

Weighted

Weighted verage

Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Term Value

In years In thousands

Outstanding at December 31 2009 12848036 8.42 5.08 $124787

Granted

Exercised 1008492 4.78

Forfeited 20000 23.75

Outstanding at December 31 2010 11819544 8.70 4.20 166624

Vested or Expected to Vest at December 31 2010 11819544 8.70 4.20 166624

Exercisable at December 31 2010 11482894 8.37 4.18 165698

Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value of our shares as of

the date of grant We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options

awarded The estimated fair value of our stock options is expensed over their vesting period which is generally one

to four years There were no stock options granted during 2010 2009 or 2008 The intrinsic value of stock options

exercised during 2010 2009 and 2008 was $12 million $18 million and $46 million respectively As of

December 31 2010 there was less than $1 million of unrecognized compensation expense relatcd In ur unvested

stock options which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of less than one year

Restricted Share Awards and Restricted Share Units

summary of RSAs and RSUs activity for the year ended December 31 2010 is presented below

Weighted Weighted

Average \crage
Grant Date Cram iate

RSA Fair Value RSU Fair Value

Non-Vested at December 31 2009 6541985 $22.84 6292.484 S23.20

Granted 523800 15.99 852311 16.74

Vested 2367280 21.56 2014697 22.58

Forfeited 430412 24.73 914670 20.43

Non-Vested at December 31 2010 4268093 22.59 4215428 22.76

RSAs and RSUs vest based on continued employment generally over two to five-year period The fair value

of RSAs and RSUs is determined based on the closing price of our shares on the date of grant The total fair value

less assumed forfeitures is expensed over the vesting period The weighted-average grant
date fair value of RSAs

and RSUs granted during the
years

ended 2010 2009 and 2008 was $16.45 $13.67 and $32.55 respectively The

total fair value of RSAs and RSUs vested during the
years ended 2010 2009 and 2008 was $96 million $99 million

and $40 million respectively As of December 31 2010 there was $144 million of unrecognized compensation

expense related to unvested RSAs and RSUs which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of

two years

Performance Units

During 2010 we issued performance units which will vest ratably over three year period assuming

continued employment and if the Company meets certain market based performance goals The weighted average
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grant date fair value of our performance units was determined through use of the Monte Carlo simulation method

As of December 31 2010 there was $8 million of unrecogniLed conipensation expense related to performance

units

summary of performance unit activity for the year ended December 31 2010 is presented below

Weighted

Average
Performance Grant Date

Units Fair Value

Granted 1089517 $12.41

Forfeited 103062 13.19

Non Vested at December 31 2010 986455 12.32

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

Under our Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Ownership Plan the EDC Plan portion of the

compensation for certain key employees including officers and employee directors can be deferred for payment

after retirement or termination of employment We established grantor trust to fund the benefits under the EDC

Plan The funds provided to such trust are invested by an independent trustee in shares of our stock which are

purchased by the trustee on the open market The assets of the trust are available to satisfy the claims of all our

general creditors in the event of bankruptcy or insolvency Accordingly the shares held by the trust and our liability

under the EDC Plan are included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as Treasury Shares Effective

December 31 2008 we suspended the EDC Plan While the plan is suspended no new participants may join the

plan and no further deferrals of compensation or matching contributions will be made under the plan unless and

until our Board of Directors determines otherwise

16 Retirement and Employee Benefit Plans

We have defined contribution plans covering certain employees Contribution expenses related to these plans

totaled $43 million $36 million and $32 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Effective for the year ended December 31 2009 we adopted an update to existing accounting standards that

amends the requirements for employers disclosures about plan assets for defined benefit pension and other

postretirement plans The objectives of this update are to provide users of financial statements with an under

standing of how investment allocation decisions are made the major categories of assets held by the plans the

inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets significant concentration of risk within

the companys plan assets and for fair value measurements determined using significant unobservable inputs

reconciliation of changes between the beginning and ending balances

We have defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans covering certain U.S and intemational

employees Plan benefits are generally based on factors such as age compensation levels and years of service
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The changes in benefit obligations were as follows

Year Ended Deceniber 31

2010 2009

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $143399 $130686 $121922 $143408

Adjustment to beginning of year benefit

obligation1 34139

Service cost 1032 5205 3085 6964

Interest cost 4634 6858 7805 7195

Plan participants conttibutions 227

Amendments 150 30244

Curtailments 34143 1608 1341 176
Settlements 32779 3044 12881

Divestitures 902
Actuarial gain/loss 7905 17637 4312 7273

Currency fluctuations 4007 16871

Benefits paid 836 3524 1123 2391

Benefit obligation at end of year 89212 $147451 $143399 $130686

See note following change in plan assets

We have supplemental executive retirement plan SERP which provides pension benefits to certain

executives upon retirement This plan is nonqualified unfunded retirement plan and was amended effective

March 31 2010 to freeze the benefits under the plan This resulted in the curtailment shown above for the U.S The

SERP was further amended effective April 2010 to allow participants one-time option to convert their vested

fixed-amount dollar-denominated benefits under the SERP into equity-denominated benefits The amendment

permitted participants in the SERP to make one-time irrevocable election before June 2010 to convert between

50% and 100% of their cash balance under the plan into units representing the right to receive registered shares in

the Company During May 2010 the remaining participants elected to convert approximately $76 million of their

cash entitlement into approximately 4.7 million shares which was based on the closing share price on the date of the

election In addition during 2010 four executives in the plan left the Company resulting in the settlement shown

above for the U.S At December 31 2010 the projected benefit obligation of the SERP was $77 million
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The changes in plan assets were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 8176 89553 7096 96593

Adjustment to beginning of
year

fair value of

plan assets1 34139

Actual return on plan assets 1073 6564 1715 8212

Employer contributions 526 7273 341 8383

Plan participants c3ontributions 227

Settlements 3044
Divestitures 430

Currency fluctuations 3275 12140

Benefits paid 836 2737 976 1863

Fair value of plan assets at end of
year 8939 93904 8176 89553

Funded status $80273 $53547 $035223 $01133

Effective January 2009 our disclosures for one of our international plans reflect the defined benefit related

amounts only In previous years the plan calculations included both the defined benefit obligations and assets

and the defined contribution obligations and assets as the plan is not formally divided In an effort to provide

clarity to the defined benefit obligation specifically we requested that the actuary begin to capture the data

separately starting in 2009 As result the defined contribution obligation and assets were carved out of the

disclosure as shown above and only the true defined benefit obligations and assets remain In addition the

expense shown in the defined benefit disclosure for the year ended December 31 2009 is only the defined

benefit related expense for this plan and the defined contribution related expense for this plan is disclosed with

our other sponsored defined contribution plans at the beginning of this footnote

The amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows

December 31

2010 2009

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Noncurrent assets 2642 4526

Current liabilities 66 826 10886 542
Noncurrent liabilities 80207 55363 124337 45117
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Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income that have not yet been recognized as components of net

periodic benefit cost were as follows

December 31

2010 2009

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Net loss $14506 $25988 $41113 $10903

Net prior service costs credit 498 601 40631 811
Net transition asset 16

Total accumulated other comprehensive income $15004 $25387 $81744 $10076

The accumulated benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans was $84 million and $104 million at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively for the U.S plans and $129 million and $116 million at December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively for the international plans

The projected benefit obligation accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the pension

plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets or accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan

assets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

2010 2009

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Plans with projected benefit obligation in excess

of plan assets

Projected benefit obligation $89212 $116617 $143399 $100953

Fair value of plan assets 8939 60428 8176 55295

Plans with accumulated benefit obligation in

excess of plan assets

Accumulated benefit obligation 83877 73728 103752 69750

Fair value of plan assets 8939 32665 8176 32362

The components of net periodic benefit cost during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were as

follows

2010 2009 2008

United United United

States International States International States International

In thousands

Service cost 1032 5205 3085 6964 2879 $13557

Interest cost 4634 6858 7805 7195 6017 9905

Expected return on plan assets 595 4712 630 4031 687 8700
Amortization of transition asset

Amortization of prior service

cost credit 1578 42 3908 48 1833 47
Settlements/curtailments 37126 1188 4760 5621 126
Amortization of net loss 1320 76 6340 993 3862 319

Net periodic benefit cost $45095 6045 $25268 $11069 $19525 $14904
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New Activity

Net gain loss for the
year

Net prior service cost for the year

Reclassification Adjustments

Net loss

Prior service credit C05t

Transition asset

Total other comprehensive income

109

40133

$66740

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income expected

periodic benefit cost in 2011 are as follows

Discount rate

United States plans

International plans

Rate of compensation increase

United States plans

International plans

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income during the

years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

2010
_________

2009

United United

States International States

In thousands

$26716 $14177

150

International

$0 15506738
30244

1250 10037 993
42 4971 48

14

$15633 8498 $02491

to be recognized as components of net

United

States International

In thousands

Net loss $734 $821

Prior service costs credit 88 63

Prior service costs are amortized using an alternative straight-line method over the average remaining service

period of employees expected to receive plan benefits Assumed long-term rates of return on plan assets discount

rates and rates of compensation increases vary for the different plans according to the local economic conditions

The weighted average assumption rates used for benefit obligations were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

3.25 4.50%

1.59 7.50

2.00 4.50

5.25%

1.68 8.00

6.00

2.00 4.70
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The weighted average assumption rates used for net periodic benefit costs were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Discount rate

United States lans 5.25% 5.75 6.25% 5.75 6.00%

International plans 1.68- 8.00 1.68 -6.00 1.94-5.60

Expected return on plan assets

United States plans 7.00 7.00 7.00

International plans 4.60 6.46 4.20 7.05 4.20 7.34

Rate of compensation increase

United States plans 8.00 8.00

International plans 2.00-4.70 2.00-5.15 2.00-4.77

In determining the overall expected long-term rate of return for plan assets we take into consideration the

historical experience as well as future expectations of the asset mix involved As different investments yield

different returns each asset category must be reviewed individually and then weighted for significance in relation to

the total portfolio

The following table presents the fair values of the Companys pension plan assets as of December 31 2010

United States and International plans are combined below as there is only one United States plan with assets For an

explanation of the various levels see Note 12

Level Level Total

In thousands

Investment fundsl 93904 93904

Common/collective trust funds2 8939 8939

Total assets at fair value $102843 $102843

These international funds invest in the following 5% cash 9% U.S equities 39% non-U.S equities 37%

non-U.S fixed income securities 6% property and 4% other

These U.S funds invest in 63% equities and 37% fixed income securities

The following table presents the fair values of the Companys pension plan assets as of December 31 2009

United States and International plans are combined below as there is only one United States plan with assets For an

explanation of the various levels see Note 12

Level Level Total

In thousands

Investment fundsl $86765 $86765

Common/collective trust funds2 8176 8176

Cash 2788 _______ 2788

Total assets at fair value $2788 $94941 $97729

These international funds invest in the following 4% cash 6% U.S equities 39% non-U.S equities 41%

non-U.S fixed income securities 7% property and 3% other

These U.S funds invest in 62% equities and 38% fixed income securities
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Common/collective trust funds are valued at the net asset value of shares in the fund as determined by the issuer

which are based on the fair value ot the underlying assets Investment tunds are valued by the issuer based on the fair

value of the underlying assets

In the U.S our investment strategy includes balanced approach with target allocation percentages of 60%

equity investments and 40% fixed income investments For the international plans the assets are invested primarily

in equity investments as they are expected to provide higher long term rate of return Our pension investment

strategy worldwide prohibits direct investment in our own stock

In 2011 we expect to contribute less than $1 million in the U.S and $8 million internationally to our pension

and other postretirement benefit plans In addition the following benefit payments which reflect expected future

service and anticipated settlements as appropriate are expected to be paid

United States International

In thousands

2011 $10546 2941

2012 8411 2035

2013 7806 3709

2014 7051 3088

2015 6554 4045

2016-2020 53876 25397

17 Income Taxes

As discussed in Note we have restated our provision for income taxes and related balance sheet accounts for

2009 and 2008 in the following tables below The components of Income from Continuing Operations Before

Income Taxes were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Restated Restated

In thousands

Domestic 18104 $070793 519074

Foreign 186.485 754276 1147459

$204589 283483 $1666533

Our income tax benefit provision from continuing operations consisted of the following

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Restated Restated

In thousands

Current

U.S federal and state income taxes 34898 75532 $018446

Foreign 207790 293425 332701

Total current 242688 217953 457147

Deferred

U.S federal 72370 69221 73837

Foreign 17337 61549 10473

Total deferred 55033 130770 84310

$297721 87183 $372837
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The restatement increased our provision for income taxes by $68 million in 2009 and $123 million in 2008

primarily due to the income tax consequences of certain intercompany transactions inappropriately tax-effected

The correction of the tax-effect of these intercompany transactions resulted in an increase to our current tax expense

of $100 million in 2009 and an increase of $106 million in 2008 In addition we recorded other adjustments to our

tax provision to correct for certain errors and items recorded in the improper period These other adjustments

resulted in decrease lo our total tax provision in 2009 of $32 million which is primarily comprised of an

adjustment to the cumulative differences between book and tax basis of fixed assets and intangibles and an

adjustment related to differences between accrued tax expense and tax expense per the filed tax returns Our total

2008 tax provision was increased by $17 million which is primarily comprised of an adjustment related to

differences between accrued tax expense and tax expense per the filed tax returns

The difference betweefl the tax provision benefit at the statutory federal income tax rate and the tax

provision benefit attributable to Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes for the three years

ended December 31 2010 is analyzed below

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Restated Restated
In thousands

Statutory federal income tax rate 71606 $99219 $583287

Effect of state income tax net and alternative minimum tax 6693 8268 11177

Effect of domestic non-deductible expenses 8873 11005 20610

Change in valuation allowance 31641 636 4574
Effect of foreign income tax net 153754 37159 258222

Change in income tax reserve 20615 7101 9302
Effect of change in statutory rates 1428 6365 1782
Other 3111 4478 327

$297721 $87l83 $372837

The effect of foreign income taxes for 2009 and 2008 above includes the effect of the restatement for the

intercompany transactions inappropriately tax-effected

During 2010 we recorded expense of approximately $124 million related to the restructuring of our

Latin America operations During 2008 we recorded benefit of approximately $100 million related to foreign

taxes paid that will be used to reduce our future United States tax liability Both of these adjustments are presented in

effect of foreign income tax net for 2010 and 2008

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences

between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial statements The measurement of

deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on enacted tax laws and rates currently in effect in each of the jurisdictions

in which we have operations Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current according to

the classification of the related asset or liability for financial reporting
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The components of the net deferred tax asset liability attributable to continuing operations were as follows

December 31

Deferred tax ssets

Domestic and foreign operating losses

Accrued liabilities and reserves

Tax credits

Other differences between financial and tax basis

Differences between financial and tax basis inventory

Valuation allowance

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Property plant and equipment

Goodwill and other intangibles

Unremitted foreign earnings

Other differences between financial and tax basis

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets

2010 2009

Restated

In thousands

The overall increase in the valuation allowance in 2010 is primarily attributable to the establishment of

valuation allowance against net operating losses NOLs and tax credits in various jurisdictions Managements

assessment is that the character and nature of future taxable income may not allow us to realize the tax benefits of

the NOLs and tax credits within the allowable carryforward period Therefore an appropriate valuation allowance

has been made

In 2010 we did not provide additional taxes for the anticipated repatriation of earnings of our foreign

subsidiaries because their earnings are deemed to be indefinitely reinvested which represents change from the

prior year As result of this change we recognized tax benefit in 2010 of $23 million If the earnings in our

foreign subsidiares were not indefinitely reinvested as of December 31 2010 the estimated tax expense would be

approximately $144 million net

At December 31 2010 we had approximately $1.7 billion of NOLs $85 million of which were generated by

certain domestic subsidiaries prior to their acquisition by us The use of these acquired domestic NOLs is subject to

limitations imposed by the Intemal Revenue Code and is also restricted to the taxable income of the subsidiaries

generating these losses Loss carryforwards if not utilized will expire at various dates from 2011 through 2030

525163

136809

52348

49028

62057

102794

722611

447521

157429

102289

98247

47258

70349

782395

316682 275475

192906 179413

22585

50231 60940

559819 538413

162792 243982
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tabular reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning and end of the

period is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Restated Restated
In thousands

Balance at beginning of year 63466 $55979 $44577

Additions as result of tax positions taken during prior

period 20059 13007 11263

Reductions as result of tax positions taken during prior

period 15526 2259 71
Additions as result of tax positions taken during the current

period 4106 1991 2977

Reductions relating to settlements with taxing authorities 9397 3933 2767
Reductions as result of lapse of the applicable statute of

limitations 1986 1319

Balance at end of year 60722 $63466 $55979

Our tabular reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits above has been restated primarily to correct for

unrecognized tax benefits that had been inappropriately included in current income taxes payable This resulted in

an increase to the beginning balance of unrecognized tax benefits of $11 million in 2009 and $7 million in 2008

All of the unrecognized tax benefits if recognized in future periods would impact our effective tax rate

To the extent penalties and interest would be assessed on any underpayment of income tax such amounts have

been accrued and classified as component of income tax expense in the financial statements This is an accounting

policy election made by us that is continuation of our historical policy and will continue to be consistently applied

in the future We recognized benefit of approximately $4 million relating to interest for the period ended

December 31 2010 We recognized $8 million and $2 million of expense relating to interest for the periods ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively We recognized approximately $1 million and $5 million of penalties for

the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Penalties during the year ended December 31 2008 were

immaterial The amounts in the table above exclude accrued interest and penalties of $23 million $28 million and

$14 million at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

We are subject to income tax in many of the approximately 100 countries where we operate including major

operations in the United States the United Kingdom and Canada Many of our subsidiaries are open to examination

in the United Kingdom and Canada dating from 2003 through December 31 2010 We are open to examination in

the United States for tax years ended December 31 2005 through December 31 2009

We do not anticipate significant change in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits within the next

12 months

18 Disputes Litigation and Contingencies

U.S Government and Internal Investigations

We are currently involved in government and internal investigations involving various areas of our operations

Until 2003 we participated in the United Nations oil-for-food program governing sales of goods and services

into Iraq The U.S Department of Justice DOJ and the SEC have undertaken investigations of our participation

in the oil-for-food program and have subpoenaed certain documents in connection with these investigations We

have cooperated fully with these investigations We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to
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investigate this matter We have begun negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these matters but we

cannot yet anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations

financial or otherwise

The U.S Department of Commerce Bureau of Industry Security Office of Foreign Assets Control

OFAC DOJ anl SEC have undertaken investigations of allegations of improper sales of products and services

by the Company and its subsidiaries in certain sanctioned countries We have cooperated fully with this inves

tigation We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters and to

cooperate fully with these agencies We have begun negotiations with the government agencies to resolve these

matters but we cannot yet anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the

investigation financial or otherwise

In light of this investigation and of U.S and foreign policy environment and the inherent uncertainties

surrounding these countries we decided in September 2007 to direct our foreign subsidiaries to discontinue doing

business in countries that are subject to comprehensive U.S economic and trade sanctions specifically Cuba Iran

and Sudan as well as Syria Effective September 2007 we ceased entering into any new contracts in these countries

and began an orderly discontinuation and winding down of our existing business in these sanctioned countries

Effective March 31 2008 we substantially completed our winding down of business in these countries We can

complete the withdrawal process only pursuant to licenses issued by OFAC Our remaining activities in Iran Sudan

and Syria include ongoing withdrawal activities such as attempts to collect accounts receivable attempts to settle

tax liabilities or legal claims and attempts to recover or liquidate assets including equipment and funds Certain of

our subsidiaries continue to conduct business in countries such as Myanmar that are subject to more limited

U.S trading sanctions

The DOJ and SEC are investigating our compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act FCPA and

other laws worldwide We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters

and to cooperate fully with the DOJ and SEC As part of our investigations we have uncovered potential violations

of U.S law in connection with activities in West Africa We have begun negotiations with the government agencies

to resolve these matters but we cannot yet anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate

resolution of the investigations financial or otherwise

The DOJ SEC and other agencies and authorities have broad range
of civil and criminal penalties they may

seek to impose against corporations and individuals for violations of trade sanctions laws the FCPA and other

federal statutes including but not limited to injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties and modifications to

business practices and compliance programs In recent years these agencies and authorities have entered into

agreements with and obtained range of penalties against several public corporations and individuals in similar

investigations under which civil and criminal penalties were imposed including in some cases fines and other

penalties and sanctions in the tens and hundreds of millions of dollars These agencies are seeking to impose

penalties against us for past conduct but the ultimate amount of any penalties we may pay currently cannot be

reasonably estimated Under trade sanctions laws the DOJ may also seek to impose modifications to business

practices including immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other limitations that

decrease our business and modifications to compliance programs which may increase compliance costs Any

injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties sanctions or imposed modifications to business practices resulting

from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations In addition our historical activities in

sanctioned countries such as Sudan and Iran could result in certain investors such as govemment sponsored

pension funds divesting or not investing in our registered shares Based on available information we cannot predict

what if any actions the DOJ SEC or other authorities will take in our situation or the effect any such actions will

have on our consolidated financial position or results of operations To the extent we violated trade sanctions laws

the FCPA or other laws or regulations fines and other penalties may be imposed Because these matters are now

pending before the indicated agencies there can be no assurance that actual fines or penalties if any will not have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition liquidity or results of operations
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To date we have incurred $49 million for costs in connection with our exit from sanctioned countries and

incurred $113 million for legal and professional fees in connection with complying with and conducting these un

going investigations

Macondo Litigation

On April 20 2010 the Deepwater Horizon rig operating under contract with BP at the Macondo well in the

Gulf of Mexico exploded and sank resulting in 11 deaths several injuries and significant damages to property and

the environment

Weatherford provided the following services and products to BP on the Macondo well connected and

tightened four intermediate casing strings and one tapered production string long string furnished liner

hanger on one casing string furnished centralizers most of which were not used in the well and provided

float equipment on the long string The float equipment consisted of reamer shoe float collar and wiper plugs

The float collar is designed to control backflow or ingress of the cement through the shoe track while the cement

hardens At the time of the explosion Weatherford had two employees on the Deepwater Horizon they sustained

minor injuries

As result of the explosion approximately 400 lawsuits were filed mainly for personal injuries wrongful

death and pollution damage Weatherford is currently named along with BP and other defendants in several dozen

of these lawsuits The United States Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation issued an order centralizing most of

these cases in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana The pollution damage complaints

generally refer to the Oil Pollution Act of 1990 OPA and allege among other things negligence and gross

negligence by Weatherford and other defendants They allege that Weatherford and the other defendants are

responsible for property damage trespass nuisance and economic loss as result of environmental pollution and

generally seek awards of unspecified economic compensatory and punitive damages as well as injunctive relief

Additional lawsuits may be filed in the future relating to the Macondo incident

Weatherford was not designated as Responsible Party as that term is defined by OPA Therefore

Weatherford was not charged with responsibility for cleanin up the oil or handling any claims The Responsible

Party may make claim for contribution against any other party it alleges contributed to the oil spill Since

Weatherford has not been named Responsible Party we intend to seek to be dismissed from any and all

OPA-related claims and to seek indemnity from any and all liability under OPA

In the master service contract between BP and Weatherford under which Weatherford provided products and

services to BP related to the Macondo well BP agreed to save indemnify release defend and hold harmless

its subcontractors and their affiliates directors officers and employees from and against any claim

of whatsoever nature arising from pollution and/or contamination including without limitation such pollution or

contamination from the reservoir BP further agreed to save indemnify release defend and hold harmless

its subcontractors and their affiliates directors officers and employees from and against any claims

losses damages costs including legal costs expenses and liabilities resulting from. blowout fire explosion

cratering or any uncontrolled well condition including the costs to control wild well and the removal of debris

These indemnity pruvisiuns include direct claims asserted against Weatherfurd by third pal ties and any claim by BP

for contribution under OPA These indemnities apply regardless of the cause of the condition giving rise to the

claim The indemnities exclude claims for injury to Weatherfords employees and subcontractors However as

injuries to our two employees were minor we do not anticipate any significant liabilities with respect to our

employees

We believe that the indemnification obligations of BP are valid and enforceable However BP may seek to

avoid its indemnification obligations Should court determine that the wrongful death and personal injury
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indemnity provisions are unenforceable Weatherford might be liable for injuries to or the death of BP personnel

and personnel of third party contractors if case is adversely determined The cause of the Macondo incident

remains under investigation and has yet to be determined

If BP were to avoid its indemnities regarding personal injury and case is adversely determined against

Weatherford with respect to the Macondo incident Weatherford believes its exposure to personal injury/death

claims is within the limits of its insurance coverage Weatherford has self-insured retention of $2 million Above

that amount Weatherford has aggregate liability insurance coverage with limits of $303 million Weatherford

believes all claims for personal injury made against Weatherford even if they are not covered by indemnity from

BP are covered under its various liability insurance policies up to the $303 million in limits Weatherford has met

individually with its insurers to discuss this matter While some of our insurers have sent notices stating that they

lack sufficient information to adequately assess coverage issues at this time we do not currently anticipate there will

be substantive
coverage dispute amongst Weatherford and its insurers

We do not expect that we will have liability for these claims but the litigation surrounding these matters is

complex and likely to continue for some time and the damages claimed are significant We cannot predict the

ultimate outcome of these claims

Weatherford is cooperating fully with the investigations of the accident initiated by various agencies of the

U.S Govemment and to the extent requested has responded to several subpoenas information and document

requests and requests for testimony of employees

Shareholder Litigation

In June and July 2010 shareholders filed suit in Weatherfords name against those directors in place before

June 2010 and certain current and former members of management relating to the U.S govemment and intemal

investigations disclosed above and in our SEC filings since 2007 In March 2011 shareholders filed suit relating to

the matters described in Note above and Item 9A of our Form 10-K below We will investigate these claims

appropriately We cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these claims

Other Disputes

As result of discussions with customer we reviewed how the dual exchange rate might affect amounts we

receive for our U.S dollar-denominated receivables in Venezuela We believe our contracts are legally enforceable

and our customers continue to accept our invoices However based on the current political and economic

environment in Venezuela we believe loss is probable Accordingly we recorded reserve of $32 million

against this exposure in the fourth quarter of 2010

Our former Senior Vice President and General Counsel the Executive left the Company in June 2009 The

Executive had employment agreements with us that terminated on his departure There is currently dispute

between the Executive and us as to the amount of compensation we are obligated to pay under these employment

agreements based on the Executives separation This dispute has not resulted in lawsuit being filed It is our belief

that an unfavorable outcome regarding this dispute is not probable and as such we have not accmed for $9 million

of the Executives claimed severance and other benefits

Additionally we are aware of various disputes and potential claims and are party in various litigation

involving claims against us some of which are covered by insurance For claims disputes and pending litigation in

which we believe negative outcome is probable and loss can be reasonably estimated we have recorded

liability for the expected loss These liabilities are immaterial to our financial condition and results of operations In

addition we have certain claims disputes and pending litigation in which we do not believe negative outcome is

probable If one or more negative outcomes were to occur the impact to our financial condition could be as high as

$180 million
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19 Commitments

We are committed under various operating lease agreements primarily related to office space and equipment

Generally these leases include renewal provisions and rental payments which may be adjusted for taxes insurance

and maintenance relatd to the property Future minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating

leases are as follows in thousands

2011 $115679

2012 88466

2013

2014

2015 34368

Thereafter 188164

$531928

Total rent expense incurred under operating leases was approximately $321 million $367 million and

$188 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

20 Segment Information

Reporting Segments

We report the following regions as separate distinct reporting segments North America Middle East

North Africa/Asia Europe/West AfricaJFSU and Latin America Financial information by segment is

summarized below Revenues are attributable to countries based on the ultimate destination of the sale of products

or performance of services The total assets and capital expenditures for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 do not include the assets or activity of our discontinued operation The accounting policies of the

segments are the same as those described in the summary df significant accounting policies Results for 2009 and

2008 have been restated to correct for previously identified immaterial errors affecting operating income that were

recorded in improper periods See Note

Year Ended December 31 2010

Income Depreciation

from and Capital

_____________
Operations Amortization Expenditures

_____________

In thousands

327539 $242235

304993 380581

212010 106050

__________ _________ 181136 219661 __________

1025678 948527

387399 21656 28017 1285407

12597

99140

781453 $1047334 $976544 $19131654

60152

45099

Net

Operating
Revenues

North America

Middle EastlNorth AfricalAsia

Europe/West AfricaFSU

Latin Americaa

4166881

2450503

1984429

1618984

10220797

695607

264647

241298

53843

1255395

Total Assets at

December 31
2010

6569694

4921588

3626904

2728061

17846247

Corporate and Research and

Development

Revaluation of Contingent Consideration

Otherb

Total $10220797
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Year Ended December 31 2009

Net Income Depreciation Total Assets at

Operating from and Capital December 31
Revenues Operations Amortization Expenditures 2009

Restated Restated Restated Restated

In thousands

North America $2762264 190877 $315746 276457 6347978

Middle East/North AfricaJAsia 2372798 440371 257065 817635 4572498

Europe/West Africa/ESU 1618664 224666 167308 206559 3586895

Latin America 2079279 279888 152567 228180 3125376

8833005 1135802 892686 1528831 17632747

Corporate and Research and Development 371645 16211 40646 1063943

Revaluation of Contingent Consideration 24273

Otherc 100566 ________ _________

Total $8833005 687864 $908897 $1569477 $18696690

Year Ended December 31 2008

Net Income Depreciation Total Assets at

Operating from and Capital December 31
Revenues Operations Amortization Expenditures 2008

Restated Restated

In thousands

North America $4460147 $1105924 $310054 602876 6536410

Middle East/North AfricaJAsia 2391520 563438 196443 1123751 4322475

Europe/West Africa/PSU 1539190 374888 119957 393532 2631648

Latin America 1209707 279646 93942 312382 2010313

9600564 2323896 720396 2432541 15500846

Corporate and Research and Development 328871 11412 51622 969341

Otherd
__________ 39857

_________ __________ ____________

Total $9600564 $1955168 $731808 $2484163 $16470187

Latin America for the year ended December 31 2010 includes $76 million charge for revisions to our

profitability estimates on our project management contracts in Mexico and $32 million reserve taken against

accounts receivable balances in Venezuela in light of the countrys economic prognosis

Other for the year ended December 31 2010 includes $38 million charge related to our SERP which was

frozen on March 31 2010 $61 million for severance and facility closure costs and $7 million for legal and

professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going investigations These charges were offset by

$7 million benefit related to the reversal of prior cost accruals for our exit from certain sanctioned countries

Other for the year ended December 31 2009 includes $45 million for legal and professional fees incurred in

connection with on-going investigations by the U.S government $52 million for severance and facility closure

costs associated with reorganization activities and $4 million in costs related to the Companys withdrawal

from certain sanctioned countries

Other for the year ended December 31 2008 includes $56 million for costs incurred in connection with the

Companys withdrawal from sanctioned countries $47 million in legal and professional fees incurred in

connection with the Companys on-going investigations by the U.S government and $18 million for severance

costs incurred for restructuring activities These charges were partially offset by an $81 million gain
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recognized as result of the Company selling its 50% interest in subsidiary it controlled to Qatar Petroleum

for cash consideration of $113 million

Products and Services

We are diversified international energy service and manufacturing company that provides variety of

services and equipment to the exploration production and transmission sectors of the oil and natural gas industry

The composition ol our consolidated revenues by product line is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Drilling Services 17% 16% 16%

Artificial Lift Systems 15 14 17

Well Construction 14 15 15

Integrated Drilling 12 14

Stimulation Chemicals 12

Completion Systems Ii 10

Drilling Tools 11

Wireline

Re-entry Fishing

Pipeline Specialty Services

Total 100% 100% 100%

Geographic Areas

Financial information by geographic area for each of tIle three years ended December 31 2010 is summarized

below Long-lived assets are long-term assets excluding deferred tax assets of $107 million $74 million and

$40 million at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Revenues from Unaffiliated Customers Long-lived Assets

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Restated Restated Restated

In thousands

United States 3197064 $2118922 $3392945 4209399 4317191 4156196

Mexico 617350 1230605 293224 372238 407603 356210

Canada 969818 643342 1067202 1187136 1197723 1039899

Other Countries 5436565 4840136 4847193 6763399 6717822 5312038

$10220797 $8833005 $9600564 $12532172 $12640339 $10864343

21 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Restated results for 2010 include reduction to net income of approximately $28 million $21 million and

$50 million for the first second and third quarters respectively primarily attributable to the error in determining the

tax consequences of intercompany amounts over multiple years See Note
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Restated results for 2009 include reduction to net income of approximately $37 million $21 million and

$46 million for the first second and third quarters respectively primarily attributable to the error in determining the

tax consequences of intercompany amounts over multiple years See Note Net income for the fourth quarter of

2009 increased $20 million as result of the restatement The increase in the fourth quarter was primarily the result of

income tax benefits related to basis difference adjustments between the book and tax basis of fixed assets and

intangibles partiallyoffset by income tax expense
related to an adjustment to corrcct an crror in the calculation of the

tax consequences of intercompany amounts Results for 2010 and 2009 have been restated from our previously filed

Form 10-K to correct the allocation of the full year impact of the restatement adjustments among the fiscal quarters

__________________________
Quarter

___________ _________

First Second Third Fourth Total

Restated Restated Restated Restated

In thousands except per share amounts

2010

Revenues $2331067 $2437163 $2529752 $2922815 $10220797

Gross Profit 578607 630412 633896 794601 2637516

Net Income Loss Attributable to

Weatherford 68357 47890 94653 86331 107925

Basic Earnings Loss Per Share 0.09 0.06 0.13 0.12 0.15

Diluted Eamings Loss Per

Share 0.09 0.06 0.13 0.12 0.15

Quarter

First Second Third Fourth Total

Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated
In thousands except per share amounts

2009

Revenues $2254631 $1998427 $2144947 $2435000 $8833005

Gross Profit 716019 549623 546048 558673 2370363

Net Income Loss Attributable to

Weatherford 128008 20935 31754 10556 170141

Basic Earnings Loss Per Share 0.18 0.03 0.04 0.01 0.24

Diluted Earnings Loss Per Share 0.18 0.03 0.04 0.01 0.24

22 Other Disclosures Required by Swiss Law

Balance Sheet Item

Information regarding insurance coverage on our property plant and equipment is presented in Note 15

Insurance in the Weatherford International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements

Statement of Income Item

Information regarding our personnel expenses is presented in Note 16 Personnel Expenses in the Weatherford

International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements

Compensation and Security Ownership of Board Members and Execu five Officers

The compensation and security ownership of members of the Board of Directors of Weatherford International

Ltd and of Weatherford executive officers is presented in Note Board of Directors Compensation Note

Executive Management Compensation and Note 10 Share Ownership Board of Dircctors and Executive

Management in the Weatherford International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements
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Risk Assessment

Weatherford International Ltd.s risk assessment is presented in Note 11 Risk Assessment Disclosure of the

Weatherford International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements

23 Consolidating Financial Statements

As discussed in Note we have restated financial information for 2009 and 2008

During the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction that changed our place of incorporation from Bermuda

to Switzerkmd new Swiss corporation named Weatherford Intcrnational Ltd was formed and is now the ultimate

parent of the Weatherford
group Parent The Parent guarantees the obligations of Weatherford International Ltd

incorporated in Bermuda Weatherford Bermuda and Weatherford International Inc incorporated in Delaware

Weatherford Delaware noted below

The following obligations of Weatherford Delaware were guaranteed by Weatherford Bermuda as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 the 6.625% Senior Notes ii the 5.95% Senior Notes iii the 6.35% Senior

Notes and iv the 6.80% Senior Notes

The following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware at December 31
2009 the revolving credit facilities iithe 4.95% Senior Notes iii the 5.50% Senior Notes iv the 6.50% Senior

Notes the 5.15% Senior Notes vi the 6.00% Senior Notes vii the 7.00% Senior Notes viii the 9.625% Senior

Notes ix the 9.875% Senior Notes and issuances of notes under the commercial
paper program

In September 2010 Weatherford Bermuda issued $800 million of 5.125% Senior Notes due 2020 and

$600 million of 6.75% Senior Notes due 2040 both of which are guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware As result

of these transactions the following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware

at December 31 2010 the revolving credit facility ii the 4.95% Senior Notes iii the 5.50% Senior Notes

iv the 6.50% Senior Notes the 5.15% Senior Notes vi the 6.00% Senior Notes vii the 7.00% Senior Notes

viii the 9.625% Senior Notes ix the 9.875% Senior Notes the 5.125% Senior Notes xi the 6.75% Senior

Notes and xii issuances of notes under the commercial paper program

As result of these guarantee arrangements we are required to present the following condensed consolidating

financial information The accompanying guarantor financial information is presented on the equity method of

accounting for all periods presented Under this method investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost and

adjusted for our share in the subsidiaries cumulative results of operations capital contributions and distributions

and other changes in equity Elimination entries relate primarily to the elimination of investments in subsidiaries

and associated intercompany balances and transactions Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the current year presentation
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

ASSETS

Current Assets

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31 2010

In thousands

Parent Bermuda Delaware

Other

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

Short-term Borrowings and

Current Portion of Long-Term

Debt

Accounts Payable and Other

Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt

Intercompany Payables Net

Other Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Weatherford Shareholders Equity

Noncontrolling Interests

Cash and Cash Equivalents 124 113443

Other Current Assets 10.018 9.107

11433

85.342

290772

5.971.828

415772

6.076.295

Total Current Assets 10142 122550

Equity Investments in Affiliates 9143623 15304005

Shares Held in Parent

Intercompany Receivables Net 2233910

Other Assets 8124 39318

96775

7401552

94105

420066

294821

6262600

11308896

468801

12297324

43158076

562906

2653976

6492067

12639587

Total Assets $9161889 $17699783 $8307319 $30337621 $46374958 $19131654

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

7887 201676 25829 235392

21657 133850 114023 2078057 2347587

21657 141737

5170323

226.167

5924 77049

315699

1324743

2115

2103886

34932

2427809

468742

2653976

2582979

6529998

553830

253748 5389109 1642557 5035369 2653976 9666807

8908141 12310674 6664762 25238336

63916

43720982 9400931

63916

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders Equity $9161889 $17699783 $8307319 $30337621 $46374958 $19131654
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

ASSETS

Current Assets

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31 2009

Restated

In thousands

Parent Bermuda Delaware

Other

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Equity Investments in Affiliates

Shares Held in Parent

Intercompany Receivables Net

Other Assets

Total Assets

251.949

5619742

5871691

11441274

507780

421

98033

98454

6527676

108268

1017215

190174

$7941787

42104881

616048

2688702

102 47

496 11163

598 11210

9183803 14952128

1671487

9376 68960

$9193777 $16703785

352373

252519

5729434

5981953

12714737

$18696690

12446227

$30266972 $45409631

1868 515340

Short-term Borrowings and Current

Portion of Long-Term Debt

Accounts Payable and Other Current

Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt

Intercompany Payables Net

Other Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Weatherford Shareholders Equity

Noncontrolling Interests

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders Equity

869581

2131119

3000700

5847258

2688702

46160 107984 116404 1860571

46160 460357

3988162

118272

1848191

2375911

10905

36611 2652091

8132 132155 2309 267763

90903 4580674 1968772 5306670

9102874 12123111 5973015 24881270

2688702

42720929

__________
79032

____________

410359

9258317

9359341

79032

$9193777 $16703785 $7941787 $30266972 $45409631 $18696690
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 2010

In thousands

Other

Parent Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

Revenues $10220797 $10220797

Costs and Expenses 39534 45767 2993 9351050 9439344

Operating Income Loss 39534 45767 2993 869747
__________

781453

Other Income Expense

Interest Expense Net 982 285705 113343 5755 405785

Bond Tender Premium 15447 38526 53973

Devaluation of Venezuelan

Bolivar 63859 63859

Intercompany Charges Net 27143 2858 187546 211831

Equity in Subsidiary Income 40180 22424 1070951 1053195

Other Net 86 239347 884 291624 53247

Income Loss Before Income

Taxes 107925 82290 727659 720340 1053195 204589

Provision for Income Taxes 119545 417261 297721

Net Income Loss 107925 82295 847204 303079 1053195 93132

Noncontrolling Interests 14793 14793

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford $107925 82295 847204 288286 $1053195 107925
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 2009

Restated

In thousands

Parent Bermuda Delaware

Other

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

Revenues 8833005 8833005

Costs and Expenses 10609 25914 3011 8105607 8145141

Operating Income Loss 10609 25914 3011 727398 687864

Other Income Expense

Interest Expense Net 86 253403 114874 1ô15 366748

Intercompany Charges Net 20776 5430 143689 159035

Equity in Subsidiary Income 201603 249409 404287 855299

Other Net 208493 591 245544 37633

Income Loss Before Income

Taxes 170141 855299 283483

Provision for Income Taxes 87183

Net Income Loss 170141 855299 196300

Noncontrolling Interests 26159

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford $170141 $184015 231526 439758 $855299 170141

184015

184015

142122

89404

231526

642504

176587

465917

26159

AR-97



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 2008

Restated

In thousands

Other

Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

Revenues 9600564 9600564

Costs and Expenses 35899 1684 7607813 7645396

Operating Income Loss 35899 1684 1992751 1955168

Other Income Expense

Interest Expense Net 127684 115721 274 243679

Intercompany Charges Net 128198 128198

Equity in Subsidiary Income 1286557 1371167 2657724

Other Net 6676 1783 36497 44956

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations Before Income Taxes 1244496 1251979 1827782 2657724 1666533

Provision for Income Taxes 34578 407415 372837

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations 1244496 1286557 1420367 2657724 1293696

Income Loss from Discontinued

Operation Net of Taxes 2000 14928 12928

Net Income Loss 1246496 1286557 1405439 2657724 1280768

Noncontrolling Interests 34272 34272

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford $1246496 $1286557 $1371167 $2657724 $1246496
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2010

In thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income Loss

Adjostments to Reconcile Net Income Loss to

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities

Charges from Parent or Subsidiary

Equity in Eamings Loss of Affiliates

Deferred Income Tax Benefit

Other Adjustments

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash

Acquired

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and

Equipment

Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Purchase of Equity Investment in Unconsolidated

Affiliates

Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses

Net

Capital Contribution to Suhsidiary

Other Investing Activities

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing

Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Borrowings Repayments Short-term Debt Net

Borrowings Repayments Long-term Debt Net

Borrowings Repayments Between Subsidiaries

Net

Proceeds from Capital Contribution

Other Net

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
_________

Other

Parent Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

$007925 82295 847204 303079 $l053195 93132

27143 2858 187546

40180 22424 1070951
119558

11149 127298 274

211831

174591

2R253

1053195

29453 234875 156033 1548374

91455 52101

976544

23977

2405

196927

1267fl 25

________
41840

_________ _________ _________

91455 29169 25 858100 12696

55033

_________
1166112

__________
1128013

143556

976544

23977

2405

196927

12696

41840

__________
907715

344485

1180007

835
501269

488990

180805

834310

859543

120930 497066

19354

706249

37075

330113

12696

6652
12696

63081

120930 319102 167070 632254 12696 37848

22

102

124

19197
113396 11012 38823

47 421 251949

113443 11433 290772

19197
163253

252519

415772
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2009

Restated

In thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income Loss to Net

Cash Provided Uscd hy Opcrating Activities

Charges from Parent oi Subsidiary

Equity in Earnings Loss of Affiliates

Deferred Income Tax Benefit

Other Adjustments

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash

Acquired

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and

Equipment

Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Purchase of Equity Investment in Unconsolidated

Affiliates

Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses

Net

Capital Contribution to Subsidiary

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing

Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Borrowings Repayments Short-term Debt Net

Borrowings Repayments Long term Debt Net

Borrowings Repayments Between Subsidiaries

Net

Proceeds from Capital Contribution

Other Net

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Other

Parent Bermuda Delassare Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

170141 184015 231526 465917 8855299 196300

143689

404287
10008

________ _________
PSl3t17

__________ ________ __________

2968 236834 122227 725897
_________ __________

9695

1569477
28210

123445

474465 30
__________

474465 39 1510936

429070 110 36040

1233365 6779

92973 194416

_________ __________
72489

__________

2968 711322 121817 788186

102

23

24

371

50

102 47 421

10580

13727

238222

251949

207/6

201603

771

5430
249409

166010

159035

120762

530777

855299

26999

130770

_________
54272

_________
608322

9695

1569477
28210

26999

123445

474504

474504 1510936

392920

1226586

2968 284421

474504 474504

474504

72489

906155

10580

1412

238398

252519
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2008

Restated

In thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income Loss to Net Cash

Provided Used by Operating Activities

Charges from Parent or Subsidiary

Gain Loss from Discontinued Operation

Equity in Earnings Loss Of Affiliates

Deferred Income Tax Benefit

Other Adjustments
___________ ___________ ___________

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating Activities

Continuing Operations

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Discontinued Operation

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating Activities
___________ ___________ ___________

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash Acquired

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and Equipment

Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Purchase of Equity Investment in Unconsolidated

Affiliate

Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses Net

Capital Contribution to Subsidiary
__________ __________ __________

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities

Continuing Operat ion 350966
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Discontinued Operation
___________ ___________ ___________

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities
___________ ___________ ___________

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Borrowings Repayments Short-term Debt Net

Borrowings Repayments Long-term Debt Net

Borrowings Repayments Between Subsidiaries Net

Proceeds from Capital Contribution

Other Net _______ _______
Net Cash Provided Used by Financing Activities

Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing Activities

Discontinued Operation
___________ ___________ ___________

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing Activities
__________ __________ __________

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
___________ ___________

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
_________ _________ _________

Other

Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

1246496 1286557 1405439 $2657724 1280768

128198 128198

2000 14928 12928

1286557

21284

1371167
15687

120321
68623
43006

2657724

84310
98599

191543 220618 1522948 1110787

6219 6219

191543 220618 1516729 1104568

798530
2484163

24079

798530
2484163

24079

11568
297285

11568
297285

350966 5050 356016

5050 3021055 356016 3021055

11000 11000

3k9966 5050 3021055 356016 3010055

477821

1478333

533 21910 21377

531305 224229 1578013 356016 1977531

531305 224229 1578013 356016 1977531

204 1439

4360
69327

4360
67684

228 1489 168997 170714

24 50 238324 238398

199054 23096 301863

1483931 1166 4432
1151147 226581 924566

356016 356016
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Item Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as such term is defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-lSffl The Companys
internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the reliability of its financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP
Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2010 In connection with this assessment management identified material weakness in the

Companys internal controls over financial reporting for income taxes The Companys processes procedures and

controls related to financial reporting were not effective to ensure that amounts related to current taxes payable

certain deferred tax assets and liabilities reserves for uncertain tax positions the current and deferred income tax

expense and related footnote disclosures were accurate Specifically our processes and procedures were not

designed to provide for adequate and timely identification and review of various income tax calculations

reconciliations and related supporting documentation required to apply our accounting policies for income taxes

in accordance with U.S GAAP This material weakness resulted in the restatement for material errors in the income

tax accounts in the 2008 and 2009 consolidated financial statements and our condensed consolidated financial

statements for each of the quarters within 2009 and 2010

The principal factors contributing to the material weakness were inadequate staffing and technical expertise

within the company related to taxes ineffective review and approval practices relating to taxes inadequate

processes to effectively reconcile income tax accounts and inadequate controls over the preparation of the

quarterly tax provision

material weakness is deficiency or combination of deficiencies iii internal control ovei financial

reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of the annual or interim financial

statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis In making this assessment our management used the

criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal

Control An Integrated Framework September 1992 Because of the material weaknesses described below

management concluded that as of December 31 2010 our internal control over financial reporting was not

effective

The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 has

been audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report

which appears in Item

Remediation Plan

In an effort to remediate the material weakness the company plans to undertake the following

Redesign the tax accounting processes to improve the flow of information to provide for more timely

generation of account reconciliations and supporting documentation that will facilitate supervision and

review of the resulting account analyses
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Hire experienced personnel within the tax and financial reporting process to ensure effective preparation and

review of account reconciliations and analyses and enhance training programs for local finance and

corporate personnel

Increase the frequency of the preparation of formal tax basis balance sheet and reconciliations of the all tax

accounts to enable more timely detection of potential errors and

Implement quarterly process to highlight significant matters requiring the attention of both local finance

and corporate personnel

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

At the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K we carried out an evaluation under the

supervision and with the participation of management including the Chief Executive Officer CEO and the

Chief Financial Officer CFO of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Rules 13a-15e and 15d-l5e under the Exchange Act Based upon that evaluation the identification of material

weakness in our internal control over financial reporting as discussed in Managements Report on Internal Control

over Financial Reporting and our resulting inability to file this Annual Report on Form 10 by March 2011

our CEO and CFO have concluded our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule l3a-15e under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act were not effective to provide reasonable

assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act is

recorded processed summarized and reported within the time period specified in the SECs rules and forms

Changes in internal controls

Our management including the CEO and CFO identified no change in our internal control over financial

reporting that occurred during our fiscal quarter ended December 31 2010 that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Pursuant to General Instructions G3 information on directors and executive officers of the Registrant and

corporate govemance matters will be filed in an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by

reference from our definitive proxy statement for the annual shareholder meeting to be held on May 25 2011

The Company has adopted code of ethics entitled Code of Business Conduct which applies to all our

employees officers and directors and our board of directors has also adopted separate Supplemental Code of

Business Conduct for our senior officers Copies of these codes can also be found at www.weatherford.com

We intend to satisfy the requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K to disclose any amendments to our Code of

Business Conduct and any waivcr from any provision of our Code uf Business Conduct by posting such information

on our website at www.weatherford.com

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Pursuant to General Instructions 03 information on executive compensation will be filed in an amendment

to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the annual

shareholder meeting to be held on May 25 2011
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Item 12a Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Pursuant to General Instructions G3 information on security ownership of certain beneficial owners will be

filed in an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive
proxy

statement for the annual shareholder meeting to be held on May 25 2011

Item 12b Security Ownership of Management

Pursuant to General Instructions G3\ information on securit\ owncrship of management will be filed in an

amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by refcrcncc from our definitive proxy statement

for the annual shareholder meeting to be held on May 25 2011

Item 12d Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of December 31 2010 about the number of shares to be issued

upon vesting or exercise of equity awards including options restricted shares warrants and deferred stock units as

well as the number of shares remaining available for issuance under our equity compensation plans

Number of Shares

Remaining Available

Number of Shares for Future Issuance

to be Issued Upon Weighted Average Under Equity

Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans

Outstanding Outstanding Excluding Shares

Options Warrants Options Warrants Reflected in the

and Rights and Rights First Column

In thousands except share prices

Plan Category

F.qnity compensation plans approved by

shareholdersa 10629 $21.41 10231

Equity compensation plans not

approved by shareholdersb 23920 11.61
______

Total 34549 14.62 10231

Includes our Omnibus Plan which was approved by our shareholders in May 2006 and our 2010 Omnibus

Plan which was approved by our shareholders in June 2010

Includes the following compensation plans that were not approved by our shareholders our 1998 Employee

Stock Option Plan our Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan our Foreign Executive Deferred

Compensation Stock Ownership Plan and our 2003 Restricted Share Plan Those plans and other individual

compensation arrangements that were not approved by our shareholders are described below

Our 1998 Employee Stock Option Plan 1998 Plan provides for the grant of nonqualified options to

purchase our shares to employees or employees of our affiliates as determined by the Compensation

Committee of our Board of Directors The price at which shares may be purchased is based on the market

price of the shares and cannot be less than the aggregate par value of the shares on the date the option was

granted Unless otherwise provided in an option agreement no option may be exercised after one day less than

10
years

from the date of vesting Options generally become fully exercisable after three to four
years

from the

date of grant subject to earlier vesting in the event of the death disability or retirement of the employee or in

the event of change of control of the Company The 1998 Plan provides for the grant of options to purchase up

to 88000000 shares As of December 31 2010 there were options to purchase an aggregate of 8886316 of

our shares outstanding under the 1998 Plan all of which are vested Subsequent to the shareholder approval of

our Omnibus Plan in May 2006 awards are no longer granted under the 1998 Plan

total of 3898112 options to purchase shares of our stock were granted under individual compensation

arrangements with the fol1owing directors Mr David Butters Mr William Macaulay Mr Robert

Millard Mr Robert Moses Jr and Mr Robert Rayne At Dccember 31 2010 rhere were 1876928 of

these optor crt ic jem -PF ait vLnch crc faiiy vcstcd
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Under our Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan DDC Plan each non-employee director

may elect to defer up to 7.5% of any fees paid by the Company The deferred fees were converted into non-

monetary units representing shares that could have been purchased with the deferred fees based on the market

price of our shares on the last day of the month in which fees were deferred If non-employee director elected

to defer at least 5% of his fees we made an additional contribution to the dircctors account equal to the sum of

7.5% of the directors fees plus the amount of fees deferred by the director The non-employee directors

are fully vested at all times Our directors may generally determine when distributions will be made from the

plan but in any evqnt
all benefits under the DDC Plan will be distributed no later than January 2017 The

amount of the distribution will be number of our shares equal to the number of units at the time of distribution

As of December 31 2010 there were 121226 deferred units outstanding under this plan Effective Decem

ber 31 2008 we suspended the DDC Plan While the plan is suspended no new participants may join the plan

and no further deferrals of fees or matching contributions will be made under the plan unless and until our

Board of Directors determines otherwise

We established our Foreign Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Ownership Plan for key foreign

employees FEDC Plan and under this plan we contribute 15% of each participants total salary bonus

and commission compensation each year Our contributions vest over five-year period on the basis of 20%

per year for each year of service Under the FEDC Plan our contributions are converted into non-monetary

units equal to the number of our shares that could have been purchased with the amounts contributed based on

the average closing price of our shares for each day of the month in which contributions are made Distributions

are made under the FEDC Plan after participant retires becomes disabled or dies or after his employment is

terminated but in any event all benefits under the FEDC Plan will be distributed no later than January 2017

Distributions under the FEDC Plan are made in number of our shares equal to the number of units allocated to

the participants account at the time of distribution As of December 31 2010 there were 106632 deferred

units outstanding under this plan

In 2002 we issued warrants to purchase up to 12928856 of our shares at price of $15.00 per share which are

exercisable until February 28 2012 These warrants were issued in connection with the acquisition of

intellectual property rights and not as compensation to any employee The warrant holders may exercise the

warrants and settlement may occur through physical delivery net share settlement net cash settlement or

combination thereof The net cash settlement option upon exercise is at our sole discretion

In 2003 our Board of Directors approved restricted share plan that allows for the grant of up to 15340000 of

our shares to our key employees and directors 2003 Restricted Share Plan Restricted shares are subject to

forfeiture restrictions that generally lapse after specified period from the date of grant and are subject to

earlier vesting in the event of death retirement or change in control As of December 31 2010 there were

12534835 shares granted net of forfeitures under the 2003 Restricted Share Plan all of which are vested

Subsequent to the shareholder approval of our Omnibus Plan in May 2006 awards are no longer made under

this plan

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Pursuant to General Instmction G3 information on certain relationships and related transactions and director

independence will be filed in an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from

our definitive proxy statement for the annual shareholder meeting to be held on May 25 2011

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Pursuant to General Instruction G3 information on principal accounting fees and services will be filed in an

amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement

for the annual shareholder meeting to be held on May 25 2011
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report or incorporated by reference

The consolidated financial statements of the Company listed on page AR-43 of this report

The financial statement schedule on page AR- 115 of this report

The exhibits of the Company listed below under Item 15b

Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

1.1 Underwriting Agreement dated September 16 2010 among Weatherford International Ltd
Bermuda exempted company Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation

Weatherford International Inc Delaware corporation and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc

Morgan Stanley Co Incorporated UBS Securities LLC and JP Morgan Securities LLC as

representatives of the several underwriters named therein incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1

to the Registrants Current report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed September 22 2010

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 2005 by and between Precision Drilling Corporation and

Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Amendment No to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 2005 on Form 8-K/A File No 1-31339 filed

June 2005

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated May 2002 among Weatherford International Inc Weatherford

Merger Inc Weatherford International Ltd and Weatherford U.S Holdings LLC incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Amendment No to the Registration Statement on Form S-4

Keg No 333-85b44 filed on May 22 2U02

2.3 Share Exchange Agreement dated as of December 10 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd

Bermuda exempted company and Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed December 10 2008

2.4 Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of May 29 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Novy Investments Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K/A File No 1-34258 filed Jqne 2009

3.1 Second Amendment dated June 24 2010 to Sale and Purchase Agreement between Weatherford

International Ltd And Novy Investments Limited dated May 29 2009 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 28 2010

3.2 Organizational Regulations of Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2

to the Registranfs Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

3.3 Articles of Association of Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 23 2010

4.1 Guarantee dated as of October 25 2005 of Weatherford International Inc for the benefit of holders of

any notes issued by Weatherford Intemational Ltd from time to time pursuant to the Issuing and Paying

Agent Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 between Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford

International Inc and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October31 2005

4.2 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 2016 among Weatherford

Intemational Ltd Weatherford International Inc Weatherford Liquidity Management Hungary

Limited Liability Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative agent and the other Lenders

party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed May 2006

AR- 106



Exhibit

Number Description

4.3 Notice of Commitment Increase dated as of November 142006 among Weatherford International Ltd
Weatherford International Inc Weatherford Liquidity Management Hungary Limited Liability

Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative agent and the other Lenders party thereto

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed November 16 2006

4.4 Omnibus Consent and Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated

January 2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed January 15 2009

4.5 Credit Agreement dated March 19 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd as borrower

Weatherford international Inc as guarantor and Deutsche Bank AG Cayman Islands Branch as

administrative agent and the other lenders party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed March 25 2008

4.6 Omnibus Consent and Amendment to Credit Agreement dated January 2009 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed

January 15 2009

4.7 Indenture dated May 17 1996 between Weatherford Enterra Inc and Bank of Montreal

Trust Company as Trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Weatherford Enterra Inc.s

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-7867 filed May 31 1996

4.8 Third Supplemental Indenture dated November 16 2001 between Weatherford International Inc and

The Bank of New York as Trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Registration

Statement on Form S-3 Reg No 333-73770 filed November 20 2001

4.9 Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated June 26 2002 among Weatherford international Inc
Weatherford International Ltd and The Bank of New York as successor in interest to Bank of

Montreal Trust Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Registrants Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2002 File No 1-13086 filed August 14 2002

4.10 Indenture dated October 2003 among Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford International

Inc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 2003

4.11 Officers Certificate dated as of February 17 2006 establishing the series of 5.50% Senior Notes due

2016 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed February 17 2006

4.12 Officers Certificate dated August 2006 establishing thc series of 6.50% Senior Notes due 2036

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed August 2006

4.13 First Supplemental Indenture dated March 25 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd
Weatherford International inc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

March 25 2008

4.14 Indenture dated June 18 2007 among Weatherford International Inc as issuer Weatherford

International Ltd as guarantor and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as trustee

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-3 1339 filed on June 18 2007

4.15 First Supplemental Indenture dated June 18 2007 among Weatherford Intemational Inc as issuer

Weatherford International Ltd as guarantor and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as trustee

including forms of notes incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed on June 18 2007

4.16 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 2009 among Weatherford international Ltd
Weatherford lnternational Inc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

January 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

4.17 Form of global note for 5.95% Senior Notes due 2012 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 Registration No 333-146695 filed November

2007

4.18 Form of global note for 5.15% Senior Notes due 2013 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed March 25 2008

4.19 Form global note for 4.95% Senior Notes due 2013 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 2003

4.20 Form of global note for 5.50% Senior Notes due 2016 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed February 17 2006

4.21 Form of global note for 6.00% Senior Notes due 2018 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed March 25 2008

4.22 Form of gicibal note for 9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed January 2009

4.23 Form of $500000 global note for 6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed August 2006

4.24 Form of $100000 global note for 6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed August 2006

4.25 Form of global note for 6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 Registration No 333-146695 filed November

2007

4.26 Form of global note for 7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed March 25 2008

4.27 Form of global note for 9.875% Senior Notes due 2U39 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed January 2009

4.28 Amended and Restated Warrant Agreement dated effective as of July 12 2006 by and among
Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford International Inc and Shell Technology Ventures Inc

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-3 1339 filed July 14 2006

4.29 Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 26 2009 among Weatherford International Inc

Delaware corporation Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford

International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation and The Bank of New York as successor trustee to

the Indenture dated as of May 17 1996 the 1996 Indenture incorporated by reference to Exhibit4.1

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

4.30 Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 26 2009 among Weatherford International Ltd
Bermuda exempted company Weatherford International Inc Weatherford International Ltd Swiss

joint-stock corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as trustee to the Indenture dated

as of October 2003 the 2003 Indenture incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

4.31 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 26 2009 among Weatherford International Inc
Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford International Ltd Swiss

joint-stock corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as trustee to the Indenture dated

as of June 18 2007 the 2007 Indenture incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

4.32 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of July 27 2U09 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Novy Investments Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed July 27 2009

4.33 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of September 16 2009 between Weatherford International

Ltd and Integrity Energy International LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed September 17 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

4.34 Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated September 23 2010 among Weatherford International Ltd
Bermuda exempted company Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation

Weatherford International Inc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2010 File No 1-34258 filed November 2010

4.35 Form of global note for 5.125% Senior Notes due 2020 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed September 22 2010

4.36 Form of global note for 6.750% Senior Notes due 2040 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed September 22 2010

4.37 Form of guarantee notation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1034258 filed September 22 2010

10.1 Issuing and Paying Agent Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

October 31 2005

10.2 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and JPMorgan Securities Inc incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October31 2005

10.3 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and Goldman Sachs Co incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Reporton Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October31 2005

10.4 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and Merrill Lynch Money Markets Inc for notes with maturities

up to 270 days and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated for notes with maturities over

270 days up to 397 days incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 31 2005

10.5 Weatherford International Ltd Restricted Share Plan including form of agreement for officers and non-

officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10 for the quarter ended March 31 2004 on Form 10-QA File No 1-3 1339 filed

September 15 2004

10.6 Trust under Weatherford International Ltd Nonqualified Executive Retirement Plan dated March 23
2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10 for

the quarter ended March 31 2004 File No 31339 filed May 2004

10.7 Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 1995

File No 1-13086 filed August 12 1995

10.8 General Amendment of Employee Stock Option Programs of Weatherford International Inc dated

May 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2003 File No 1-31339 filed August 14 2003

10.9 General Amendment of Directors Stock Option Plans and Agreements dated May 2003

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended June 30 2003 File No 1-31339 filed August 14 2003

10.10 Weatherford International Inc 1998 Employee Stock Option Plan as amended including form of

agreement for officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003 File No 1-13086 filed March 24 2004

10.11 Amendment to Stock Option Programs incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-8 Reg No 333-36598 filed May 19 2000

10.12 Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 29 2005 between Weatherford International Ltd

and Andrew Becnel incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed October 2005
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.13 Indemnification Agreements with Robert Moses Jr incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

Weatherford Enterra Inc.s Annual Report on Form 10 for the year ended December 31 1987

File No 1-7867 and William Macaulay incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Weatherfnrd

Enterra Inc.s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 1995

File No 1-7867

10.14 Indemnification Agreements with each of Bernard Duroc Danner Burt Martin Stuart Ferguson

David Butters Robert Rayne Robert Moses Jr Robert Millard and William Macaulay

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended September 30 2002 File No 1-13086 filed November 13 2002

10.15 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors dated September 1998 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 1998 File No 1-13086 filed March 31 1999

10.16 Form of Amendment to Stock Option Agreements dated September 1998 for Non-Employee

Directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8

Reg No 333-36598 filed May 2000

10.17 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors dated July 2000 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.16 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 Reg No 333-48322 filed

October 20 2000

10.18 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors dated September 26 2001 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 Reg No 333 81678 filed

January 30 2002

10.19 Assumption and General Amendment of Directors Stock Option and Benefit Programs and General

Amendment of Employee Stock Option and Benefit Programs of Weatherford International Inc dated

June 26 2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2002 File No 113086 filed August 14 2002

.1o.2o Indemnification Agreement dated October 27 2006 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Jessica Abarca incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 27 2006

10.21 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement for Officers pursuant to Weatherford International

Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2006 File No 1-31339 filed

February 23 2007

10.22 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for Officers pursuant to Weathei-ford International Ltd 2006

Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 File No 1-3 1339 filed Febmary 23 2007

10.23 Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Non-employee Directors pursuant to Weatherford

International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 File No 1-31339

filed February 23 2007

10.24 Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Officers pursuant to Weatherford International Ltd

2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 File No 1-31339 filed February 23

2007

10.25 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors pursuant to Weatherford

International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006

File No 1-3 1339 filed February 23 2007

10.26 Indemnification Agreement dated as of June 11 2007 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Keith Morley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed June 11 2007
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.27 Amended and Restated Employment Agreements dated December 31 2008 between Weatherford

International Ltd and each of Jessica Abarca Andrew Becnel David Colley Bernard

Duroc-Danner Stuart Ferguson Burt Martin and Keith Morley incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed December 31

2008

10.28 Employment Agreements effective as of January 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and each

of Jessica Abarca Andrew Becnel David Colley Bernard Duroc-Danner Stuart Ferguson Burt

Martin and Keith Morley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.29 Weatherford International Inc Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Ownership Plan as amended

and restated as of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed December 31 2008

10.30 Weatherford International Inc Foreign Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Plan as amended and

restated as of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1U.4 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.31 Weatherford International Ltd Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation as amended and

restated as of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.32 Weatherford International Ltd Non-Employee Director Retirement Plan as amended and restated as of

December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.33 Weatherford Maftagement Incentive Plan including Form of Award Letter as amended and restated as

of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.34 Amended and Restated Weatherford International Ltd Nonqualified Executive Retirement Plan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.35 Weatherford International Inc Supplemental Retirement Plan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

December 31 2008

10.36 Weatherford International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan as amended incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31

2008

10.37 Amendment to Weatherford International Inc 1992 Employee Stock Option Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed

December 31 2008

10.38 Amendment to Weatherford International Ltd Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agreements

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.39 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Weatherford

International Ltd and Carel Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed

February 24 2009

10.40 Employment Agreement dated Febrnary 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

Carel Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed Febrnary 24 2009

10.41 Indemnification Agreernent dated as of Febrnary 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Carel Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-3 1339 filed Febrnary 24 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.42 Indemnification Agreement dated as of February 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

Carel Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10 for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-3 1339 filed February 24 2009

10.43 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Weatherford

International Ltd and James Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed

Februai4y 24 2009

10.44 Employment Agreement dated February 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

James Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.45 Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 2002 between Weatherford International Ltd

and James Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K.for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.46 Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 2002 between Weatherford International Inc

and James Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.47 Warrant Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated February 26 2009 between Weatherford

International Ltd Bermuda exempted company and Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-

stock corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.48 Guaranty Agreement dated as of February 26 2009 by Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-

stock corporation in favor of the lenders and certain other parties under the Second Amended and

Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 2006 among Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda

exempted company Weatherford International Inc Weatherford Liquidity Management Hungary

Limited Liability Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as administrative agent and the other Lenders

party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.49 Guaranty Agreement dated as of February 26 2009 by Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-

stock corporation in favor of the lenders and certain other parties under the Credit Agreement dated as

of March 192008 among Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford

International Inc Deutsche Bank AG Cayman Islands Branch as administrative agent and the other

Lenders party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 34258 filed February 26 2009

10.50 Guaranty Agreement dated as of February 26 2009 by Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-

stock corporation in favor of the lenders and certain other parties under the Credit Agreement dated as

of October 20 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company
Weatherford International Inc UBS AG Stamford Branc as administrative agent and the other

Lenders party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.51 Assumption and General Amendment Agreement dated February 25 2009 between Weatherford

International Ltd Bermuda exempted company and Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-

stock corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.52 Form of Indemnification Agreement of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation

for use with directors and executive officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.53 Employment Agreement dated as of June 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Joseph Henry incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.54 Employment Agreement dated as of June 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

Joseph Henry incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

q55 Indemnification Agreement dated as of February 262009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Joseph Henry incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Fnrm 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 200Q

10.56 Employment Agreement dated as of March 30 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

William Jacobson incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.57 Employmeht Agreement dated as of March 30 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

William Jacobson incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.58 Indemnification Agreement dated as of March 30 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

William Jacobson incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.59 Employment Agreement dated as of July 21 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Peter Fontana incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed July 22 2009

10.60 Employment Agreement dated as of July 21 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and Peter

Fontana incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed July 22 2009

10.61 Indemnification Agreement dated as of July 21 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Peter Fontana incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed July 22 2009

10.62 Form of Employment Agreement between Weatherford International Ltd and each of Jessica Abarca

Andrew Becnel David Colley Stuart Ferguson and Keith Morley incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed

December 31 2009

10.63 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan effective as of January 2010 between Weatherford

International Ltd and each of Jessica Abarca Andrew Becnel David Colley Bernard

Duroc-Danner Stuart Ferguson and Keith Morley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed December 31 2009

10.64 First amendment to the Weatherford International Ltd Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

effective March 31 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current
report

on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed March 23 2010

10.65 Weatherford International Ltd Performance Unit Award Agreement incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed March 23 2010

10.66 Second amendment to the Weatherford International Ltd Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

effective April 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed April 2010

10.67 Form of amended and restated Employment Agreement between Weatherford International Ltd and

each of Bemard Duroc-Danner Peter Fontana Nicholas Gee Joseph Henry Carel

Hoyer James Hudgins and William Jacobson incorporated by reference to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed April 13 2010

10.68 Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement pursuant to Weatherford International Ltd 2010 Omnibus

Incentive Plan incorporated by references to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10 for the quarter ended June 30 2010 File No 1-34258 filed August 2010

-10.69 Employment Agreement dated September 14 2010 between Andrew Becnel and Weatherford

International Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed September 15 2010
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.70 Credit Agreement dated as of October 15 2010 among Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda

exempted company Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock corporation and other

Borrowers party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as Swingline Lender

JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent and Swingline Lender and the other

parties thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed October 19 2010

10.71 Guaranfee Agreement dated October 15 2010 among Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford

International Inc and JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30
2010 File No 1-34258 filed November 2010

10.72 Weatherford International Ltd 2010 Omnibus incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Annex of

the Registrants Proxy Statement File No 1-34258 filed May 13 2010

10.73 Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement for use under the Weatherford International Ltd 2010

Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 22 2011

10.74 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement for use under the Weatherford International Ltd 2010

Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 22 2011

10.75 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement U.K version for use under the Weatherford

International Ltd 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 22 2011

10.76 Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for use under the Weatherford International Ltd 2006

Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 22 2011

10.77 Weatherford International Ltd Non-Equity Incentive Compensation Plan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 22

2011

t21.1 Subsidiaries of Weatherford International Ltd

t23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

t3 1.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

t3 1.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer putsuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

t32.l Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

t32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Furnished with this Form 10-K

Filed herewith

As permitted by Item 601 b4iiiA of Regulation S-K the Company has not filed with this Annual Report

on Form 10-K certain instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its

subsidiaries because the total amount of securities authorized under any of such instruments does not exceed 10% of

the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis We will furnish copy of
any

of such

instruments to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request

We will furnish to any requesting shareholder copy of any of the above named exhibits upon the payment of

our reasonable expenses of obtaining duplicating and mailing the requested exhibits All requests for copies of

exhibits should be made in writing to our U.S Investor Relations Department at 515 Post Oak Blvd Houston TX

77027

Financial Statement Schedules

Valuation and qualifying accounts and allowances
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SCHEDULE II

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND ALLOWANCES
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

Additions

Balance at Charged to Balance at

Beginning Costs and End of

Description of Period Expenses Collections Deductions Period

In thousands

Year Ended December 31 2010

Allowance for uncollectible

accounts receivable $20466 $56803 213 $18726 $58756

Year Ended December 31 2009

Allowance for uncollectible

accounts receivable 16425 11328 28 7315 20466

Year Ended December 31 2008

Allowance for uncollectible

accounts receivable 13760 5970 4975 8280 16425

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required or because the information is included in the

financial statements or the related notes
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Statutory Financial Statements

Weatherford International Ltd

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2010



Ernst Young Ltd

Brandschenkestrasse 100

8022 Zurich

Switzerland

Phone 41 582863111

Pax 41 58 286 40 20

www.ey.com/ch

To the Annual General Meeting of

Weatherford International Ltd Zug

Zurich March 2011

As statutory auditor we have audited the financial statements of Weatherford International Ltd which comprise the

balance sheet statement of income and notes pages SR-2 to SR- 14 for the year ended December 31 2010

Board of Directors responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the

requirements of Swiss law and the companys articles of incorporation This responsibility includes designing imple

menting and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement whether due to fraud or error The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and

applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit

in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor

considers the internal control system relevant to the entitys preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the entitys internal control system An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates made as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements for the
year ended December 31 2010 comply with Swiss law and the

companys articles of incorporation

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act AOA and

independence article 728 CO and article 11 AOA and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our independence

In accordance with article 728a paragraph item CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890 we confirm that an internal

control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements according to the instructions of

the Board of Directors

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved

Ernst Young Ltd

Is RoBIN ERRIc0 Is JOLANDA DOLENTE

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert

Auditor in charge
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

In CHF thousands

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash quivalents 116 106

Other Current Assets 9606 509

Total Current Assets 9722 615

Leasehold Improvements and Other 1463 1938

Intangible Assets 6179 7792

Due From Affiliates 16101

Investment in Affiliates 8627348 8532414

Total Assets 8660813 8542759

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 827

Accrued Expenses 19542 3807

Total Current Liabilities 20369 3807

Due to Affiliates 196436 38500

Other Liabilities 5572 8439

Deferred Foreign Currency Gains 13750

Total Long-Term Liabilities 215758 46939

Shareholders Equity

Share Capital 879798 879798

Legal Reserve

General Legal Reserves from Capital Contribution 7124852 7646851

Reserve for Treasury Shares from Capital Contribution 47099 100

Free Reserves from Capital Contribution 475000

Retained Earnings 102063 34736

Total Shareholders Equity 8424686 8492013

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 8660813 8542759

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statutory financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

November 26
Year Ended 2008 inception

December 31 to December 31
2010 2009

In CHF thousands

Income

Costs and Expenses

Foreign Exchange Gains 7714 505
Management Fee 26844 22240

General and Administrative Expenses 48197 13001

67327 34736

Loss Before Income Taxes 67327 34736

Net Loss 67327 34736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statutory financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General

On February 25 2009 Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation the Company we
Weatherford and Weatherford Switzerland and Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company

Weatherford Bermuda completed share exchange transaction under the terms of share exchange agreement

dated as of December 10 2008 The transaction was effected by way of scheme of arrangement under Bermuda

law for purposes of changing the Companys place of incorporation from Bermuda to Switzerland collectively the

Transaction Pursuant to the Transaction each common share par value U.S $1.00 per share of Weatherford

Bermuda was exchanged for one registered share par value 1.16 Swiss francs CHF per share of Weatherford

Switzerland

Summary of Signjficant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law

Exchange Rate Differences

The Company keeps its accounting records in U.S Dollars USD and translates them into Swiss Francs CHF
for statutory reporting purposes Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into CHF

using the year-end rates of exchange except investments in affiliates and the Companys equity other than current

year transactions which are translated at historical rates Income statement transactions are translated into CHF at

the average rate of the year Exchange differences arising from business transactions are recorded in the income

statement except for net unrealized gains which are deferred in accordance to Swiss law

Financial Assets

Investments in affiliates are valued at acquisition cost less adjustments for impairment of value
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Investment in Affiliates

The Companys principal investments in affiliates include

Equity

Interest

Name of Legal Entity Domicile

PD International teasing Inc Barbados 100%

Key International Drilling Company Limited Bermuda 100%

Weatherford Bermuda Holdings Ltd Bermuda 100%

Weatherford International Limited Bermuda 100%

Weatherford Industria Comercio Ltda Brazil 100%

Weatherford Drilling International BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands 100%

Weatherford Holdings BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands 100%

Weatherford Oil Tool Middle East Limited British Virgin Islands 100%

Weatherford Canada Partnership Canada 100%

Weatherford Global Products Limited Cyprus 100%

Weatherford Oil Tool GmbH Germany 100%

Weatherford Hong Kong Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100%

Weatherford European Holdings Luxembourg Sari Luxembourg 100%

Weatherford Luxembourg S.a.r.l Luxembourg 100%

PD Oilfield Services Mexicana de R.L de C.V Mexico 100%

Weatherford de Mexico de R.L de C.V Mexico 100%

Al-Shaheen Well Services Company Qatar 50%

Chernogornefteservice LLC1 Russia 100%

KUIK Nizhnevartovsk LLCl Russia 100%

KUIK Nyagan LLCl Russia 100%

KUIK Orenburg LLCi Russia 100%

Nizhnevartovskburneft CJSC1 Russia 100%

NPRS-1 LLCl Russia 100%

OBSK LLC1 Russia 100%

Orenburgburneft CJSCl Russia 100%

STU LLC1 Russia 100%

UKRS LLCi Russia 100%

WFT Technologies LLC Russia 100%

Weatherford Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore 100%

Weatherford Holdings Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore 100%

Weatherford Switzerland Trading and Development GmbH1 Switzerland 100%

Weatherford Worldwide Holdings GmbH Switzerland 100%

Weatherford U.K Limited U.K 100%

ILl Acquisition Corp U.S 100%

Integrity Delaware Holdco Inc.l U.S 100%

Precision Oilfield Services LLP U.S 100%

Weatherford Artificial Lift Systems Inc U.S 100%

Weatherford International Inc U.S 100%

Weatherford U.S Holdings L.L.C U.S 100%

WEUS Holding Inc U.S 100%

Precision Drilling de Venezuela C.A Venezuela 100%

Weatherford Latin America S.A Venezuela 100%

Directly owned by Weatherford International Ltd
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Intangible Assets

The Company entered into an agreement with service provider during 2009 to provide certain administrative

support In connection with this agreement the Company was granted license to certain intellectual property of the

service provider The Company paid CHF million to the service provider for this license The prepaid license will

be amortized over the life of the contract which is eight years As of December 31 2010 the net book value of the

intangibles recognized by the Company was CHF million

Shareholders Equity
General Reserve for

Legal 1easnry

Reserves Shares Free Reserve Total

Share from
Capital

from Capital from Capital Retained Shareholders

Shares Amount Contribution Contribution Contribution Earnings Equity

In CHF thousands except share data

Balance at November 26

2008 inception 10000000 100 100

Change in Par Value 9913794

Shares Issued to

Weatherford

International Ltd

Bermuda shareholders

in Redomestication2 697802003 845388 7070809 100 7916297

Shares issued to

Weatherford Bermuda

Holdings Ltd.1 28053693

Shares issued to

Weatherford

International Inc 2926729

Shares Issued for business

acquisitions3 29578006 34310 576042 610352

Net Income 34736 34736

Balance at December 31

2009 758446637 879798 7646851 100 34736 8492013

Net Income 67327 67327

Transfer of Legal Reserves

to Free Reserves 475000 475000

Treasury Share

Purchases
_______

46999 46999

Balance at December 31

2010 758446637 879798 7124852 47099 475000 102063 8424686

Shares issued to Weatherford International Inc WIT and Weatherford Bermuda Holdings Limited

WBHL to satisfy obligations of the Company to deliver shares under share-based compensation incentive

plans warrants or other rights to acquire shares of the Company These shares are held by WIT and WBHL

solely for transfer to the Company and do not carry any value in treasury share reserve as they were issued by the

Company in the Redomestication Transaction for no value During 2010 we purchased 2.7 million shares in

connection with share-based compensation valued at CHF 47 million See Note Treasury Shares

The reserve for treasury shares at Redomestication represents the cost of treasury shares held by WBHL on

behalf of the Company which were originally issued for CHF 100000 at formation of the Company and were

transferred to the Company as part of the Redomestication Transaction

See Note and Note 13 regarding shares issued for acquisitions in 2009
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

As of December 31 2010 the Company has 379223318 shares authorized and 379223318 conditional

shares There were 334856309 shares authorized and 364434315 conditional shares at December 31 2009

In 2009 the Companys articles of association provided for authorized and conditional capital allowing the

Board of Directors to authorize the issuance of additional registered shares up to maximum amount of 50% of the

share capital registere in the commercial register without obtaining additional shareholder approval In 2010
shareholders voted to amend the Companys Articles of Association in order to extend the authorization and

increase the issuable authorized capital to 50% of the stated capital at May 2010 Similarly the shareholders

voted to amend the Companys Articles of Association in order to increase the conditional share capital to 50% of

the stated capital at May 2010

Treasury Shares

For the period from November 26 2008 to December 31 2010 the number of treasury shares held by our

subsidiaries and their movements are as follows in thousands

Balance as of November 26 2008

Redomestication shares 32931

Shares issued in acquisitions 5398

Equity awards granted vested and exercised 5274

Balance as of December 31 2009 22259

Shares issued in acquisitions 1780
Equity awards granted vested and exercised 2109

Balance as of December 31 2010 18370

The treasury shares issued for acquisitions in 2010 and 2009 were valued on the acquisition dates at CHF
30 million and CHF 113 million respectively In addition the proceeds of the treasury share transfers in connection

with exercises of options amounted to CHF million and CHF million for the years ended December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively The transfer of treasury shares undqr our restricted share plans was at book value

Included in the consolidated financial statements at December 31 2010 and 2009 are 4.3 million shares and

6.5 million shares respectively for restricted share awards outstanding which have restrictions that have not lapsed

Significant Shareholders

The tables below show information for each
person known by us whose participation exceeds 5% of the

Companys shares as of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively

For the year ended December 31 2010

Name Number of Shares Percent of Shares1

ClearBridge Advisors LLC2 41464115 5.5%

The percentage indicated is based on the Companys 758446637 issued shares as of December 31 2010

The beneficial owner has sole voting power over 34172730 shares and sole dispositive power over all shares

For the year ended December 31 2009

Name Number of Shares3 Percent of Shares4

ClearBridge Advisors LLC5 50106539 6.6%

FMR LLC6 54939304 7.2%

SR-7



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The number of shares is based on information contained in Schedule 13G filed with the SEC

The percentage indicated is based on the Companys 758446637 issued shares as of December 31 2009

The beneficial owner has sole voting power over 41766153 shares and sole dispositive power over all shares

The beneficial twner has sole voting power over 4331373 shares and sole dispositive power over all shares

Board of Directors Compensation

The following tables set forth the compensation for each of our non-employee directors for the years ended

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively Mr Duroc-Danner was an executive officer and director

in 2010 and 2009 and his compensation is included in the Executive Management Compensation footnote We do

not compensate Mr Duroc-Danner for his service on the Board

For the year ended December 31 2010

Fees Paid ia Share-based Total

Name Function Cash1 Compensation2 Compensation

In CHF thousands

David Butters35 Presiding Director and Chairman 191 197 388

of the Corporate Governance and

Nominating Committee

Samuel Bodman III34 94 308 402

Nicholas BradyS 108 197 305

William Macaulay4 Chairman of the Compensation 128 197 325

Committee

Robert MillardS 122 197 319

Robert Moses Jt34 164 197 361

Guillermo Ortiz3 113 308 421

Emyr ParryS 72 308 380

Robert Rayne3 Chairman of the Audit Committee 166 197 363

Total 1158 2106 264

Fees Paid in Cash represent payments from January 2010 to December 31 2010 for retainers and meeting

attendance

Each new non-employee director Messrs Bodman Ortiz and Parry was awarded 6766 restricted share units

on June 23 2010 In addition each non-employee director was awarded 12000 restricted share units on

September 14 2010 The value above represents the fair value of each award on the date of grant which was

based the Companys closing share price on that day

Members of the Audit Committee in 2010

Members of the Compensation Committee in 2010

Members of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee in 2010
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

For the
year ended December 31 2009

Fees Paid in Share-based Total

Name Function Cash6 Compensation7 Compensation

In CHF thousands

David Butters8l0 Presiding Director and 235 192 427

Chairman of the Corporate

Governance and Nominating

Committee

Nicholas Brady10 102 192 294

William Macaulay910 117 192 309

Robert Millard Chairman of the 127 192 319

Cnmpensatinn

Committee

Robert Moses Jt89 202 192 394

Robert Rayne810 Chairman of the Audit 209 192 401

Committee

Total 992 1152 2144

Fees Paid in Cash represent payments from January 2009 to December 31 2009 for retainers and meeting

attendance

Each nnn-employee director was awarded 9200 restricted share units on September 2009 The value above

represents the fair value on the date of grant which was based on the Companys closing share price on that

day

Members of the Audit Committee in 2009

Members of the Compensation Committee in 2009

10 Members of the Corporate Govemance and Nominating Committee in 2009

Executive Management Compensation

The following table sets forth the compensation awarded to our executive management team for the years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 Mr Duroc-Danner was the highest paid executive management team member

in 2010 and 2009 and is shown separately in the table in addition to being included in the total See Note 10 for list

of executive management team members in 2010 and 2009

For the Year Ended December 31 2010 For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Total for Executive Total for Highest Total for Executive Total for Highest

Type of Compensation Management Team Paid Member Management Team1 Paid Member

In CHF thousands

Salary 7336 1760 7729 1781

Discretionary bonuses 534 4990 2032

Share-based awards2 15632 7049 30945 11492

Benefit plan/deferred 343 38 344 11

compensation plan

contributions

Severance pay34 43250 13207

OtherS 3223 804 1793 276

Total 70318 9651 59008 15592
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Included in the executive management team total are five new vice presidents all promoted during 2009 see

Share Ownership footnote for specific dates The compensation included for each of the new vice presidents

consists of the total compensation paid during the year including the time period prior to their appointment as an

executive management team member

Share-based awards were granted to executive management on various days within the year and vest over the

next five years The value above is an accumulation of the grant date fair value of each of those awards The

grant date fair value of each of the awards was based on the Companys closing stock price on the date of grant

or when applicable calculated fair value derived using Monte Carlo valuation model

In 2010 four executives left the Company The amount above represents their severance benefits in accordance

with their employment agreements including the lump sum equivalent of their pension plan benefit which was

paid in 2010

In June 2009 Burt Martin Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary left the Company This

payment represents the lump sum equivalent of his pension plan benefit which was paid in December 2009

Other includes car allowance life insurance premiums club dues relocation pay expatriate benefits employer

healthcare Medicare and social security costs
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

10 Share Ownership Board of Directors and Executive Management

The following tables show the number of participations in the Company as well as conversion and option rights

of each member of the Board of Directors Executive Management and any person considered close to each such

member as of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively

For the year
endeä December 31 2010

Name

Non-employee Board

of Directors

Samuel Bodman In

Nicholas Bdy
David Butter.s

william Macaulay

Robert Millard

Robert Moses Jr

Guillermo Ortiz

Emyr Jones Parry

Robert Raynel

Executives

nernard Duroc

Danoer

Andresv Becnel

Peter Fontana

Nicholas Gee

Joseph Henry

Card Hoyer

James Hodgins

william Jacobson

Member of the Board

Member of the Board

Presiding Director Committee

Chairman and Member of the

Board

Committee Chairman and Member

of the Board

Member of the Board

Member of the Board

Member of the Board

Member of the Board

Committee Chairman and Member

of the Boaid

Chairman of the Board President

and Chief Executive Officer

Senior vicc President and Chief

Financial Officer

Senior vice President and Chief

Operating Officer

vice President Completion and

Production

vice President and Co-General

Counsel

Senior vice President well

Construction and Reservoir

Evaluation

vice President Tax

vice President Co-General Coonsel

and Chief Compliance Officer

Mr Rayne serves as Chief Executive Officer and director of LMS Capital plc which beneficially owns

2050000 shares as of December 31 2010 Mr Rayne disclaims beneficial ownership of all of the shares

beneficially owned by LMS Capital plc

runelion

Amount and Nature of Shares Beneficially Owned

Exercisable Unexercisable

Direct Includes Unveated Options Options Deferred

401k Shares Restricted Notional Performance Compensation

Held Shares/Units Share Units Units Plan Holdings Grand Total

56400 18766

869850 20800

75166

5679 896329

62831 612805226774 20800 302400

761518

1303044

557050

2000

20800

20800

20800

18766

18766

854528

240000

10710

8798

11441

1647556

1572642

589291

18766

20766

150902 20800 480000 21767 673469

1582.871 51640 6259211 866685 386292 9611509

292982 177383 1083199 147232 4421 1746217

162614 60000 n478 228092

1711 28615 58893 89219

52.980 56986 38000 44170 16772 208908

96500

Th424

70500

29667

15252

49302

285314

198563

26309 85413 58893 170615

103062

44170
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

For the year ended December 31 2009

Member of the Board

committee chairman and Member

of the Board

Member of the Board

committee chairman and Member

of the Board

chairman of the Board President

and chief Execntive Officer

Sentor Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

Senior Vice President

Reservoir Prodnction and Chief

Technology Officer

Senior Vice President Well

Construction Operations Support

Vice President Accounting and

Chief Accounting Officer

Vice President Artificial Lift

Olobal Business Unit

Vice President Western

Hemisphere since July 2009

Vice President and Co General

Counsel since June 2009

Vice President Well Construction

Services since Febmary 2009

Vice President Tax since

Febmary 2009

Vice President Co General Counsel

and Chief Compliance Officer since

June 2009

862064 17200

218988 17200 302400

75J732 17200 854528

680730 17200 854528

549264 17200

143116 17200 480000

Mt Rayne serves as Chief Executive Officer and director of LMS Capital plc Which beneficially owned

2050000 shares at December 31 2009 Mr Rayne disclaims beneficial ownership of all of the shares

beneficially owned by LMS Capital plc

11 Risk Assessment Disclosure

Weatherford International Ltd as the ultimate parent company of the Weatherford
group

of affiliates is fully

integrated into the Company-wide internal risk assessment process

The Company-wide internal risk assessment process consists of regular reporting to the Board of Directors on

identified risks and managements reaction to them The procedures and actions to identify the risks and where

appropriate remediate are performed by specific corporate functions e.g Treasury Legal Internal Audit

Engineering and Operations as well as by the business units of the Company

These functions and business units have the responsibility to support and monitor the Company-wide

procedures and processes to ensure their effective operation

Function

Member of the Board

Presiding Director Committee

Chairman and Member of the

Board

Name

Non-employee Board

of Directors

Nicholas Brady

David Butters

William Macaulay

Robert Millard

Robert Moses Jr

Robert Rayne2

Executives

Bernard Duroc

Danner

Andrew Becnel

Stuart Ferguson

Keith Morley

Jessica Abarca

navid Colley

Peter Fontana

Joseph Henry

Card Hoyer

James Hudgins

William Jacobson

Amount and Nature of shares Beneficially Owned

Direct Includes Unvested Deferred

401k Shares Restricted Exercisahie Unexercisable Compensation

Held Shares/Units Options Options Plan Holdings Grand Total

5679 884943

62831 601419

10710 1636170

8798 1561256

11441 577905

21767 662083

1310652 920680 1862002 336650 386292 4816276

206098 304766 680000 120000 45421 1356285

135358 213620 100000 46071 495049

156930 159744 400000 43413 760.087

92191 123382 60000 60000 27266 362839

138398 84831 59315 282544

92084 127500 5478 2b062

28315 86.760 38000 16772 169847

74730 92000 11778 178508

58252 47333 49302 154887

103380 103380
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

12 Guarantees and Commitments

Weatherford International Ltd as the ultimate parent company of the Weatherford group guarantees the

obligations of Weatherford Bermuda and Weatherford International Inc The guaranteed debt includes certain short-

term commercial paper notes revolving credit facilities and debentures totaling approximately CHF 6.4 billion and

CHIP 6.9 billion at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively Footnotes 10 and 11 in the Companys
consolidated financial statements contain more detailed information on the underlying debt guaranteed by the

Company

13 Business Combinations

In July 2009 the Company acquired the Oilfield Services Division OFS of TNK-BP In this transaction the

Company acquired drilling well workover and cementing services operations in West Siberia East Siberia and the

Volga-Urals region The Company issued 24.3 million shares valued at approximately CHF 490 million Under our

sale and purchase agreement dated May 29 2009 if TNK-BP sold the shares it received in consideration for the

transaction for price less than $18.50 per share prior to June 29 2010 the Company was obligated to pay TNK-BP

additional consideration in an amount equal to the difference between the price at which the shares were sold and

$18.50 On June 24 2010 the Company entered into an amendment that modified the provisions relating to the

value guarantee mechanism to allow the parties additional time to settle the amount of consideration received by

TNK-BP under the agreement The settlement date was extended from June 292010 to the earlier of December

2010 or 30 days after the third business day following our public announcement of our quarterly earnings for the

third quarter of 2010 In addition the base dollar amount used to calculate potential guarantee payments was

increased from $18.50 to $19.50 In November 2010 TNK-BP and its affiliates sold the remaining shares received in

consideration for the transaction prior to the expiration of the value guarantee Responsive to the value guarantee

arrangement Weatherford paid TNK-BP CHIP 47 million In addition Weatherford paid TNK BP CHF 47 million

pursuant to the working capital true-up provisions of the acquisition agreement

In 2010 the Companys subsidiaries issued 1.8 million shares out of treasury valued at CHF 30 million in

consideration for business acquisitions There were no common shares issued in 2010 During 2009 the Company
issued 30 million common shares valued at CHF 610 million as consideration for business acquisitions which

includes the OPS acquisition In addition subsidiaries of the Company issued five million shares out of treasury

valued at CHF 113 million in consideration for business acquisitions

14 Related Party Transactions

subsidiary of the Company Weatherford U.S L.P WUSLP performs general and administrative

functions and provides oversight management services to most Weatherford entities WUSLP personnel duties

include but are not limited to marketing tax treasury risk management real estate human resources information

technology and legal services

The Company was charged management fee by WUSLP in consideration for these duties during 2010 and

2009 These charges included costs incurred on the Companys behalf for executive salaries board of director fees

financial statement audit fees intemal audit costs and investor relations costs In addition the Company was

allocated percentage of various other functional expenses including legal financial reporting tax and treasury

activities

15 Insurance

The Company maintains insurance policies covering the property equipment and leasehold improvements of

the Weatherford group of affiliates The value of the coverage is at replacement cost which is in excess of the book

value of Weatherfords consolidated property plant and equipment balance at December31 2010 and December31

2009

SR- 13



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

16 Personnel Expenses

Consolidated personnel expenses for the Weatherford group of affiliates for the year ended December 31 2010

was approximately CHF 2967 million and approximately CHF 2736 million for the year ended December 31

2009

17 Value Added Tax Group

The Company is part of Group of Swiss Entities of Weatherford International Ltd which are jointly and

severally liable for the whole Swiss Value Added Tax amount due to the Swiss authorities by this group

SR-14



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This section reflects disclosure required pursuant to the Directive on Information Relating to Corporate

Governance issued by the SIX Swiss Exchange Ltd the SIX To avoid duplication of information cross-

references are made in this section to other sections of the Annual Report our definitive proxy statement for the

annual shareholders meeting to be held on May 25 2011 copy of which is being delivered to you along with this

Annual Report our articles of association and our organizational regulations each of which can be found on our

website at www.weatherford.com The information in this section is presented as of December 31 2010 unless

otherwise indicated

Group Structure and Shareholders

Group Structure

Weatherford International Ltd the Company is joint-stock corporation organized under the laws of

Switzerland with its registered office located at Alpenstrasse 15 6300 Zug Switzerland and its principal executive

offices located at 4-6 Rue Jean-François Bartholoni 1204 Geneva Switzerland Our shares are listed on the SIX the

New York Stock Exchange and the NYSE Euronext-Paris under the symbol WFT The ISIN code for our shares on

the SIX is CH0038838394 and the Swiss Security Number is 3883839 The market capitalization of our shares as of

December 31 2010 was $16911268896 based upon the closing price of $22.80 for our shares on the New York

Stock Exchange on that date

Weatherfords group of companies consists of the parent holding company Weatherford Intemational Ltd and

the subsidiaries listed on Annex of this Annual Report all of which subsidiaries are fully consolidated in our

financial statements We also have investments in certain joint ventures or other entities in which we do not control

by vote or value more than 50% of the outstanding shares or board or equivalent seats The list of subsidiaries on

Annex of this Annual Report includes the names and domiciles of our subsidiaries but does not include

subsidiaries that are in the process of being dissolved or otherwise terminated or ii dormant and do not have

significant net asset value Because Weatherford is the ultimate parent company of these subsidiaries the list does

not specify each companys share capital

Please refer to the information beginning on page AR-i of this Annual Report for additional information

regarding Weatherfords operational group structure

Significant Shareholders

The table below shows information for each person known by us to beneficially own 3% or more of the

outstanding registered shares as of December 31 2010 based upon information fumished by the shareholder

pursuant to SIX requirements or contained in filings made by the shareholder with the U.S Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC
Name and Address Number of Percent of

of Beneficial Owner Shares Outstanding Shares

ClearBridge Advisors LLC

620 8th Avenue

New York New York

10018 41464115 5.59

FMR LLC

82 Devonshire Street Boston

Massachusetts 02109 USA 31252658 4.12

BlackRock Inc

40 East 52nd Street

New York New York

10022 USA 27494052 3.71

Wentworth Hauser and Violich Inc

301 Battery Street Suite 400

San Francisco CA 94111

USA 24911820 3.36



Disclosure notifications pertaining to shareholdings of Weatherford International Ltd that were filed with the

Company and the SIX are published on the SIXs electronic publication platform and can be accessed via the

database search page http//www.six-swiss-exchange.com/shares/companies/major shareholders en.html

We are not aware of any agreements among our shareholders regarding the exercise of their rights as

shareholders

Cross-Shareholdings

The Company has no cross shareholdings in excess of reciprocal 5% of capital or voting rights with any other

company

Capital Structure

Share Capital

As of December 31 2010 the Companys registered share capital was CHF 879798098.92 divided into

758446637 fully paid-in registered shares Each registered share has par value of CHF 1.16 As of that date the

Companys authorized capital was CHF 439899048.88 and the Company was authorized to issue out of its

authorized capital up to 379223318 fully paid-in shares with par value of CHF 1.16 each at any time until

June 23 2012 As of December 31 2010 the Companys conditional capital was CHF 439899048.88

Please refer to Articles and of our articles of association for the terms and conditions of the issuance of

shares out of our authorized and conditional capital including conditions under which preferential subscription

rights and advance subscription rights are excluded or may be withdrawn or limited by our board of directors

Changes in Capital

As part of the redomestication referred to in this Annual Report the Company acquired in connection with

capital increase on February 26 2009 all of the 728782425 common shares of Weatherford International Ltd
Bermuda exempted company Weatherford Bermuda the former parent company of the Weatherford group of

companies which had at the time of the redomestication total value of CHF 7922062403.82 As consideration

for this contribution the Company issued total of 728782425 shares with total par value of CHF 845387613

which shares were provided to the shareholders of Weatherford Bermuda to enable them to become shareholders of

the Company The difference between the aggregate par value of the issued shares and the total value of the

contribution in the amount of CHF 7076674790.82 was allocated to the reserves of the Company

The Company has subsequently issued shares and increased its share capital out of its authorized capital in

connection with two contribution in kind transactions approved by the board of directors On July 27 2009 the

Companys share capital increased to CHF 873708098.92 and on September 16 2009 it was further increased to

CHF 879798098.92 On March 2011 the Company issued shares out of its conditional share capital in

connection with the exercise of warrants and increased its share capital by CHF 1940570.96 such increase to be

subsequently reflected in the articles of association in accordance with the procedure set out in article 653f et seq of

the Swiss Code of Obligations CO
Shares Participation Certificates and Dividend-right Certificates

Our shares have par value of CHF 1.16 each All shares are fully paid-in registered shares According to

Article 17 of our articles of association each share has the right to one vote Shareholders have the right to receive

dividends and other distributions if any declared by the Company with
respect to our shares Please refer to

Articles and of our articles of association for certain conditions relating to the voting of our shares Weatherford

has not issued participation certificates or dividend-right certificates

Limitations on Transferability and Nominee Registrations

The Company has not imposed any restrictions generally applicable to the transfer of our shares The

Companys share register is maintained by American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC which acts as transfer

agent and registrar of the Company The share register reflects only record owners of our shares

All shares shall be subject to such stock-transfer orders and other restrictions as our board of directors may
deem advisable under the rules regulations and other requirements of the SEC and the U.S Securities Act of 1933



as amended including with respect to unregistered sales of shares any exchange upon which the shares are then

listed and any applicable securities law and our board of directors may cause legend or legends to be put on any

certificates representing shares to make appropriate reference to such restrictions

Voting rights may be exercised by shareholders registered in the Companys share register or by duly

appointed proxy of registered shareholder or nominee which proxy need not be shareholder of the Company

Shareholders wishing to exercise their voting rights who hold their shares through bank broker or other nominee

should follow the instructions provided by such bank broker or other nominee or absent instructions contact such

bank broker or other nominee for instructions Shareholders holding their shares through bank broker or other

nominee will not autothatically be registered in the Companys share register If any such shareholder wishes to be

registered in the Companys share register such shareholder should contact the bank broker or other nominee

through which it holds its shares

Convertible Bonds and Options

As of December 31 2010 the Company had 11819544 outstanding options to purchase registered

shares ii4215428 outstanding restricted share units which subject to certain conditions and restrictions entitle

the holders thereof to receive registered shares iii986455 performance share units outstanding which subject to

certain conditions and restrictions entitle the holders thereof to receive registered shares and iv 4680408

outstanding rights to acquire shares which were granted in connection with the Companys 2010 Supplemental

Executive Retirement Plan Please refer to Agenda Item Election of Directors Board Compensation and

Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis in the proxy statement and the disclosure

beginning on page AR-74 of this Annual Report for more information on these options restricted share units

performance share units and rights to acquire shares

As of December 31 2010 the Company also had outstanding previously issued warrants to purchase up to

12928856 of our registered shares at price of $15.00 per share warrant to purchase 430Q6 18 registered shares

was exercised on March 2011 on net share basis This warrant was settled by delivering 1672906 shares which

were issued out of our conditional capital

Please refer to the disclosure beginning on pages AR-74 and AR- 104 with regard to the conditions of the rights

associated with the options restricted share units performance share units rights to acquire shares and waITans

Board of Directors

Our board of directors consists of 10 members each of whom is elected by our shareholders for term of one

year
until the next annual shareholder meeting Our articles of association do not limit the number of terms

member may be re-elected to the board

Please refer to Agenda ltem Election of Directors and Share Ownership Shares Owned by Directors

and Executive Officers in the proxy statement for additional information related to our board of directors and

committees of our board including internal organizational structure and areas of responsibility of our board and

board committees Please also refer to our organizational regulations for the information related to the division of

responsibility among our board board committees and our officers

Senior Management

Members of our senior management are included in the list of individuals identified in the proxy statement

under Executive officers For biographical and other information related to the members of senior management

please refer to Executive Officers in the proxy statement There are no management contracts between the

Company and third parties regarding the delegation of the management tasks

Compensation Shareholdings and Loans

For information related to the basic principles and elements of how our directors are compensated the methods

of determining their compensation as well as their compensation for the year ended December 31 2010 please refer

to Agenda Item Election of Directors Board Compensation in the proxy statement and the disclosure

beginning on page SR-S of this Annual Report



The compensation objectives principles procedures practices and decisions that we generally apply to

members of our senior management are as described in the
proxy statement of these matters for our named

executive officers Please refer to Executive Compensation in the
proxy statement Please also refer to the

disclosure beginning on page SR-9 of this Annual Report for information related to the compensation of our senior

management

Please refer to Agenda Item Election of Directors Board Compensation Share Ownership

Shares Owned by Directors and Executive Officers and Executive Compensation in the proxy statement and

the disclosure beginning on page SR-8 of this Annual Report for information related to the shares or rights to

acquire shares held by members of our board and senior management respectively There were no loans granted to

active or former members of the board or senior management in fiscal year 2010 and as of December 31 2010

there were no such loans outstanding

Shareholder Rights

Restrictions on Voting Rights and Representation

According to Article 17 of our articles of association each share has the right to one vote Generally there are

no restrictions on voting our shares other than as set forth in Articles and of our articles of association

Article of our articles of association generally provides that person recorded in our share register shall

notify the share registrar of any change in address Until such notification shall have occurred all written

communication from the Company to persons recorded in our share register shall be deemed to have validly been

made if sent to the address recorded in the share register Article also provides that an acquirer of our shares shall

be recorded upon request in the share register as shareholder with voting rights provided however that any such

acquirer expressly declares to have acquired the shares in its own name and for its own account save that the board

of directors may record nominees who hold our shares in their own name but for the account of third parties as

shareholders of record in the share register of the Company Beneficial owners of our shares who hold shares

through nominee exercise the shareholders rights through the intermediation of such nominee After hearing the

registered shareholder concemed the board of directors may cancel the registration of such shareholder as

shareholder with voting rights in the share register with retroactive effect as of the date of registration if such

registration was made based on false or misleading information The relevant shareholder shall be informed

promptly of the cancellation

Article of our articles of association generally provides that the Company shall only accept one represen

tative per share Additionally voting rights and appurtenant rights associated therewith may be exercised in relation

to the Company by shareholder usufructuary of shares or nominee only to the extent that such Person is recorded

in the share register with the right tn exercise his voting rights

Shares held in treasury do not carry any rights to vote at shareholders meetings but are entitled to the

economic benefits including dividends preferential subscription rights in the event of share capital increases and

advance subscription rights generally applicable to the shares

Resolutions and Statutory Quo rums

Pursuant to our articles of association the shareholders generally pass resolutions upon the relative majority of

the votes cast at the general meeting of shareholders not counting broker non-votes abstentions and blank or

invalid ballots unless otherwise provided by law including stock exchange regulations or our articles of

association

In accordance with the CO our articles of association require the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of

the voting rights and the absolute majority of the
par

value of the registered shares each as represented in person

or by proxy at general meeting to approve the following matters

the amendment to or the modification of the purpose of the Company

the creation or cancellation of shares with privileged voting rights

the restriction on the transferability of shares and the cancellation of such restriction in relation thereto

the restriction on the exercise of the right to vote and the cancellation of such restriction

an authorized or conditional increase in the nominal share capital



an increase in the share capital through the conversion of capital surplus ii contribution in kind or an

acquisition of assets or iii grant of special privileges

the limitation or withdrawal of preferential subscription rights or advance subscription rights

change in the place of incorporation of the Company

the conversion of registered shares into bearer shares and vice versa

the dissolution of the Company and

the removal of member of the board of directors

Pursuant to our articles of association the presence of shareholders in person or by proxy holding at least two-

thirds of the registered shares recorded in our share register and generally entitled to vote at meeting is quorum

required for the transaction of the following business

the adoption of resolution with respect to the removal of serving director and

the adoption of resolution to amend the following provisions of the Articles

Article 21 which sets forth the quorum at general meeting required for certain matters

Articles 18 and 20 which set forth the level of shareholder approval required for certain matters

Article 22 which sets forth the number of directors

Article 23 which sets forth the term of office of director and

Article 24 which sets forth the organization and remuneration of the board of directors

The presence of shareholders in person or by proxy holding at least one-third of the registered shares recorded in

our share register and generally entitled to vote at meeting is quorum required for the transaction of any other

business Under the CO the board of directors has no authority to waive quorum requirements set forth in the

articles of association

Agenda

Under our articles of association any shareholder satisfying the requirements of article 699 CO may request

that an item be included on the agenda of general meeting of shareholders An inclusion of an item on the agenda

must be requested in writing at least 60 and no more than 90 calendar days prior to the scheduled and announced

date of the next general meeting of shareholders The request must specify the relevant agenda items and proposals

together with evidence of the required shareholdings recorded in the share register as well as any other information

as would be required to be included in proxy statement pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC

Shareholder proposals to be included in the proxy materials related to our proxy statement prepared pursuant to

SEC rules for an annual general meeting must comply with Rule l4a-8 of the U.S Securities Exchange Act of 1934

as amended promulgated by the SEC to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement for that meeting For any

matters submitted outside the process of Rule l4a-8 request for inclusion of an item on the agenda or nominee

must satisfy the requirements set out in the above paragraph

Any shareholder proposal whether or not to be included in our proxy materials must be sent to our Secretary at

4-6 Rue Jean-François Bartholoni 1204 Geneva Switzeriand

No resolution may be passed at general meeting of shareholders concerning an agenda item in relation to

which due notice was not given Proposals made during general meeting of shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting or ii initiate special investigation in accordance with article 697a CO are not

subject to the due notice requirement set forth herein

No prior notice is required to bring proposals related to items already on the agenda or for the discussion of

matters on which no vote is to be taken

Inscription into Share Register

share register of our registered shareholders is maintained by American Stock Transfer Trust Company

LLC which acts as transfer agent and registrar of the Company Each shareholder recorded in the share register as of

the record date for the meeting is entitled to participate at the General Meeting of Shareholders and in any vote



taken The board of directors shall issue the particulars of the right to representation and participation at the General

Meeting of Shareholders in procedural rules

Swiss Takeover and Change of Control Matters

Duty to Make an Offer

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Swiss Federal Act on Stock Exchanges and Securities Trading the

SESTA any persbn that acquires shares of listed Swiss company whether directly or indirectly or acting in

concert with third parties which shares when taken together with any other shares of such company held by such

person or such third parties exceed the threshold 33V3% of the voting rights whether exercisable or not of such

company must make takeover bid to acquire all the other listed shares of such company companys articles of

association may either eliminate this provision of the SESTA or may raise the relevant threshold to 49% opting-

out or opting-up respectively Our articles of association do not contain an opting-out or opting-up provision

waiver of the mandatory bid rules may be granted by the Swiss Takeover Board or the Swiss Federal Market

Supervisory Authority FINMA under certain circumstances If no waiver is granted the mandatory takeover bid

must be made pursuant to the procedural rules set forth in the SESTA and the implementing ordinances thereunder

There is no obligation to make takeover bid under the SESTA if the voting rights in question are acquired as

result of gift succession or partition of an estate transfer based upon matrimonial property law or execution

proceedings

Change of Control Clauses

The equity plans and related grant and award agreements in which members of our board of directors and

senior management participate generally provide for the vesting of relevant grants and awards and acceleration of

certain benefits upon change of control For certain outstanding option awards our board has the discretion upon

change of control whether to accelerate the vesting of the outstanding award or require the award to be substituted

or otherwise adjusted Please refer to Executive Compensation Potential Payments Upon Termination or

Change of Control in the proxy statement for description of change of control provisions in the employment

agreements for members of our senior management

Auditing Body

Date of Assumption and Term of Office of Lead Auditor

Our independent registered public accounting firm and our statutory auditor are appointed and elected

respectively each year by our shareholders at our annual general meeting Since 2008 including for the year ended

December 31 2010 Ernst Young LLP has been our independent registered public accounting firm and Ernst

Young Ltd Zurich has been our statutory auditor Robin Errico has been the lead auditor since 2009

Audit Fees and Additional Fees

The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered collectively by Ernst Young LLP

and Ernst Young Ltd Zurich for the audit of the Companys annual statutory financial statements for the
year

ended December 31 2010 and fees billed for other services rendered collectively by Ernst Young LLP and

Ernst Young Ltd Zurich during that period

2010

Audit fees $8350000

Audit-related fees 215000

Tax fees 530000

All other fees 31000

Total $9126000



informational instruments Pertaining to External Audit

Please refer to Agenda item Election of Directors and Agenda item Appoint independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm and Re-Elect Statutory Auditor in the proxy statement for additional

information related to our board of directors and our audit committee During the year ended December 31

2010 our audit committee met with our auditors eleven times

Information Policy

Weatherford publishes an annual report
each

year that provides information on the Company and its

consolidated subsidiaries results and operations as required by Swiss law and U.S securities laws which

requirements this Annual Report satisfies In addition to this annual report and as required by U.S securities laws

Weatherford prepares Form 10-K annual report each year and quarterly reports on Forms 10-Q each of which are

filed with the SEC Weatherford discloses annual and quarterly financial results in accordance with U.S GAAP In

addition Weatherford files periodic reports on Forms 8-K that are filed with or furnished to the SEC and issues

notices and press releases from time to time as required by applicable law or pursuant to its corporate policies

Copies of these materials are available on our website at www.weatherford.com Any record shareholder may
obtain copy of these documents free of charge by contacting our U.S Investor Relations Department in writing at

515 Post Oak Boulevard Houston Texas 77027 or by telephone at 713 693 4000 Copies of any exhibits to the

Form 10-K included in this Annual Report also are available upon written
request subject to charge for copying

and mailing If you have any other questions about us please contact our U.S Investor Relations Department at the

address or phone number above or visit our website



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD
Annex Subsidiary Listing

Name

315613 Alberta Ltd

721260 Alberta Ltd

Bit Tool Co B.V

Advanced Material Solutions Inc

Advanced Syngas Technologies

Advantage RD Inc

Air Drilling Services de Venezaela C.A

Al Shaheen Well Services Company

Algerian Oilfield Services S.p.A

Alpine Oil Services Cyprus Ltd

Alpine Oil Services Inc

Alpine Oil Services Intemationul Ltd

Ampseot Overseas Petroleum

Equipment Co LLC

AO Kompaniys Oeoftzicheskiye

Issledovsniys Skvszhiu

Applied Petroleum Technology UK
Ltd

Applied Petroleum Technology A.S

Aquatic CiSC

Aqustronic Limited

Artex Bolivia S.A

Artes S.A

Astec Developments Limited

Atlas OIP S.A

Austog Pty Ltd

Australian Logging Services Pty Ltd

Australian Technical Solutions Pty Ltd

Keudle Engineering Limited

Bakke Technology AS

BBL Dowahole Tools Limited

EEl SAS

BPG Investments Ltd

Bluecord Limited

Boreis International Ltd

Brit Bit Limited

Calumet Petroleum Services S.A

Canam Equipment Holdings hA de

CV
Cardium Investments Barbados

Limited

Cardium Tool International Limited

Cuse Services Isc

Chengdu Minjiaug Weatherford

Petroleum Machinery Manufacture

Co Ltd

Cheruogornefteservice LLC

Cleanmex Oil Oas S.A de C.V

Cleursvuter Intemationul L.L.C

Colombia Petroleum Services Corp

Columbia Oilfteld Supply Inc

Communication Rentals Limited

Contra Shear Separation Technologies

Limited

CRC-Evans Automatic Welding Inc

CRC Evans Holland B.V

Crocker Data Processing Pty Ltd

CTC-Entpresa Tecnica Comercinl de

Equtpumrutos Ltda

DL Research Ltd

Dailey de Venezuela S.A

Dailey 105 Limited

Dauley Intemational Sales Corporution

Jurintlietiun

Canada Alberta

Canada Alberta

Netherlands

U.S.A

Canada Alberta

U.S.A Delaware

Venezuelu

Qatar

Algeria

Cyprus

U.S.A North Dakota

Barbados

Oman

Kazakhstan

U.K

Norway

Rutsia

U.K Scotland

Bolivia

Argentina

U.K Scotland

Romania

Australia

Australia

Australia

England

Norsvay

U.K Scotland

France

British Virgin Islands

Cyprus

British Virgin Islands

Scotland

Venezuela

Mexico

Datbndos

Barbados

U.S.A Texas

China

Russia

Mexico

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delasvare

S.A Delaware

U.K Scotland

Nusv Zealand

U.S.A Texas

Netherlands

Australia

Brazil

Canada Alberta

Venezuela

U.K Scotland

U.S.A Delaware

Name

Dutalog Acquisition Cuymun

Datalog Acquisition LLC

Datulog de Mexico S.A de C.V

Datalog de Venezuela SA

Datalog Ecuador S.A

Datulog Servicou de Petroleo do Brasil

Ltdu

Des Culing Pty Limited

Desert Asset Holdings luc

Desert Rig Operations luc

Design Engineering Limited

Directional Wireline Engineering

Services tNigena Limited

Discovery Logging Inc

Dougyiug Shengli-Highlund Company

Ltd

Downholn Technology Limited

Drilling Research Development

Corporation

OSK Inc

n2 Tech Limited

Eustem ACS Labs Private Ltd

Edinburgh Petroleum Equipment

Limited

Edinburgh Petroleum Services Americas

Incorporated

Edinburgh Petroleum Services de

Mexico S.A de C.V

Edinburgh Petroleum Services de

Venezuela C.A

Edinburgh Petroleum Services Limited

EMI ElcttroMagnetica Ispezioni Italia

SrI

Emirates Ltuk Reslab El Reslub

LLC Limited Liability Compauy

Energy Ventures Cyprus Ltd

Endrgy Ventures Far East Limited

Entzrm OilEeld Rentals Limited

Enturra Patco Oilfiuld Products Inc

Enturra Rental aud Fishiuu Company

eProducriou Solutions Inc

European Material Inspection EMI
B.V

EVI Barbudos SRL

EVI de Venezuela S.A

EVI Wuatherford Inc

Expio Limited

Fattab Limited Liability Cnmpauy

Fishing Services Limited

Fleet Cemnntcrs luc

Consultants Ltd

Oubus 0mm Petroleum Services Ltd

General Ftpu Service Bolivia S.R.L

Hamdeen U.K Limited

Helix Equipment Lcasiug Limited

High Pressure Integrity Inc

Hougdu Weutherford Petroleum

Equipment Co Ltd

Houston Well Screen Astu Pte Ltd

Houston Well Screen Company

IL Services Sdn Bhd

Ilexiu Investments Ltd

ILl Acquisition LLC

ILl Arctic Limited

Jurindictina

Cayman Islands

S.A Delaware

Mexico

Venezuela

Ecuador

Brazil

Australia

British Virgin Islands

Cayman Islands

U.K Scotland

Nigeria

U.S.A Texas

China

U.K Scotland

U.S Texas

U.S.A Colorado

U.K England

India

U.K Scotland

S.A Texas

Mexico

Venezuela

U.K Scotland

Italy

U.A.E Abu Ohabi

Cyprus

Hung Kong

Hung Kong

S.A Texus

U.S.A lDelawurcy

U.S.A Texas

Netherlands

Barbados

Venezuela

S.A Delasvarc

U.K Scotland

Azerbaijan

U.K Scotland

U.S.A Texas

U.S.A Nevada

Saudi Arabia

Bolivia

U.K Scotland

British Virgin
Islands

U.S.A Louisiana

China

Singapore

U.S.A Texas

Malaysia

Cyprus

U.S.A Delasvarc

Canada Nnrthwestem Territories



WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD
Annex Subsidiary Listing Continued

Name Jurindiclion

IL Technology Lnottcd

Impact Drilling Solutions Inc

Impact Solutions Group Limited

Inrlependeni Integrated Services Limited

Ittdnstrtal \Voathorford lnternaLonal de

Chile S.A

Intcgridad \lexicana del Norte de

R.L de C.V

Ititegrity Delaware Holdco Inc

Integrity Delaware LLC

International Drilling Integrated

Services Ltd

Internatiottal Logging Canada Ltd

International Logging do Brasit Ltda

Interitattonal Logging LLC

International Logging Japan Inc

International Logging Mediterranean

Services Ltd

International Logging Netherlands By

International Logging Dtlfield Data

Services Ltd

Intertiatiottal Logging Orogenics Sdit

Blid

International Logging Dvcrseas Ltd

International Loging S.A. LLC

litteritational Logging Servtces Pie

Ltd

Inteutattoital Logging Tcchnoloy Ltd

Intertiational Nitrogen Seivices L.L.C

littet national Petrolento Equipitietit

Lintited

Intcrtttttottd Peti ctlcato Lqniptttent

None \/S

Intcrttatiottal Petroleutti Scrs ices Itte

ISG Scenic Diilltn Holdings Litotted

Invesintents Bonaire NV
Johitson liltiatiott stents SAS

Johnson Screens Australia Pty Ltd

Johnson Screen India Private Litoited

Johnson Scteens
Japan Limited

Jolitisriti Screetis Ltda

Jolttisoti Screens Inc

Key Internatiottal Drillitty Cotopany

Limited

Kobe litternattonal Ltd

Kopp International
Pipeline

Services

and Partners L.L.C

KUIK Nizltnevartos sI LLC

KUIK Nyaean LLC

KUIK Drenbut LLC

Land Drillin Asset Holdings Inc

Littkhitd Litttttcd

lNfl s.d

McAllister Petroleum Services Cyprns

Lititited

MCC Cheitticals Middle East FZC

McMnrry Macco UK Lintited

Meser Associate S.A de C.V

Mid Europe Supply
Limited

Mottison McLean sociates Limited

Nahnelco

Nahuelco S.A

Neftetoashsnedrcttie CJSC

Nizhnevartovskburneht CJSC

Name

North Africa Sales DVI Ltd

NPRS ILLC

DESK LLC

Dffshore Rentals Dnntnchland GmbH

Dffshore Rentals Limited

Gil Pield Rental Holdings Ltrnitgd

Dilfield Machine Shop and Inspection

Services Company

DilPatch Enterprtses Internacional

dn R.L de C.V

Dilsvell Production Servicen Limited

Dmnt Laboratories dn Vengznela C.A

Dmnt Laboratories do Brasil Limitada

Dmni Laboratories of Canada Inc

Drenbargbnrneft CJSC

Drwnll Group Dc Venezuela C.A

DrwelI Group Limited

P.D Drilling Holdings Inc

PD Technical Services Inc

PD Global Employment Corporation

PD Holdings USA L.P

PD
Holdings Mexicana de R.L dir

C.V

PD International Leasing Inc

PD International Services Inc

PD Internatinnal LL
PD Mexicana de R.L de

PD Dilfigld Services Mexicana de

R.L de C.V

PD Technical Services Mesicana de

R.L de

Petco Fishin Rental Tonls UK
Limited

Peiroling Wellsystems Limited

Polar Coniplettons Inc

Posvell
Engineering Conipany Limited

Powerflo Rentals Dnbat LLC

Posserflo Rentals Limited

Powerflo Systents Limited

PowerGEN Rentals Limited

Precision do Brasil Sersicos de
Energia

Ltda

Precision Dulling Cyprns Limited

Precision Drilling Egypt LLC

Precision Drilling de Venezuela

Precision Drilling GB Inc

Precision Drilling Holdings
Inc

Precision Dulling International

Precision Drilltna LP Inc

Precision Drilling Services Malaysia

Sdn Bhd

Precision Drilling Services

Netherlands B.V

Precision Drilling Services Thailand

Ltd

Precision Drilling Services UK Ltd

Precision Drillin Services Algeria

EURL

Precision Drilling Sers ices Argentina

S.A

Precision Drilling Services M.E W.L.L

Precision Drilling Services Saudi

Arabia Company Limited

Precision Drilling Technology Services

Group USA Inc

Jurindirtion

British Virgin Islands

Russia

Russia

Germany

U.K Scotland

U.K England

Algeria

Mexico

U.K Scotland

Venezuela

Brazil

Canada Nova Scotia

Russia

Venezuela

U.K Scotland

Barbados

Barbados

Canada Alberta

U.S.A Delasvare

Mexico

Barbados

Cnnada Alberta

tt.5A Texas

Mexico

Mexico

Mexico

U.K Scotland

Scotland

U.S.A Delasvare

U.K Etigland

A.E Dubat

U.K Scotland

Scotland

U.K Scotland

Brazil

Cyprus

Egypt

Venezuela

U.S.A Delasvare

U.S.A Delaware

Netherlands

S.A Delaware

Malaysia

Netherlands

Thailand

England

Algeria

Argentina

U.AE Abu Dhabi

U.K

S.A Texas

U.K England Wales

U.K Scotland

Chile

Mexico

U.S.A Delawarn

Delaware

British Virgin Islands

Canada Hew Brnnssstgk

Brazil

U.S.A California

U.S.A Nevada

Cyprus

Netherlands

Nigeria

Malaysia

Cayman Islands

S.A Nevada

Singapnre

U.K

S.A Delasvare

U.K Scotland

Norsvay

S.A Delassare

U.K England Wales

Netherlatids Antilles

France

Anstrahia

Indts

Japait

Brazil

S.A Delass are

Bermuda

Bahamas

Gmatt

Russia

Russia

Russia

British Vtrin Islands

Cprus

Italy

Cyprns

U.A.B Hamuyah FZ

Englatid

Mexico

Scotland

U.K Scotland

Argentina

Chile

Russia

Russia

Saudi Arabia

U.S.A Delaware
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Precision Energy Services BVI Ld

Precision Energy Services Cyprus

Limited

Precision Energy Services New
Zealand ULC

Precision Energy Services Singapore

Pte Ltd

Precision Energy Services CIS LLC

Precision Energy Services Colombia

Ltd

Precision Energy Services Sasdi Arabia

Co Ltd

Precision Energy Services ULC

Precision Energy Services Inc

Precision Holdings UK Limited

Precision Middle East Holding Ltd

Precision Oilfield Services LLP

Precision Pacific Holding EVI Ltd

Precision USA Holdings Inc

Premier Drilling de Mexico de R.L

dc C.V

Project Management Services de

R.L de r.v

PT Hawcs Utama Indonesia

PT International Logging Indonesia

PT Precision Energy Services Indonesia

PT Weatherford Indonesia

PT Wira Insani

Pump Rentals International Limited

Pyrossl International Inc

QE Oilfield Tcchsologtes
Sdn Bhd

Quality Commissioning Limited

Quality Machining Services Limited

R.S.T Projects Limited

Reeves Otlfield Services Ltd

Reeves Wireline Investments Limited

Reeves Wireline Services Limited

Reeves Wireline Services Limited

Co GmbH

Reeves Wireline Technologies Limited

ResLab North Africa Ltd

ResLab Trinidad Tobago S.A de

CV
Richdear Holdings Limited

Rig Transport International BVI Ltd

Russell Oil Exploration Limited

S.C Foserco S.A

S.P.T Synergic Petroleum Technologies

S.A

Screenex Manufactnring Proprietary

Limited

Secsre Drilling Holding Ltd

Secure Drilling Holdings L.L.C

Secure Drilling International L.P

Secsre Drilling L.P

Servicios Avanzados de Perforacion

dc R.L de CV
Servicios Petroleros Eqsipat S.A

Seven Energy Hong Kong Limited

Seven Energy LLC

Jurisdiction

Canada Alberta

Australia

Barbados

British Virgin Islands

Cyprns

New Zealand

Singapore

Russia

Canada Alberta

Saudi Arabia

Canada Alberta

U.S.A Delawam

U.K England

British Virgin Islands

U.S.A Texas

British Virgin Islands

U.S.A Delaware

Mesico

Mexico

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

U.K Scotland

Canada Alberta

Malaysia

U.K Scotland

U.K Scotland

U.K Scotland

U.K England

U.K England

U.K England

Germany

U.K England

Malta

Trinidad

Cyprus

British Virgin Islands

U.K England

Romania

Argentina

South Africa

Bermuda

U.S.A Delaware

Bermuda

U.S.A Delaware

Mexico

Argentina

Hong Kong

U.S.A Delaware

Name

Sicom AS

Sicom Solntions LLC

Signa Engineering Corp

SIWA Petrolesm DMCC

SIWA Petroleum FZC

Smart Stabilizer Systems Limited

Stealth Oil Gas Inc

STU LLC

Sunbreeae Limited

Sanita Hydrocolloids Private Ltd

Tank Rentals Limited

Tech 21 Engineering Solutions Limited

Tech Line Oil Tools Inc

Techcorp Industries International Inc

Techinformservice LLC

Techno Rada Labs Sdn Ehd

Teen Maskinering AS

Terets Properttes Limited Liability

Company

TOO LLP

Tooke Rockies Inc

TUBAFOR MAROC S.A.R.L

TnbeFnse Applications B.V

TnbeFnse Applications LLC

TubePuse Technologies Limited

Tabetel Sdn Bhd

UKRS LLC

UnaChem Ltd

United Precision Drilling Company
W.L.L

Valkyrie Commissioning Services Inc

Van der Horst U.S.A Inc

Visean Information Services Inc

Vihean Information Services Pty Ltd

Warrior Well Services Inc

Weatherford CER LLP

Weatherford Sdn Bhd

Weatherford China Energy Services

Co Ltd

Weatherford Cyprus Limited

Weatherford G.B LLP

Weatherford Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Weatherford Nova Scotia ULC

Weatherford PTWI L.L.C

Weatherford Siehuan Petrochemical

Equipment Co Ltd

Weatherford Wira Intani L.L.C

Weatherford Aarbakke AS

Weatherford Abn Dhabi Ltd

Weatherford Acquisition L.L.C

Weatherford Al-Rushaid Co Ltd

Weatherford Americas Comercto LLC

Weatherford Americas Industria LLC

Weatherford Angola Services BVI
Ltd

Weatherford Angola Wellsereen

Applications Ltd

Weatherford Angola Limitada

Weatherford Artificial Lift
Systems

Canada Ltd

Weatherford Artificial Lift Systems
Inc

Jurindielinn

Norway

U.S.A Texas

U.S.A Texas

U.A.E Jnmeirah Lake Towers FZ in

Dabai

U.A.E Hamriyah FZ in Sharjah

U.K England

U.S.A Delaware

Russia

Cyprus

India

U.K Scotland

U.K Scotland

U.S.A Delaware

Barbados

Russia

Malaysia

Norway

Azerbaijan

Kaeakhstan

U.S.A Wyoming

Morocco

Netherlands

U.S.A Delaware

U.K England Wales

Brnnei

Russia

British Virgin Islanda

Kuwait

U.S.A Texas

U.S.A Delaware

S.A Texas

Australia

U.S.A Illinois

Ka.eakhstan

Brunei

China

Cyprus

U.K Scotland

Malaysia Jt Venture

Canada Nova Scotia

U.S.A Delaware

China

U.S.A Delaware

Norway

Cayman Islands

U.S.A Delaware

Saudi Arabia

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

Angola

Canada Alberta

U.S.A Delaware

Name

Precision Energy International Ltd

Precision Energy Services Australia

Pty Limited

Precision Energy Services Barbados

Ltd
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Weatberford Central Enrope Snpply

Services Sp 0.0

Wentherford Chisholm Trnil Holding

LLC

Wentherford Colombin Ltd

Wentherford Completion Systems UK
Limtted

Wentherford Completion Systems de

Veneznela S.A

Wentherford de Menico de de

CV
Weatherford del Peru S.R.L

Weatherford Danmnrk A/S

Weatherford Dentsche Holding

Canada ULC

Weatherford 015 Mannfacturtng UK
Limited

Wentherford Drilling and Production

Services India Private Limited

Weatherlord
Drilling International

Anstralia Pty Ltd

Weatherford Drilling International

BVI Ltd

Weatherford Driltine International

Oman LLC

Weatherford Drilling International

Eahruin W.L

Weatherford
Drillitig International

Holdings EVI Ltd

Weatherford East
Enrope

Service

GmbH

Weutherford Ecuador S.A

Weatherford Energy Services GmbH

Weatherford Energy Services Hungary
Limited

Liability Company

Weatherford
Energy Services de

de CV
Weatherford Engineered Chemistry

Canada Ltd

Weatherford Equipment Cyprus

Limited

Weatherford Eurasia E.V

Weatherford Eurasia Limited

Weatherford
European Holdings

Luxembourg 5.5 rI

Weatherford Financing Cyprus
Limited

Weatherford Financing Luxembourg

5.5 rI

Weatherford France SAS

Weutherford Global Prodncts Limited

Name

Weatherford Holding t.iibrultur

Limited

Weutherford Holding Ireland

Company

Weutherford Holding Luxembourg

SarI

Wentherford Holding E.V

Wentherford Holding GmbH

Weutherford Holding Middle East Ltd

Weatherford Holdings Belgium BVBA

Weuthurford Holdings BVI Ltd

Weatherford Holdings Cyprus Limited

Weutherford Holdings HWSA Ltd

Weuthurford Holdiug RUS LLC

Wnutherford Holdings Singapore Ftc

Ltd

Weatherford Holdings WAPL Ltd

Weutherford Holdings Mexico de

R.L de C.V

Weutherford Holdings U.K Ltd

Weutherford Hong Kong Holdings

Limited

Weatherford 105 USA LLC

Weutherford Indestrin Comercio

Ltda

Weutherford Industrial Valves L.L.C

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

BB Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

HWSA Ltd

Weutherford Intermediate Holdings

KSP Ltd

Weutherford Intermediate
Holdings

Norge Ltd

Weatherford lutcrmuedmatc Holdings

OF Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

PFH Ltd

Weutherford Intermediate
Holdings

PTWI S.a rt

Weutherford Intermediate
Holdings

WAPLI Ltd

Weathei ford Intermediate
Holdings

WESB Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdins

WOPS Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

WE Cyprus Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

WIPE Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate
Holdings

WMEX Ltd

Weutherford Intermediate
Holdings

WMSB Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate
Holdings

WOP Ltd

Weutlierford Intermediate Holdings

WOS Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

WOTME Ltd

Weutiterford Intermediate Holdings

WSL Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

WTS Ltd

Weatherford Intermediate Holdings

WWSI Ltd

Weatherford International

Luxembonrg Holdings 5.5 rI

Jurindietinn

Gibrultar

Ireland

Luxembourg

Netherlands

Germatty

British Virgin Islands

Belgium

British Virgin Islands

Cyprus

British Virgin Islands

Russia

Singapore

British Virgin Islands

Name

Wenthertord Asia Pacitic Pte Ltd

Weatherford Australia Holding Pty

Limited

Wentherford Australia Pty Limited

Wentherford Azerbnijun Holdipgs BVI
Ltd

Wentherford Bnkke AS

Wentherford Bermuda Holdings Ltd

Wentherford Bin Hnmoodah L.L.C

Weatherford Bnsiness Service LLC

Weatherford Canada Ltd

Weatherford Canada Partnership

Wentherford Capital Management

Servicm Limited Liability Company

Weatherford Capital Management

Switzerland Ltd

Jurisdielinn

Singapore

Australia

Australia

British Virgin Islands

Norway

Bermuda

U.A.E Abs Ohabi

Russia

Canada Alberta

Canada Alberta

Hungary

Cayman Islands

Poland

U.S.A Texas

British Virgin
Islands

Scotland

Venezuela

Mexico

Peru

Denmark

Canada Alberta

Scotland

India

Australia

British
Virgin

Islands

Oman

Eahrain

British
Virgin

Islands

Gerimmany

Ecuador

Germany

Hungary

Mexico

Canada Alberta

Cyprus

Netherlands

U.K England

Luxembourg

Cyprus

Luxembourg

France

Cyprus

Mexico

Scotland

Hong Kong

U.S.A Delnsvare

Brazil

U.S.A Louisiana

Entish Virgin tslnnds

British
Virgin lslnnds

British
Virgin

Islands

British
Virgin

Islands

British Virgin Islands

Bermuda

Luxembourg

British Virin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virsin Islands

British Virgin
Islands

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

British
Virgin Islands

Bermuda

British Vmmgis Islands

Bermuda

British Virgin Islands

Luxembourg
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Weatherford International Ltd

Weatherford International Inc

Weatherford Investment Gtbraltar

Limited

Weatherford Investment Luxembourg

Sari

Weatherford Investments Holdtng B.V

Weatherford JSB LLC

Weatherford Kazakhstao Ltmited

Liability Partnership

Weatherford Kopp GmbH

Weatherford KSP Company Limtted

Weatherford Laboratories Australia

Pty
Ltd

Weatberford Laboratories Canada
Ltd

Weatherford Laboratories Brasil Ltda

Weatberford Laboratortes Muscat

L.L

Weatherford Laboratories Norway
AS

Weatberford Laboratories NZ1 Ltd

Weatherford Laboratories Thailand

Ltd

Weatherford Laboratortes UK Limited

Weatherford Laboratorie de Mexteo

S.A de CV

Weatlterlord Laboratories of Trintdad

Litoited

Weatherford Laboratories Itte

Wearherford Landslide Holdings LLC

Weatherlord Lattn Ainertea Inc

Weatherford Latin America S.A

Weatheriord
Libya Holdings BVI Ltd

Weatherlord Limited Partner

\Veatlserford
Liquidity Management

Huneary Litoited Liability Company

Weatherford Liquidity Management

Ssviiierland Ltd

Weatherford
Luxensboarg SarI

Weadterford Management Inc

Weatherford Mauritius Holdings Ltd

Weatherford ME
Holdings Ltd

Weatheriord Mediterranea S.p.A

Weatherford Nesv Zealand Limited

Wearheriord
Nigeria Limited

Weaiherford Norge AS

Wearherford North Atlantic Limited

Weatherford OR Limited

Weaiherford Oil Tool GesmbH

Weatherford Oil Tool GmbH

Wearherford Oil Tool Middle East

Limued

Weatherford Oil Tool Nederland B.V

Weatherford Oilfield Equipment

Tianjin Limited

Weaiherford Oilfield Equipment

Services Inc

Weatherford
Operations LLC

Wearherford Overseas Products Ltd

Jurindirliun

Argentina

Romania

Australia

Eermada

U.S.A Delaware

Gibraltar

Luxembourg

Netherlands

U.S.A Delaware

Kazakhsian

Germany

Thailand

Australia

Canada Alberta

Brazil

Oman

Norsvay

Nesv Zealand

Thailand

United Kingdom

Mexico

Trinidad Tobago

U.S.A Texas

U.S.A Delaware

Panama

Venezuela

British Virgin Islands

U.S.A Delaware

Hungary

Cayman Islands

Luxembourg

U.S.A Delasvare

Manrilias

British Virgin Islands

Italy

New Zealand

Nigeria

Norway

Gibraltar

U.K Scotland

Austria

Germany

British Virgin Islands

Netherlands

China

U.S Delaware

Uzbekistan

Cayman Islands

Name

Weatherford Overseas Services Ltd

Wealberford PSS CiSC

Weatherford Petroleum Consultants AS

Weatherford Pipeline Services Espana

S.L

Weatherford Poland Sp.Zo.o

Weatherford Product
Leasing BVI

Limited

Wealberford Production Optimisarion

UK Limited

Weatherford Products Equipment

Singapore Pta Ltd

Weatherford Rig Systems AS

Weatherford Saudi Arabia Lid

Wealherford Services and Rentals Ltd

Weaiherford Services de R.L

Weatherford Services Ltd

Weatherford Solutions Sdn Bhd

Weatherford Sondaj Hizmeileri Limited

Sirketi

Weatherford South America de R.L

Weatherford Specialty Services de

Mexico 5.A de C.V

Weatherford Specialty Services LLC

Weatherford Switzerland
Trading and

Development GmbH

Weaiherford Syneas Investments Lid

Weatherford Technical Services Liroited

Weatherford Trinidad Limited

Wealherford U.K Limited

Weatherford U.S Holdings L.L.C

Weatherford U.S Invesimenl LLC

Weaiherford U.S

Weatherford Ukraine LLC

Weatherford Unidades de Bombeio

LIda

Weatherford Vietnam LLC

Weatherford Well Screen Ireland

Limited

Weaiherfnrd Worldwide
ldnldingc

OmbH

Weatherford LLC

Weatherford/Lamb Inc

Wedge Wire Industria Comereio de

Piltros Ltda

WeIlCat Services International LLC

Wellserv Limited

WESP SPA

West Coast International Oilfield

Rentals B.V

WEUS Holding Inc

WPO de C.V

WET Technologies LLC

WI Products Equipment Inc

WIl Rental Company

WPAS.A deCV

WUS Holding L.L.C

Weatherford Holdings Singapore Pte

Ltd

Wearherford Holdings WAPL Lid

Weatherford Specialty Services de

Mexico S.A de C.V

Weatherford Specialty Services LLC

Weatherford Ssviizerland Trading and

Development GmbH

JurisrlicIion

Cayman Islands

Russia

Norway

Spain

Poland

British Virgin Islands

U.K Scotland

Singapore

Norway

Saudi Arabia

British Virgin Islands

Panama

Bermuda

Malaysia

Turkey

Panama

Mexico

U.S.A Texan

Swilzerland

Canada Alberta

British Virgin Islands

Trinidad

U.K England

U.S .A Delasvare

U.S.A Delasvare

U.S.A Louisiana

Ukraine

Brazil

Vietnam

Ireland

Switzerland

Russia

U.S.A Delaware

Brazil

U.S.A Texas

U.K Scotland

Algeria

Netherlands

U.S Delaware

Mexico

Russia

Cayman Islands

U.S.A Delaware

Mexico

U.S.A Delasvare

Singapore

British Virgin Islands

Mexico

U.S.A Texas

Switzerland

Name

Wearherford International de Argentina

S.A

Weatherford International Eastern

Europe SRL

Wearherford International Holdings Pty

Ltd
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Name

Wcatherford Syngas Investments Ltd

Weatherford Technical Services Limited

Weaiherford Trinidad Limited

Weatherlord U.K Limited

Weatherford U.S Holdings LL

Wenilierford U.S Investment LLC

\Vcaiherlocd U.S L.P

Weatherford Ukraine LLC

Weniherford Unidades de Bombeto

Ltda

Wcatherford Vietnam LLC

Weatherford Well Screen Iceland

Limited

Weatherford Worldwide Holdings

CmbH

Jurisdiction

Canada Alberta

British Vicgin Islands

Trinidad

U.K England

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Delaware

U.S.A Lonisiana

Ukraine

Brazil

Vietnam

Ireland

Switzerland

Rassia

S.A Delaware

Brazil

WelICat Services International LLC

Wellserv Limited

WESP SPA

West Coast International Dilfield

Rentals B.V

WEUS Holding Inc

WED S.A de C.V

WET
Technologies

LLC

WI Prodncts Eqnipment Inc

WIl Rental Company

WPA S.A de CV

WUS Holding L.L.C

Zibo Hongyang Weatherford Dilfield

Bqnipment Co Ltd

Zimec LIda

Zonebrool Limited

Zonecrest Limited

Netherlands

U.S.A Delaware

Menico

Rassia

Caynian Islands

U.S.A Delaware

Mecico

U.S.A Delassare

China

Brazil

Cypras

Cypras

Name Jurisdietinn

U.S.A Tenas

U.K Scotland

Algeria

Weatherford LLC

Weatherford/Latob Inc

Wedge Wire lndnstria Coioercio de

Filtros Lida
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Independent Registered Accounting Firm Corporate Headquarters

Ernst Young LLP Weatherford International Ltd

Houston Center Rue Jean-François Bartholoni
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seeking information about Weatherford 52 55 91384800 713 693 4000
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will provide to any shareholder copy of

our annual report without charge upon
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website at http//www.weatherford.com
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